AGENDA
REDWAY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING

Location: RCSD Business Office, 3168 Redwood Drive
Date: April 23, 2025

Time: 6:00 P.M.

Posted:  April 18, 2025

I. CALL TO ORDER:

Il. ROLL CALL:

_Arthur M®Clure Chairman ___ Marie Etherton Tammy Willison
___ Dian Griffith Vice-Chairwoman ___ Michael McKaskle

11l. LAND ACKNOWLEGEMENT:

The Redway Community Services District acknowledges that it is located within the traditional
lands of the Wailaki and other Indigenous peoples. On this unceded ancestral land along the river
they call Sinkyokok, generations of people have stewarded this land and continue to care for the
land and water. We look to our indigenous communities for their experience in caring for the
water and land that we both inhabit and commit to working with them to provide quality water

for all.

IV. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:

V. REPORT FROM CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD:

Page lof4
RCSD REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA APRIL 16, 2025

Page 1 of 130



VI. PUBLIC COMMENT:
An opportunity for any member of the public to address the Board of Directors on any matter not on the

Agenda but which is within the jurisdiction of the Board. The Board may limit time allowed for each
speaker. An item may be discussed by the Board but no action will take place during this portion of the
agenda as this would constitute an illegal act of the Board.

VII. PREVIOUS MINUTES:
1. Consider Approval of the Minutes of the following Board of Director meetings.

a) March 19, 2025 , Regular Business Meeting minutes:

VI1Il. CONSENT CALENDAR:
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are to be considered routine and without opposition. The
Consent Calendar will be enacted by one motion.
1. Operation Manager's Report: Review of the March 2025 Operation Manager's
Report.
2 Production Report: Review of March 2025 Production Report.
3. Safety Report: Review of the March 2025 Safety Report.

IX. FINANCIAL, OFFICE MANAGER AND GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT:
1. Financial Report: Review of the March 2025 Financial Reports.
2. Office Manager’s Report: Review of the March 2025 Office Manager’s Reports.
3. General Manager's Report: Review of the March 2025 General Manager's Reports.

X. ACTION / DISCUSSION ITEMS; CONTINUED AND NEW ITEMS:
1. Updating Place of Use Boundary; Expansion of Place of Use and
Extension of Time Applications. ~~ A-GM REPORT Page 51
ACTION REQUIRED: Discussion / Report / Action
2. Adoption of Water Ordinance #7; Second Reading; Resolution 2024-2025-02 B_GM REPORT Page 51
ACTION REQUIRED: Discussion / Report / Action / Resolution 2024-2025-02 Summary Page 129
3. Ad-Hoc Committee Report:
a) Executive
ACTION REQUIRED: Discussion / Report / Action

Page 2 of 4
RCSD REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA APRIL 16, 2025

Page 2 of 130


Glenn
Typewriter
A-GM REPORT Page 51

Glenn
Typewriter
B-GM REPORT Page 51

Glenn
Typewriter
Summary Page 129


4. New Connections:
a) Property Amnesty Letter
b) New Connections Waiting List
¢) Houses Not Connect to Collection System
ACTION REQUIRED: Discussion / Report / Action

5. Inspection. c-GM REPORT Page 51
ACTION REQUIRED: Discussion / Report / Action .

6. Grants: D-GM REPORT Page 52
a) Emergency Water Storage and Supply Project
b) Wastewater Improvements Project E-GM REPORT Page 52
ACTION REQUIRED: Discussion / Report

7. Security: F-GM REPORT Page 52

a) Fencing of District Properties
b) ERCP Clean up
ACTION REQUIRED: Discussion / Report / Action

(0]

. Capital Improvemens.
ACTION REQUIRED: Discussion / Report / Action
9. Liability Insurance; Renewal.
ACTION REQUIRED: Discussion / Report / Action
10. Review of Late Fee Policy. ~ Page 50 Appendix B needs updating
ACTION REQUIRED: Discussion / Report / Action

11. Review of Board Stiphen.  page 50 This policy might need updating
ACTION REQUIRED: Discussion / Report / Action

XI. CORRESPONDENCE: 7l

1,
X11. BOARD MEMBER / STAFF REPORTS: 1A, RREDC Page 121
1B, GArberville Complete Streets Page 123
1. DIRECTORS' REPORT 1C, Garberville Vets Building Page 125
a. RREDC 1D, Somach-Retainer return Page 127

1E, memorandum - water rights update end
XIIl. COMMENTS FROM MEMBERS OF THE of packet

Page 30f4
RCSD REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA APRIL 16, 2025

Page 3 of 130


Glenn
Typewriter
c-GM REPORT Page 51

Glenn
Typewriter
D-GM REPORT Page 52

Glenn
Typewriter
F-GM REPORT Page 52

Glenn
Typewriter
E-GM REPORT Page 52

Glenn
Typewriter
Page 50 Appendix B needs updating

Glenn
Typewriter
Page 50 This policy might need updating

Glenn
Typewriter
XII.
1,
1A, RREDC Page 121
1B, GArberville Complete Streets Page 123
1C, Garberville Vets Building Page 125
1D, Somach-Retainer return Page 127
1E, memorandum - water rights update end                of packet 


XIV. MEDIA COMMUNICATION:
XV. ADVANCED AGENDA:
Furthert items may be placed by the Board Members for the May 2025 Regular Business Meeting

of the Board of Directors under this item of business: No Action

XVI. ADJOURNMENT:

Location of related writings is available for public review: Redway CSD Office, 3168 Redwood Dr.

Redway, Ca.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this
meeting, please contact the RCSD at (707)923-3101. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable
the District to make reasonable arrangements

to ensure accessibility to this meeting (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II.

Page 4 of 4
RCSD REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA APRIL 16, 2025

Page 4 of 130



REDWAY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING

March 19, 2025

CALL TO ORDER:

Chairman M*Clure called the March 19, 2025 Regular Business Meeting of the Redway Community Services
District Board of Directors, to order at 5:48 P.M. in the Redway Community Services District Business Office.

ROLL CALL:

Directors Present: Arthur M“Clure, Chm., Dian Griffith, Vice- Chm, Maire Etherton, Tammy Willison, (5:51
P.M. Arrival), Michael McKaskle, (6:25 P.M. Arrival).

Staff Present:
Cody Cox, General Manager / Operations Manager.

Glenn Gradin, Office Manager.
Nancy Jurrens, Secretary to the Board.

LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:
Marie Etherton read the District’s Statement of its Land Acknowledgement as follows.

The Redway Community Services District acknowledges that it is located within the traditional lands of the
Wailaki and other Indigenous peoples. On this unceded ancestral land along the river they call Sinkyokok,
generations of people have stewarded this land and continue to care for the land and water. We look to our
indigenous communities for their experience in caring for the water and land that we both inhabit and commit to
working with them to provide quality water for all.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:

Dian Griffith moved to approve the March 19, 2025 Regular Business Meeting Agenda as presented. =~ Marie
Etherton seconded the motion. Chairman MClure called for a roll call vote. Marie Etherton, Yea, Tammy
Willison, Yea, Dian Griffith, Yea, Arthur MClure, Yea. The motion was carried by a roll call vote of four Yeas
and zero Nays

REPORT FROM CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD:

Chairman M“Clure stated that the District employees have had a busy two weeks and commended Cody Cox for
his handling of a delicate issue.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

1. No public comments were addressed to the Board.

Page 10of 4
RCSD REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING MINUTES MARCH 19, 2025

Page 5 of 130



PREVIOUS MINUTES:

Consider Approval of the Minutes of the following Board of Directors Meetings:

a) December 18, 2024 Regular Business Meeting Minutes: As Arthur M“Clure was not in attendance at the
December 18, 2024 Regular Business Meeting and there was not a quorum of board members that attended
the December 18, 2024 meeting, the Board postponed action until the April 16, 2025 Regular Business
Meeting. Following return to the December 18, 2025 Regular Business Meeting Minutes as stated below,
Dian Griffith moved to approve the December 18, 2024 Regular Business Meeting as presented. Marie
Etherton seconded the motion. Chairman M‘Clure called for a roll call vote. Marie Etherton, Yea, Dian
Griffith, Yea, Tammy Willison, Yea, Arthur M“Clure, Abstain. The motion was carried by a roll call vote of
three Yeas and one abstention by Arthur M“Clure.

b) January 24, 2025 Special Business Meeting minutes: Following review of the January 24, 2025 Special
Business Meeting minutes, Dian Griffith moved to approve the January 24, 2025 Special Business Meeting
minutes as presented. Marie Etherton seconded the motion. Chairman M “Clure called for a roll call vote.
Marie Etherton, Yea, Dian Griffith, Yea, Tammy Willison, Yea, Arthur M“Clure, Yea. The motion was
carried by a roll call vote of four Yeas and zero Nays.

¢) February 26, 2025 Regular Business Meeting Minutes: Following review of the February 26, 2025 Regular
Business Meeting minutes, Dian Griffith moved to approve the February 26, 2025 Regular Business Meeting
minutes as presented. Marie Etherton seconded the motion. Chairman M “Clure called for a roll call vote.
Marie Etherton, Yea, Dian Griffith, Yea, Tammy Willison, Yea, Arthur M‘Clure, Yea. The motion was
carried by a roll call vote of four Yeas and zero Nays.

It came to the Board’s attention that Board Member Tammy Willison took the oath of office at the beginning

of the December 18, 2025 Regular Business meeting. Therefore, she was an acting member of the Redway
Community Services District Board of Directors. The Board returned to the Previous Minutes; Consider
Approval of the Minutes, Item a). December 18, 2024 Regular Business Meeting Minutes.

CONSENT CALENDAR:

1. Operation Manager's Report: The Board had no questions regarding the February 2025 Operations Manager’s
Report.

2. Production Report: The Board had no questions regarding the February 2025 Production Report.

3. Safety Report: The Board had no questions regarding the February 2025 Safety Report.

Marie Etherton moved to accept the February 2025 Consent Calendar as presented. Dian Griffith seconded the
motion. Chairman M‘Clure called for a roll call vote. Maire Etherton, Yea, Tammy Willison, Yea, Dian Griffith,
Yea, Arthur MClure, Yea. The motion was carried by a roll call vote of four Yeas and zero Nays.

FINANCIAL, OFFICE MANAGER AND GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT:

1. Financial Reports: Glenn Gradin informed the Board that three of the five invoices from GHD for the Water
and Wastewater Projects has been paid from the funds provided by The Department of Water Resources.
2. Office Manager's Report: Glenn Graden informed the Board that the District has received a quote from
SDRMA
for its Liability / Workers Compensation Insurance. The quote has increased seven thousand dollars
($7,000.00)
from 2024. Mr. Gradin will contact Golden State and request a quote.
3. General Manager’s Report: No additional information was presented to the Board.

Page 2 of 4
RCSD REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING MINUTES MARCH 19, 2025

Page 6 of 130



ACTION / DISCUSSION ITEMS:

1. Update Place of Use Boundary: Expansion of Place of Use and Extension of Time Application:
Information regarding the Update Place of Use Boundary is located in item A. in the General Manager’s
Report. No new information was available.

2. Water Ordinance # 7: Following review of Section 5.1.0 Service Application Categories 4, Commercial
Agriculture Producer Classification in Water Ordinance # 7, Marie Etherton moved to waive the reading
of Water Ordinance # 7. Dian Griffith seconded the motion. Chairman M ‘Clure called for a roll call
vote. Marie Etherton, Yea, Dian Griffith, Yea, Tammy Willison, Yea, Arthur M‘Clure, Yea. The motion
was carried by a roll call vote of four Yeas and zero Nays. By consensus of the Board the second reading
will take place on April 16, 2025 at the Regular Business Meeting of the Redway Community Services
District Board of Directors. Cody Cox informed the Board that David McMurchie, Attorney at Law,
will provide a summary of Water Ordinance # 7 which is required to be published in the local newspapers
15 days before the April 16, 2025 Regular Business Meeting. The Notice of Hearing will also be
included in the summary and will be held before the April 16, 2025 Regular Business Meeting.

3. Ad-Hoc Committee Reports: No reports were delivered by the Ad-Hoc Committee members.

4. New Connections:
a. Property Amnesty Letter: The District has received no response from Mr. McMurchie, Attorney at Law,
regarding the language in the Property Amnesty Letter.

b. New Connections Waiting List: No new information was available for review by the Board.

c. Houses not Connected to Collection System: No new information was available for review by the
Board.
5. Inspection: Cody Cox informed the Board that an inspection has not been conducted at the Redwood

Apartments in order to determine the fire and domestic water flow.

6. Grants:

a. Emergency Water Storage and Supply Project: Chairman M“Clure informed the Board that information
regarding the Emergency Water Storage and Supply Project is located in Ttem D. in the General
Managers Report. No new information was available.

b. Wastewater Improvements Project: Chairman M“Clure informed the Board that information regarding the
Wastewater Improvements Project is located in Item D. in the General Managers Report. No new
information was available.

7. Security:
a. Fencing of District Properties: Chairman M“Clure informed the Board that information regarding the
Fencing of District Properties is located in the General Manager’s Report.
b. ERCP Clean Up: Chairman M“Clure informed the Board that information regarding the ERCP Clean Up
is located in the General Manager’s Report.
8. Capital Improvements: Cody Cox informed the Board that no information regarding Capital Improvements is
available for review by the Board.

CORRESPONDENCE.:

1. Alan Linzer and Karile Hillery, February 26. 2025 Re, Account # 479, Water Overage Charge.

BOARD MEMBER / STAFE REPORTS:

1. Director's Reports:
A. Michael McKaskle.

1. RREDC: The Board reviewed the RREDC report that was submitted by Michael McKaskle at the

Page 30of 4
RCSD REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING MINUTES MARCH 19, 2025

Page 7 of 130



February 26, 2025 Regular Business Meeting.

COMMENTS FROM MEMBERS OF THE BOARD:

Dian Griffith commented that she loved a short meeting.

MEDIA COMMUNICATIONS:

The Local media will be contacted and asked to inform their listeners and readers regarding the time and date of
the District’s Business Meetings.

ADVANCED AGENDA

1. Review of Redway Community Services District Liability Insurance Company Renewal
2. Review of Late Fee Policy
3. Review of Board Member Stipend

ADJOURNMENT:

Maria Etherton moved to adjourn the March 19, 2025 Regular Business Meeting of the Redway Community
Services District Board of Directors at 6:31 P.M. Michael McKaskle seconded the motion. Chairman M“Clure
called for a roll call vote. Michael McKaskle, Yea, Marie Etherton, Yea, Tammy Willison, Yea, Dian Griffith,
Yea, Arthur M“Clure. Yea. The motion was carried by a voice vote of five Yeas and zero Nays.

Respectfully Submitted,

Nancy Jurrens,
Secretary to the Board

Page 4 of 4
RCSD REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING MINUTES MARCH 19, 2025

Page 8 of 130



OPERATIONS REPORT FOR RCSD APRIL 7™ 2025

Water Treatment

We were operating at 350 GPM for most of the month of March and into
May. Another Busty month here at the District. Discharge in cubic feet was
recorded at 2650 ft3/s, on 4/9/25. Operations are under normal conditions
currently for the Water Treatment facility. We will be installing the new
turbidimeter soon. The Eel River Conservation Camp Operator has just
installed their new meter which happened to be the same model. If there
are any issues with getting ours installed, we would have some help from
that operator.

We are in contact with Endress Hauser Meter and still working on
scheduling a technician to come out and perform calibration on our raw
intake meter as well as our backwash meter, and then our finished meter
that is on the contact chamber. During the control valve training out at
shelter cove last week with their crew, we found out who they used to
calibrate their MAG Meters, and we are trying to schedule all of us at the
same time, other than dealing directly with Endress Hauser.

Water Distribution

We have started back up with the Capital Improvements Project and have
crossed the road on West Coast to the opposite side of the existing main,
that will be demolished, and this is where we will be extending the new 6”
pipe to the end of West Coast. We will be installing the intersection
assembly next where there will be a new Hydrant install, then extending
down Mill, where there will be another Hydrant installed at the end of that
road.

Wastewater Treatment

| am pleased to report that operations are under normal conditions out at
the Wastewater Plant. Marshall's process control is right on point again for
this month. The John Deere tractor is ready for pickup, the main issue was
the wiring harness, and that is now complete.

Page 9 of 130



Wastewater Collection

We continue with the 1&1 abatement, we have started on cleaning/jetting
with the combo truck, then using the camera equipment to identify problem
areas have started in Redway. During these past rain events the crew went
around and popped manholes. The crew supervisor noticed a large clear
flow on Whitmore Dr. The crew went out jetted and cleaned and then sent
the camera down and we were able to identify major 1&l. We will move into
Redway Dr., Bricelandthorne Rd., Redwood Dr. and then moving down into
Lower Redway as we continue to identify these areas. The crew will soon
be involved in training which will include CPR certification, confined space
entry training, and traffic control training. We will also need to purchase
some new gear. We already have an atmospheric monitor for confined
space but require two. We will also need to purchase an SCBA” Self-
Contained Breathing Apparatus, with a secondary rescue tank.

The District was involved in the “Touch a Truck” event that was held at the
Elementary School on 4/5/25. This was perfect for education and outreach
which is necessary annually, we had our Combo truck there along with our
camera equipment that we use in the sewer system. There were a lot of
good guestions at the event. We did include our education material, and
ratepayers were able to visually see how root intrusion, along with what is
flushed down the toilet effects the operations of the District, as well as how
much it costs.

At the same time that we clean up the sewer system, we will be cleaning up
the lift stations as well.

Cody Cox
GM/Op’s Manager
RCSD

Page 10 of 130



Redway CSD - Production/Treatment Activity

April 9, 2025

Unit of measure is gallons:

Water Production Report: For March 2025

Water Produced District Use

Unmetered Sold Daily Avg.
Jan 2023 4,757,447 1,881,553 439,830 2,436,064 153,466
Jan 2024 4,082,397 1,173,810 501,471 2,407,116 131,690
Jan 2025 4,401,362 1,422,325 1,593,741 1,385,296 141,979
Feb 2023 3,813,139 671,078 198,516 2,943,545 136,184
Feb 2024 4,101,414 1,439,971 21,818 2,639,625 141,428
Feb 2025 4,111,650 1,358,892 155 2,752,603 146,845
Mar 2023 4,211,003 1,620,076 442,925 2,148,002 135,839
Mar 2024 4,677,125 1,458,175 1,162,803 2,056,147 150,875
Mar 2025 4,050,659 971,615 233,779 2,845,265 130,666
Wastewater Treatment Report: For March 2025
Influent Effluent Difference

Dec 2024 8,047,439 7,216,448 830,991

Jan 2025 7,057,036 6,468,815 588,221

Feb 2025 10,376,921 9,498,258 878,663

Mar 2025 8,044,253 7,280,363 763,890

Page 11 of 130



Page Left Intentionally Blank

Page 12 of 130



L] ey

MARCH o2 5
WORKPLACE SAFETY REPORT

Redway CSDemployees perform safety inspectionsat leastmonthly. The following
sections are the major areas observed:

Check fuel connections for seeps
Fuel cans stored properly

SECTION I
FireExtinguishers Date Serviced 3_’_5: 25 Date @ ~-3-25
Monthly Inspection recorded on unit.
SECTION2
>+ Flamgables Storage
Check fuel tanks for leaks Date 3 ~¥-25
WasteWTP - /
WaterPlant v~
DogwoodLS ;

» *; SECTION3
Work Areas
Chemiclals propt_erly stored and marked. 4%
| o glxci)tsi’z IM BHES _27
Date 2-le~25
SECTION4

Electrical Equipment

Switchesandcircuitbreakerslabeled.
Extension and power cordsare serviceable.
Lockout Devices serviceable

i

Date 3-7-25

Page 13 of 130



SECTIONS
Ladders, Hand Tools& Chains

Properly stored and are in serviceable condition
Handles are tightto hammer

head No missing or broken

steps Chain links and hooks

inspected

Datei‘i"_z 5

i -
D T

SECTIONG6
Machine Hazards

Wiring has no loose connections or bare wires.
Safety guards in place proper warnings for automated

systems.
Tie downs or mounts secured.

Date? ~7-25
SECTION?
Environment & Personal Protective Devices

Thereis adequatelighting & ventilation available when applicable. ’
SDS sheets ament.

‘tv‘/(
Hearing, Eye and protective clothing is serviceable.
Emergency phone numbers are posted & first aid kits current. ;
Spill Containment Kits are complete

Confined space equipment checked for serviceability L ;/

Survivor Air Systems inspected and serviceable

Date-; L'?'Zj

&

Any Incidents to Reportfor month 7/ / < 6‘ %
Signature: L >

Date

Page 14 of 130



ot

Redway C.S.D.
EMPLOYEE SAFETY TRAINING AND MEETING REPORT

Use of this Form "
1. All safety training and meetings conducted for organization employees are documented on this form.
2. The completed form is distributed and filed as follows:
a. Training
1) One copy is filed with the master fraining file for each course or session in the lIPP
Administrator’s files. The master file includes this form, the training course curriculum, all
fraining handouts, and anything else pertaining to the training program.
2) One copy is maintained in Human Resources where the following information is retrieved and
inserted into each attendee’s personnel file on the organization's Record of Training Form:
a) Employee name d) Training subject
b) Employee's depariment e) Whether a certificate was issued
c) Date of training
b. Safety Meetings
This form is filed with the master meeting file for each safety meeting in the IIPP Administrator's files.
The master file includes this form, the safety meeting agenda, all safety meeting handouts and anything
else pertaining to the safety meeting.

Check (v) if the Program was Training Check (v') if the Program was a Safety Meeting
Training/Safety Meeting Subject(s): ’ ' C

METER KewDing SAFETY TRAINING /Do

Certificate Issued (circle answer); Yes No

Training/Meeting Date: Training instructor/Meeting Leader Name(s):

y=5-2 5 D, 56T
Description of Training Provided or Safety Meeting Topicgs): ) S
B s oF IMETER. Rerbding HAZ ARDS é Hew Yo b‘f’“‘*
s LT& T&‘E&V\ t

Course or Meeting Handouts (attach to this form):

e —

Employee Safety Traiping :feeﬁng Report
of

Page

Page 15 of 130



2

EmploveeName (PRINT) - | - Employee Name {SIGATURE)

Maw-,s(dm(/( rMDOf’L %ém

TR 7P —

RCSD (IPP-Form-EmployeeSafety Training&MeetingReportForm-2021.doc)

Emplo yee Safety Trammy & Mseﬂng Report
‘Page____of . e

Page 16 of 130



Redway Community Services District

Monthly Financial Statement to MARCH 31st, 2025

Primary Checking Account Previous Balance = $79,834.55| As of February 28th, 2025
Revenues
1 Customer Revenues Collected per QuickBooks $150,145.20
2 $0.00
3 $0.00
4 Rivercrest Mutual Water Testing $258.00
5 Del Oro $0.00
6 brass recycling $1,140.00
7 TRANSFER CONNECTION FEE $0.00
8 WWTP REIMBURSEMENT $561,190.00
9 DWR REIMBURSEMENT $0.00
10 EDD OVERPAYMENT $92.76
11 UBCC rebate $0.00
Total Income (reconciled bank deposits) $712,825.96
Total Withdrawals (reconciled withdrawals) $130,268.75
Quick Books Balance - Primary Checking Account $662,391.76 As of March 31st, 2025

El Dorado Income: Payments Received

Water payments - w/ late, reconnect fees, adjustments and deposits $52,851.05
Sewer Payments $83,205.83
SEF Water fees paid $0.00
SEF Sewer fees paid $5,566.12
Water Syst. Loan Fund $8,568.18
Total Payments Received $150,191.18
Other Income $562,680.76
Net Total Income $712,871.94
Billing for Sales of Water & Sewer Services
Date: This Year March-25 Date: Prior Year March-24
WATER SEWER WATER SEWER
WSLF $6,558.16 WSLF $6,613.57
Residential $35,178.55 $45,529.98|Residential $28,154.91 $37,812.90
Commercial $7,549.14 $13,880.99|Commercial $7,017.22 $13,498.86
Sub total W&S only $49,285.85 $59,410.97]Sub total W&S only $41,785.70 $51,311.76
SEF 0 $0.00 $4,122.52|SEF $7,790.67 $7,907.20
Sub total $49,285.85 $63,533.49]Sub total $49,576.37 $59,218.96
Reconnect fees $0.00 Reconnect fees $0.00
Late Fees $2,856.00 Late Fees $2,556.00
Adjustments -$496.26 Adjustments -$8,636.32
Total Sales/Use Mar-25 $115,179.08|Total Sales/Use Mar-24 $102,715.01

Page 17 of 130




Page Left Intentionally Blank

Page 18 of 130



3:28 PM
04/03/25

Redway Community Services District
Balance Sheet - Collapsed w/ Prior Year

Accrual Basis

As of March 31, 2025

Page 19 of 130

Mar 31, 25 Mar 31, 24
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1004 - Cash in Bank CCUSH - 71 46,974.42 19,529.25
1010 - CCUSH - Business Savings -00 25.01 25.01
1015 - CCUSH - Connection Fees -52 2.26 313.18
1020 - CCUSH - Meadows Deposits - 51 16,092.54 16,076.44
1050 - Petty Cash 134.68 70.13
Cash in County - Water
1100 - #2546 SRF Water Proj Loan Fund 349,127.03 183,089.37
1105 - #2547 SRF Payment Reserve F... 88,152.49 84,655.94
1110 - #2548 Davis Grunsky '68 Reserve 64.15 4,731.69
1115 - #2549 Davis Grunsky '74 Reserve 314.71 19,087.98
1120 - #2550 Tax Revenue Fund-Water 67,367.63 111,645.83
1125 - #2555 SEF - Water 78,048.22 151,537.75
1130 - #2557 T & D Rehab Proj. Fund 3,339.04 2,646.49
Total Cash in County - Water 586,413.27 557,395.05
Cash in County - Sewer
1135 - #2551 Tax Revenue -Sewer 52,264.94 17,462.73
1140 - #2554 RCSD RECD Grant Sewer 900.58 864.86
1145 - #2556 SEF - Sewer 101,422.12 16,089.89
1150 - #2558 | & | Project Fund-Sewer 6,526.34 6,267.48
1155 - #9855 95 COP Payment Fund-Se... 1,401.75 1,346.15
1160 - #9856 '95 Reserve Fund Sewer 51,593.44 49,547.01
Total Cash in County - Sewer 214,109.17 91,578.12
Total Checking/Savings 863,751.35 684,987.18
Other Current Assets
Prepaid Expenses 3,000.00 3,000.00
Prepaid Insurance 10,278.77 0.00
Prepaid Rent 1,600.00 700.00
1300 - Accounts Receivable
1301 - Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -4,366.46 -4,500.00
1300 - Accounts Receivable - Other 306,410.53 256,955.80
Total 1300 - Accounts Receivable 302,044.07 252,455.80
1400 - Other Receivables -1,743.02 0.00
1500 - Grants Receivable -726,730.32 0.00
1600 - Inventory - Water 15,820.61 15,820.61
1650 - Inventory - Sewer 1,742.98 1,742.98
Total Other Current Assets -393,986.91 273,719.39
Total Current Assets 469,764.44 958,706.57
Page 1



3:28 PM
04/03/25
Accrual Basis

Redway Community Services District
Balance Sheet - Collapsed w/ Prior Year

As of March 31, 2025

Mar 31, 25 Mar 31, 24
Fixed Assets
Fixed Assets - Water
1700 - Land 31,282.45 31,282.45
1705 - Source of Supply Plant 457,413.70 457,413.70
1710 - Autos & Trucks 36,157.32 36,157.32
1715 - Pumping Plant 83,511.68 83,511.68
1720 - Water Treatment Plant 288,733.63 288,733.63
1725 - Structures & Improvements 4,260,537.66 4,128,506.08
1730 - Water Plant - Small Equipment 285,569.58 285,569.58
1735 - Construction in Progress 139,299.24 59,687.71
Total Fixed Assets - Water 5,582,505.26 5,370,862.15
Fixed Assets - Sewer
1740 - Land 93,493.07 93,493.07
1742 - Road Improvements 116,000.00 116,000.00
1745 - New WW Plant & Lift Stations 2,042,448.66 2,037,438.28
1750 - New Collection Facility 1,748,872.91 1,748,872.91
1755 - Lab Equipment - Plant 43,665.29 43,665.29
1760 - Permanent Seasonal Perc Pond 166,654.40 166,654.40
1765 - Easements 4,633.00 4,633.00
1770 - Collection Facilities - Lift St 630,254.62 607,991.35
1775 - Treatment Plant - Structures 466,708.60 466,708.60
1776 - Treatment Plant - Improvements 100,333.88 100,333.88
1780 - Sludge Bed Construction 64,884.76 64,884.76
1790 - Office Furniture & Equipment 22,544.53 22,544.53
1795 - Autos & Trucks 91,111.59 91,111.59
1796 - Tools & Equipment 214,322.02 214,322.02
1797 - Construction in Progress 600,446.40 537,811.36
Total Fixed Assets - Sewer 6,406,373.73 6,316,465.04
Accumulated Depreciation-Water -2,933,383.07 -2,933,383.07
Accumulated Depreciation-Sewer -3,889,298.49 -3,889,298.49
Total Fixed Assets 5,166,197.43 4,864,645.63
Other Assets
1900 - COP Issuance Costs 13,510.25 13,510.25
Total Other Assets 13,510.25 13,510.25
TOTAL ASSETS 5,649,472.12 5,836,862.45
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable 7,534.86 207,766.59
Total Accounts Payable 7,534.86 207,766.59
Page 2

Page 20 of 130



3:28 PM

Redway Community Services District

04/03/25 Balance Sheet - Collapsed w/ Prior Year

Accrual Basis

As of March 31, 2025

Mar 31, 25 Mar 31, 24
Other Current Liabilities
2025 - Gym Memberships 30.00 0.00
2105 - Accrued SWH/SDI -185.60 -80.00
2110 - Accrued SUI/ETT 799.18 918.18
2125 - Accrued Vacation 21,671.20 14,582.90
2200 - Interest Payable 8,943.75 0.00
2300 - Customer Deposits 14,550.00 14,550.00
2340 - Water Connection Deposit 0.00 2,650.00
2350 - Sewer Connections Deposit 0.00 1,310.00
2400 - Temporary Inv - W&J Project 11,900.00 11,900.00
Current Portion of Long-Term De 107,500.00 90,568.90
Total Other Current Liabilities 165,208.53 136,399.98
Total Current Liabilities 172,743.39 344,166.57
Long Term Liabilities
2500 - Loan Payable - SRF Loan 685,017.50 765,000.00
2600 - Loan Payable - 95 WW Project 466,965.00 477,000.00
2700 - Loan Payable - Davis Grunsky 0.00 35,714.19
2800 - Interest Payable - Deferred 0.00 5,001.90
Less Current Portion of LTD -107,500.00 -90,568.90
Total Long Term Liabilities 1,044,482.50 1,192,147.19
Total Liabilities 1,217,225.89 1,536,313.76
Equity
Water Equity
3050 - Retained Earnings - Water 2,033,238.40 2,171,458.74
3100 - Debt Reserve - Water 428,059.32 289,838.98
3200 - Contributed Capital - Water
3250 - Less Accumulated Amortization -150,001.65 -150,001.65
3200 - Contributed Capital - Water - Ot... 409,340.77 409,340.77
Total 3200 - Contributed Capital - Water 259,339.12 259,339.12
Total Water Equity 2,720,636.84 2,720,636.84
Sewer Equity
3000 - Retained Earnings - Sewer -1,163,187.59 -1,161,853.50
3150 - Debt Reserve - Sewer 52,227.25 50,893.16
3300 - Contributed Capital - Sewer
3350 - Less Accumulated Amortization -939,028.76 -939,028.76
3300 - Contributed Capital - Sewer - Ot... 3,743,489.16 3,743,489.16
Total 3300 - Contributed Capital - Sewer 2,804,460.40 2,804,460.40
Total Sewer Equity 1,693,500.06 1,693,500.06
32000 - Retained Earnings 500,054.75 100.00
Net Income -481,945.42 -113,688.21
Total Equity 4,432,246.23 4,300,548.69
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 5,649,472.12 5,836,862.45
Page 3

Page 21 of 130



Page Left Intentionally Blank

Page 22 of 130



3:26 PM

04/03/25
Accrual Basis

Redway Community Services District
Profit & Loss

March 2025
Sewer Water TOTAL
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Water Charges
4100 - Residential 0.00 34,682.29 34,682.29
4150 - Commercial 0.00 7,549.14 7,549.14
Total Water Charges 0.00 42,231.43 42,231.43
Sewer Charges
4200 - Residential 45,529.98 0.00 45,529.98
4250 - Commercial 13,880.99 0.00 13,880.99
Total Sewer Charges 59,410.97 0.00 59,410.97
4500 - Late Charges 0.00 2,856.00 2,856.00
7200 - Interest Income 0.00 1.37 1.37
Total Income 59,410.97 45,088.80 104,499.77
Gross Profit 59,410.97 45,088.80 104,499.77
Expense
Administrative & General
5015 - Bank Charges 0.00 83.25 83.25
Insurance
5040 - Employee Health Insurance
Employee Portion Health -1,678.13 -1,678.13 -3,356.26
5040 - Employee Health Insurance - O... 6,638.92 6,638.92 13,277.84
Total 5040 - Employee Health Insurance 4,960.79 4,960.79 9,921.58
5041 - Employee Life Insurance
Employee Portion Life -238.75 -238.75 -477.50
5041 - Employee Life Insurance - Other 452.64 452.64 905.28
Total 5041 - Employee Life Insurance 213.89 213.89 427.78
Total Insurance 5,174.68 5,174.68 10,349.36
5070 - Licenses, Permits & Fees 0.00 751.75 751.75
5075 - Mileage/Travel 33.84 33.85 67.69
Page 1

Page 23 of 130



3:26 PM Redway Community Services District
04/03/25 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis March 2025
Sewer Water TOTAL
Office Expense
5060 - Computers & Software Expense 221.87 221.88 443.75
5062 - Finance Charges 13.62 13.63 27.25
5081 - Office Expense 135.58 223.50 359.08
5105 - Postage 117.80 117.81 235.61
5106 - Rent 450.00 450.00 900.00
5130 - Office Supplies 213.54 213.56 427.10
5135 - Telephone-all phones 693.73 399.20 1,092.93
5145 - Utilities-pg&e & blue star only 30.78 30.79 61.57
Total Office Expense 1,876.92 1,670.37 3,547.29
5100 - Payroll Taxes 1,452.63 1,708.96 3,161.59
Professional Fees
5112 - Director Fees 137.50 137.50 275.00
5113 - Legal Fees 0.00 775.50 775.50
Total Professional Fees 137.50 913.00 1,050.50
5125 - Retirement 1,128.22 1,128.22 2,256.44
5150 - Wages 11,214.97 11,214.97 22,429.94
Total Administrative & General 21,018.76 22,679.05 43,697.81
Water Treatment
5200 - Lab Tests 0.00 368.00 368.00
5205 - Repairs & Maintenance 0.00 594.10 594.10
5210 - Supplies-water treatement 0.00 454.54 454.54
5215 - Utilities 0.00 5,359.28 5,359.28
5220 - Wages 0.00 9,770.46 9,770.46
5230 - Tools & Safety Equipment 0.00 900.15 900.15
5240 - Truck expenses 0.00 223.18 223.18
Total Water Treatment 0.00 17,669.71 17,669.71
Water Trans & Distribution
5305 - Repairs & Maintenance 0.00 1,024.08 1,024.08
5310 - Supplies 0.00 869.31 869.31
5315 - Utilities 0.00 334.03 334.03
5320 - Wages 0.00 2,023.17 2,023.17
5330 - Tools and Safety Equipment 0.00 23.24 23.24
Total Water Trans & Distribution 0.00 4,273.83 4,273.83
Page 2

Page 24 of 130



3:26 PM Redway Community Services District
04/03/25 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis March 2025
Sewer Water TOTAL
Sewer Treatment
5400 - Lab Tests 2,511.00 0.00 2,511.00
5405 - Repairs & Maintenance 591.60 0.00 591.60
5410 - Supplies-sewer treatment 215.31 0.00 215.31
5415 - Utilities 7,437.62 0.00 7,437.62
5420 - Wages 4,130.56 0.00 4,130.56
5440 - Truck Expenses 328.48 0.00 328.48
Total Sewer Treatment 15,214.57 0.00 15,214.57
Sewer Collection
5505 - Repairs & Maintenance 5,415.77 0.00 5,415.77
5510 - Supplies 906.43 0.00 906.43
5515 - Utilities 1,759.31 0.00 1,759.31
5520 - Wages 3,972.00 0.00 3,972.00
Total Sewer Collection 12,053.51 0.00 12,053.51
Total Expense 48,286.84 44,622.59 92,909.43
Net Ordinary Income 11,124.13 466.21 11,590.34
Other Income/Expense
Other Income
5900 - SEF Fees - Sewer 4,122.52 0.00 4,122.52
4400 - SRF Fees 0.00 6,558.16 6,558.16
Total Other Income 4,122.52 6,558.16 10,680.68
Other Expense
9999 - Suspense 0.00 -92.76 -92.76
Total Other Expense 0.00 -92.76 -92.76
Net Other Income 4,122.52 6,650.92 10,773.44
Net Income 15,246.65 7,117.13 22,363.78
Page 3

Page 25 of 130



Page Left Intentionally Blank

Page 26 of 130



3:31 PM
04/03/25
Accrual Basis

Redway Community Services District
Checking Account Activity

As of March 31, 2025

Type Date Num Name Memo Amount
1004 - Cash in Bank CCUSH - 71

Bill Pmt -Check 03/03/2025 15572 Calpers 100000017835331- Health Care Premiums - MAR 2025 -11,380.69
Bill Pmt -Check 03/03/2025 15573 colonial Life E5494117 Invoice forFEB 13, 27 2025 -880.42
Bill Pmt -Check 03/03/2025 15574 Copiers Plus INV#143903 Kyocera TaskAlpha 308ci annual -901.38
Bill Pmt -Check 03/03/2025 15575 David Katz M AR RENT 2025 3168 Redwood Drive -900.00
Bill Pmt -Check 03/03/2025 15576 Fire Risk Management Services Extended Benefits Dental, Vision, Life MAR 2025 -749.26
Bill Pmt -Check 03/03/2025 15577 Pacific Gas & Electric W astePlant,Evergreen B&LS, Office -5,602.17
Bill Pmt -Check 03/03/2025 15578 Valley Pacific 195225 JAN 2025 -1,186.84
Bill Pmt -Check 03/03/2025 15579 Verizon CELL PHONE month billing - JAN 5 ~ FEB4 -256.20
Bill Pmt -Check 03/03/2025 15580 Verizon One Talk DESK PHONE month billing JAN 8-FEB 7 -107.01
Deposit 03/03/2025 ALL PAID 2,039.03
Check 03/04/2025 15581 Lewis, Todd C reimbursement air compressor -300.00
Check 03/04/2025 15582 Cherubini, Dru A Mileage 2/20/2025 -67.69
Deposit 03/04/2025 ALL PAID 795.93
Bill Pmt -Check 03/04/2025 15583 CDFW EPIMS # 58053 -751.75
Bill Pmt -Check 03/04/2025 15584 Microbac 2024 Statement 1-6~2/3/2025 -3,218.00
Bill Pmt -Check 03/04/2025 15585 Mission Linen Customer # 322538 door mat -36.12
Bill Pmt -Check 03/04/2025 15586 Pacific Gas & Electric Water Plant & Lift Stfations- July billing -7,597.85
Bill Pmt -Check 03/04/2025 15587 quill FEB INVOICES -91.56
Bill Pmt -Check 03/04/2025 15588 SWRCB-DWOCP Distribution Renewal Doug Esget -160.00
Check 03/04/2025 15589 SEF Sewer Acct# 2556000-800940 -6,480.00
Check 03/04/2025 15590 SRF Water Project Loan Fund #2546 For Deposit to fund #2546 -9,943.00
Liability Check 03/05/2025 EFT Employment Development Department-800  800-3247-7 -4.16
Deposit 03/05/2025 ALL PAID 300.00
Check 03/06/2025 15591 Postmaster Redway FEBRUARY 2025 Billing -235.61
Deposit 03/06/2025 ALL PAID 807.62
Deposit 03/07/2025 ALL PAID 651.26
Deposit 03/07/2025 Deposit 21,586.60
Bill Pmt -Check 03/07/2025 15592 Advanced Security Systems INV# 725313 service 3/1/2025~5/31/2025 -142.50
Bill Pmt -Check 03/07/2025 15593 Anderson Lucas Sommerville & Borges INV# 64856 final Billing 2023-2024 fiscal -1,000.00
Bill Pmt -Check 03/07/2025 15594 Industrial Service & Supply Inc INV# 037248 Accu Tab -6,275.36
Bill Pmt -Check 03/07/2025 15595 Just Rent It West Coast Road -64.26
Bill Pmt -Check 03/07/2025 15596 Napa Auto Parts INV# MULTIPLE -143.25
Bill Pmt -Check 03/07/2025 15597 True Value 1451 -169.45
Bill Pmt -Check 03/07/2025 15598 Wyckoff's-Fortuna Customer #2-7001  1-31-2025 statement -146.63
Deposit 03/10/2025 ALL PAID 136.26
Liability Check 03/11/2025 E-pay United States Treasury 94-1634964 QB Tracking # -1536935878 -4,297.90
Liability Check 03/11/2025 15599 Variable Annuity Life Ins. Co. -1,887.67
Check 03/11/2025 15606 Chaille, Calvin C Insurance reimbursement 5 of 18 -600.00
Check 03/11/2025 15605 Rogelio Martinez WWTP Cert #3 on loan for the month of March 2025 -1,250.00
Deposit 03/11/2025 ALL PAID 2,082.56
Liability Check 03/12/2025 QuickBooks Payroll Service Created by Payroll Service on 03/11/2025 -3,362.78
Deposit 03/12/2025 ALL PAID 1,882.07
Deposit 03/12/2025 Deposit 10,998.18
Deposit 03/12/2025 Deposit 86.00
Deposit 03/12/2025 Deposit 86.00
Deposit 03/12/2025 Deposit 92.76
Deposit 03/12/2025 Deposit 1,140.00
Deposit 03/12/2025 Deposit 9,024.34

Page 1

Page 27 of 130



3:31PM Redway Community Services District
04/03/25 Checking Account Activity

Accrual Basis As of March 31, 2025

Type Date Num Name Memo Amount
Paycheck 03/13/2025 DD1440 Cherubini, Dru A Direct Deposit 0.00
Paycheck 03/13/2025 15600 Cox, Cody R. -2,833.51
Paycheck 03/13/2025 15601 Esget, Douglas R -2,203.62
Paycheck 03/13/2025 DD1441 Gradin, Glenn A Direct Deposit 0.00
Paycheck 03/13/2025 15602 Lewis, Todd C -1,578.45
Paycheck 03/13/2025 15603 Moore, Eric S -1,5636.25
Paycheck 03/13/2025 15604 Moore, Marshall C -1,487.71
Deposit 03/13/2025 ALL PAID 1,276.67
Deposit 03/13/2025 Deposit 5,557.24
Deposit 03/14/2025 ALL PAID 3,110.64
Deposit 03/14/2025 Deposit 14,184.33
Check 03/17/2025 15607 Eric Moore Employee Advance 03/17/2025 -500.00
Deposit 03/17/2025 ALL PAID 4,186.04
General Journal 03/17/2025 GAG icheckgateway through march 17 -30.00
Liability Check 03/18/2025 EFT Employment Development Department-800  800-3247-7 -324.58
Liability Check 03/18/2025 EFT Employment Development Department-800  800-3247-7 -209.23
Deposit 03/18/2025 ALL PAID 655.36
Paycheck 03/18/2025 15608 Moore, Eric S 60 vacation advance -1,448.32
Deposit 03/18/2025 Deposit 3,149.99
Deposit 03/18/2025 Deposit 9,894.71
Liability Check 03/18/2025 E-pay United States Treasury 94-1634964 QB Tracking # -1185179878 -348.82
Liability Check 03/18/2025 EFT Employment Development Department-800  800-3247-7 -17.41
Liability Check 03/18/2025 EFT Employment Development Department-800  800-3247-7 -20.46
Deposit 03/18/2025 Deposit 2,766.69
Bill Pmt -Check 03/19/2025 15609 Dazey's/Stephen's FEB 2025 Billing -303.64
Bill Pmt -Check 03/19/2025 15610 EDP solutions J08474 1 box of 4up bills blank -279.72
Bill Pmt -Check 03/19/2025 15611 Emerald Technologies INV#45931 HP Blue tip adapter -31.25
Bill Pmt -Check 03/19/2025 15612 Frontier ALL- Field Land Lines -624.03
Bill Pmt -Check 03/19/2025 15613 Jim's Quality Quick Lube 2011- Ford shocks front 66224 -375.33
Bill Pmt -Check 03/19/2025 15614 kuntze INV#8295 zircon ph parts -975.50
Bill Pmt -Check 03/19/2025 15615 McMurchie Law Firm INV#4855 -775.50
Bill Pmt -Check 03/19/2025 15616 Microbac Statement 2/6/2025~02/28/2025 -2,879.00
Bill Pmt -Check 03/19/2025 15617 Milt's Saw Shop INV#2025-1412 -671.51
Bill Pmt -Check 03/19/2025 15618 Pace Supply INV#0110200752, 0210188747 -5,966.12
Bill Pmt -Check 03/19/2025 15619 Postmaster Redway Permit #5 Annual Fee -350.00
Bill Pmt -Check 03/19/2025 15620 Recology Eel River Debris .26 TON JAN BILL #139616 -47.06
Bill Pmt -Check 03/19/2025 15621 Recology Humboldt County INV#33665837- Office -34.94
Bill Pmt -Check 03/19/2025 15622 Silke install lights and winch -1,305.66
Bill Pmt -Check 03/19/2025 15623 six rivers portable toilets INV#195585 February 2025 -171.76
Bill Pmt -Check 03/19/2025 15624 Umpgua Bank February Billing -1,339.73
Bill Pmt -Check 03/19/2025 15625 Valley Pacific 195225 FEB 2025 -1,632.29
Bill Pmt -Check 03/19/2025 15626 Verizon CELL PHONE month billing - FEB5~Mar4 -210.72
Bill Pmt -Check 03/19/2025 15627 Verizon One Talk DESK PHONE month billing FEB 8~MAR 7 -107.01
Check 03/19/2025 15628 Art McClure Chair Regular Board Meeting March 19, 2025 -75.00
Check 03/19/2025 15629 Dian Griffith Regular Board Meeting March 19, 2025 -50.00
Check 03/19/2025 15630 Michael McKaskle Regular Board Meeting March 19, 2025 -50.00
Check 03/19/2025 15631 Marie Etherton Regular Board Meeting March 19, 2025 -50.00
Check 03/19/2025 15632 Tammy Willison Regular Board Meeting March 19, 2025 -50.00
Deposit 03/19/2025 ALL PAID 2,181.31

Page 2

Page 28 of 130



3:31PM Redway Community Services District
04/03/25 Checking Account Activity

Accrual Basis As of March 31, 2025

Type Date Num Name Memo Amount
Paycheck 03/20/2025 15633 Cox, Cody R. VACATION 40 HOUR ADVANCE -1,889.48
Liability Check 03/20/2025 E-pay United States Treasury 94-1634964 QB Tracking # -1060133878 -373.22
Liability Check 03/20/2025 EFT Employment Development Department-800  800-3247-7 -25.50
Deposit 03/20/2025 ALL PAID 628.58
Deposit 03/20/2025 Deposit 9,156.76
Deposit 03/21/2025 ALL PAID 269.41
Deposit 03/21/2025 Deposit 4,261.46
Deposit 03/24/2025 ALL PAID 1,312.63
Check 03/24/2025 15638 Esget, Douglas R reimbursement field office -17.76
Bill Pmt -Check 03/24/2025 15644 C&K 32585 -139.13
Bill Pmt -Check 03/24/2025 15635 Calpers 100000017864593- Health Care Premiums - APR 2025 -11,380.69
Bill Pmt -Check 03/24/2025 15636 David Katz APR RENT 2025 3168 Redwood Drive -900.00
Bill Pmt -Check 03/24/2025 15645 Ella Mcfarland Office Cleaning 3-10,3-24 2025 -62.50
Bill Pmt -Check 03/24/2025 15639 Emerald Technologies INV#45951 MAintenance contract -412.50
Bill Pmt -Check 03/24/2025 15640 Fire Risk Management Services Extended Benefits Dental, Vision, Life APR 2025 -749.26
Bill Pmt -Check 03/24/2025 15641 Pacific Gas & Electric WastePlant,Evergreen B&LS, Office -5,475.86
Bill Pmt -Check 03/24/2025 15642 Security Lock & Alarm INV#220036626 -231.00
Bill Pmt -Check 03/24/2025 15643 Thomas R Bess Inc. 11.82 tons cold patch -1,738.61
Bill Pmt -Check 03/24/2025 15646 Pacific Gas & Electric Water Plant & Lift Stfations- July billing -6,975.95
Deposit 03/24/2025 Deposit 86.00
Deposit 03/24/2025 WWTP #7 134,437.00
Deposit 03/24/2025 WWTP #8 426,753.00
Deposit 03/24/2025 Deposit 12,277.79
General Journal 03/24/2025 Tax?? GAG 779-0041-3 employment tax?? -92.85
Bill Pmt -Check 03/25/2025 15647 GHD Inc INV# 380-0056874 - WWTP -135,680.18
Bill Pmt -Check 03/25/2025 15648 GHD Inc INV# 380-0060256 - WWTP -426,752.52
Liability Check 03/25/2025 E-pay United States Treasury 94-1634964 QB Tracking # -972870878 -4,319.64
Liability Check 03/25/2025 EFT Employment Development Department-800  800-3247-7 -333.57
Liability Check 03/25/2025 EFT Employment Development Department-800  800-3247-7 -212.45
Liability Check 03/25/2025 15655 Variable Annuity Life Ins. Co. VOID: 0.00
Liability Check 03/25/2025 15656 Variable Annuity Life Ins. Co. -1,926.33
Check 03/25/2025 15657 SEF Sewer Acct# 2556000-800940 -5,842.00
Check 03/25/2025 15658 SRF Water Project Loan Fund #2546 For Deposit to fund #2546 -6,569.00
Liability Check 03/26/2025 QuickBooks Payroll Service Created by Payroll Service on 03/25/2025 -3,348.37
Deposit 03/26/2025 ALL PAID 1,165.57
Deposit 03/26/2025 Deposit 3,171.09
Check 03/26/2025 15659 Sonoma County YMCA reimbursement for one half of vandalism to gate -213.75
Deposit 03/26/2025 Deposit 3,891.17
Paycheck 03/27/2025 DD1442 Cherubini, Dru A Direct Deposit 0.00
Paycheck 03/27/2025 15654 Cox, Cody R. -2,833.50
Paycheck 03/27/2025 15650 Esget, Douglas R -1,826.33
Paycheck 03/27/2025 DD1443 Gradin, Glenn A Direct Deposit 0.00
Paycheck 03/27/2025 15651 Lewis, Todd C -1,339.77
Paycheck 03/27/2025 15652 Moore, Eric S -1,728.42
Paycheck 03/27/2025 15653 Moore, Marshall C -1,689.30
Deposit 03/27/2025 ALL PAID 299.74
Deposit 03/27/2025 Deposit 9,917.15
Deposit 03/28/2025 ALL PAID 1,718.17
Check 03/28/2025 15660 Rogelio Martinez WWTP Cert #3 on loan for the month of APRIL 2025 -1,250.00

Page 3

Page 29 of 130



3:31 PM
04/03/25
Accrual Basis

Redway Community Services District
Checking Account Activity
As of March 31, 2025

Type Date Num Name Memo Amount
Check 03/28/2025 15661 Chaille, Calvin C Insurance reimbursement 6 of 18 -600.00
Bill Pmt -Check 03/28/2025 15662 Hach INV # 14419751 -64.70
Bill Pmt -Check 03/28/2025 15663 Industrial Electric Arcata Inc. IN53374 - rewind motor, bearings and stuff -5,406.85
Bill Pmt -Check 03/28/2025 15664 Verizon CELL PHONE month billing - FEB5~Mar4 -151.36
Deposit 03/31/2025 ALL PAID 998.06
Deposit 03/31/2025 Deposit 3,810.79
Check 03/31/2025 Service Charge -53.25
Total 1004 - Cash in Bank CCUSH - 71 -20,863.28
TOTAL -20,863.28
Page 4

Page 30 of 130



3:16 PM
04/01/25

Redway Community Services District

Reconciliation Summary
1004 - Cash in Bank CCUSH - 71, Period Ending 03/31/2025

Beginning Balance
Cleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 95 items
Deposits and Credits - 47 items

Total Cleared Transactions
Cleared Balance

Uncleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 33 items
Deposits and Credits - 1 item

Total Uncleared Transactions
Register Balance as of 03/31/2025

New Transactions
Checks and Payments - 3 items
Deposits and Credits - 1 item

Total New Transactions

Ending Balance

Page 31 of 130

Mar 31, 25

79,834.55

-130,268.75
712,825.96

582,557.21

662,391.76

-615,517.34
100.00

-615,417.34

46,974.42

-1,191.37
1,143.65

-47.72

46,926.70

Page 1



Page Left Intentionally Blank

Page 32 of 130



3:35 PM Redway Community Services District

04/03/25 Savings Account Activity
Accrual Basis As of March 31, 2025
Type Date Num Name Memo Debit Credit Balance
1010 - CCUSH - Business Savings -00 25.01
Total 1010 - CCUSH - Business Savings -00 25.01
1015 - CCUSH - Connection Fees -52 313.10
Deposit 01/31/2024 Interest 0.03 313.13
Deposit 02/29/2024 Interest 0.02 313.15
Deposit 03/31/2024 Interest 0.03 313.18
Deposit 04/30/2024 Interest 0.03 313.21
Deposit 05/31/2024 Interest 0.03 313.24
Deposit 06/30/2024 Interest 0.03 313.27
Deposit 07/31/2024 Interest 0.03 313.30
Deposit 08/31/2024 Interest 0.03 313.33
Deposit 09/30/2024 Interest 0.03 313.36
General Jour... 10/31/2024 GAG 572 orchard - tenario 15,065.00 15,378.36
Deposit 10/31/2024 Interest 0.07 15,378.43
Deposit 11/30/2024 Interest 1.26 15,379.69
General Jour... 12/31/2024 Transfer transfer new connection to operations 15,378.69 1.00
Deposit 12/31/2024 Interest 1.26 2.26
Total 1015 - CCUSH - Connection Fees -52 15,067.85 15,378.69 2.26
1020 - CCUSH - Meadows Deposits - 51 16,072.42
Deposit 01/31/2024 Interest 1.37 16,073.79
Deposit 02/29/2024 Interest 1.28 16,075.07
Deposit 03/31/2024 Interest 1.37 16,076.44
Deposit 04/30/2024 Interest 1.32 16,077.76
Deposit 05/31/2024 Interest 1.37 16,079.13
Deposit 06/30/2024 Interest 1.32 16,080.45
Deposit 07/31/2024 Interest 1.37 16,081.82
Deposit 08/31/2024 Interest 1.37 16,083.19
Deposit 09/30/2024 Interest 1.32 16,084.51
Deposit 10/31/2024 Interest 1.37 16,085.88
Deposit 11/30/2024 Interest 1.32 16,087.20
Deposit 12/31/2024 Interest 1.37 16,088.57
Deposit 01/31/2025 Interest 1.37 16,089.94
Deposit 02/28/2025 Interest 1.23 16,091.17
Deposit 03/31/2025 Interest 1.37 16,092.54
Total 1020 - CCUSH - Meadows Deposits - 51 20.12 0.00 16,092.54

Page 1

Page 33 of 130



3:35 PM
04/03/25
Accrual Basis

Redway Community Services District
Savings Account Activity

As of March 31, 2025

Type Date Num Name Memo Debit Credit Balance

Cash in County - Water 681,641.79
1100 - #2546 SRF Water Proj Loan Fund 221,339.37
General Jour...  02/02/2024 GAG JAN 2024 Payment 38,250.00 183,089.37
Check 04/17/2024 14844 SRF Water Project Loan Fund #2546 For Deposit to fund #2546 For JAN, FEB, MAR 2023 19,818.00 202,907.37
General Jour...  05/31/2024 County 3,875.14 206,782.51
General Jour... 06/28/2024 GAG transfer from SEF-Water to bring WSLF account current to... 59,873.00 266,655.51
General Jour... 06/30/2024 GAG trn from 2556 to bring account current to 5-31-2024 72,985.00 339,640.51
General Jour...  06/30/2024 County 1,327.41 340,967.92
General Jour...  07/01/2024 County 1,436.33 342,404.25
General Jour...  07/30/2024 GAG JULY 2024 Payment 38,250.00 304,154.25
Check 08/28/2024 15135 SRF Water Project Loan Fund #2546 To close fiscal 2023/2024 6,670.00 310,824.25
Check 09/20/2024 15204 SRF Water Project Loan Fund #2546 July 2024 deposit 6,631.00 317,455.25
General Jour...  10/01/2024 County 1,881.78 319,337.03
Check 10/31/2024 15281 SRF Water Project Loan Fund #2546 August 2024 deposit 6,642.00 325,979.03
Check 12/18/2024 15425 SRF Water Project Loan Fund #2546 September 2024 deposit 6,636.00 332,615.03
Check 03/04/2025 15590 SRF Water Project Loan Fund #2546 October / November 2024 deposit 9,943.00 342,558.03
Check 03/25/2025 15658 SRF Water Project Loan Fund #2546 DECEMBER 2024 deposit 6,569.00 349,127.03
Total 1100 - #2546 SRF Water Proj Loan Fund 204,287.66 76,500.00 349,127.03
1105 - #2547 SRF Payment Reserve Fund 84,655.94
General Jour...  05/31/2024 County 1,647.54 86,303.48
General Jour...  06/30/2024 County 571.61 86,875.09
General Jour...  07/01/2024 County 607.16 87,482.25
General Jour... 10/01/2024 County 670.24 88,152.49
Total 1105 - #2547 SRF Payment Reserve Fund 3,496.55 0.00 88,152.49
1110 - #2548 Davis Grunsky '68 Reserve 4,731.69
General Jour... 05/31/2024 County 92.09 4,823.78
General Jour... 06/13/2024 County 4,823.78 0.00
General Jour... 06/30/2024 County 31.95 31.95
General Jour... 07/01/2024 County 31.71 63.66
General Jour... 10/01/2024 County 0.49 64.15
Total 1110 - #2548 Davis Grunsky '68 Reserve 156.24 4,823.78 64.15
1115 - #2549 Davis Grunsky '74 Reserve 19,087.98
General Jour...  05/31/2024 County 371.48 19,459.46
General Jour...  06/13/2024 County 16,918.41 2,541.05
General Jour... 06/13/2024 County 2,485.58 55.47
General Jour... 06/30/2024 County 128.89 184.36
General Jour... 07/01/2024 County 127.96 312.32
General Jour... 10/01/2024 County 2.39 314.71
Total 1115 - #2549 Davis Grunsky '74 Reserve 630.72 19,403.99 314.71
Page 2

Page 34 of 130



3:35 PM
04/03/25
Accrual Basis

Redway Community Services District
Savings Account Activity
As of March 31, 2025

Type Date Num Name Memo Debit Credit Balance

1120 - #2550 Tax Revenue Fund-Water 135,165.09
General Jour...  01/03/2024 GAG 23,519.26 111,645.83
General Jour... 05/31/2024 Prop Tax 66,198.51 177,844.34
General Jour...  05/31/2024 County 2,656.33 180,500.67
General Jour...  06/13/2024 County 2,516.32 177,984.35
General Jour... 06/28/2024 GAG Transfer to SEF-Water 140,951.00 37,033.35
General Jour... 06/28/2024 GAG transfer to SEF Sewer 25,745.00 11,288.35
General Jour...  06/30/2024 County 1,055.43 12,343.78
General Jour... 06/30/2024 Prop Tax 4,760.97 17,104.75
General Jour...  07/01/2024 County 1,196.32 18,301.07
General Jour... 10/01/2024 County 144.93 18,446.00
General Jour... 12/31/2024 Prop Tax 48,921.63 67,367.63
Total 1120 - #2550 Tax Revenue Fund-W ater 124,934.12 192,731.58 67,367.63
1125 - #2555 SEF - Water 190,799.23
General Jour... 02/12/2024 GAG Transfer from savings for Truck purchase 50,000.00 140,799.23
Check 03/19/2024 14785 SEF Water Acct# 2555000-reimburse excess truck purchase funds 10,738.52 151,537.75
General Jour... 05/27/2024 GAG transfer to OP for Metron Farnier meters 69,018.51 82,519.24
General Jour...  05/31/2024 County 3,972.54 86,491.78
General Jour...  06/13/2024 County 14,415.99 72,075.79
General Jour... 06/28/2024 GAG Transfer from Water Tax brings SEF W current to 6=30-20... 140,951.00 213,026.79
General Jour... 06/28/2024 GAG transfer to WSLF to bring WSLF account current to 6-30-2... 59,873.00 153,153.79
Check 06/28/2024 15007 SEF Water #2555 For bring currrent to 5-31-2024 85,975.00 239,128.79
General Jour... 06/30/2024 GAG Transfer to SEF Sewer to make SEF S current to 5-31-2024 87,438.00 151,690.79
General Jour...  06/30/2024 County 1,104.70 152,795.49
General Jour...  07/01/2024 County 904.69 153,700.18
General Jour...  08/19/2024 GAG SDRMA LIABILITY PAYMENT TRANSFER TO OPERATI... 27,498.36 126,201.82
Check 08/28/2024 15133 SEF Water To close fiscal 2023/2024 7,857.00 134,058.82
General Jour... 09/10/2024 GAG metron farnier INV#100005285 125 residential meters 56,932.41 77,126.41
General Jour... 10/01/2024 County 921.81 78,048.22
Total 1125 - #2555 SEF - Water 252,425.26 365,176.27 78,048.22
1130 - #2557 T & D Rehab Proj. Fund 25,862.49
General Jour...  03/12/2024 GAG MIKSIS Manhole Rehab 23,216.00 2,646.49
General Jour... 05/31/2024 County 503.33 3,149.82
General Jour... 06/30/2024 County 140.83 3,290.65
General Jour... 07/01/2024 County 23.00 3,313.65
General Jour... 10/01/2024 County 25.39 3,339.04
Total 1130 - #2557 T & D Rehab Proj. Fund 692.55 23,216.00 3,339.04
Total Cash in County - Water 586,623.10 681,851.62 586,413.27
Page 3

Page 35 of 130



3:35 PM
04/03/25
Accrual Basis

Redway Community Services District
Savings Account Activity
As of March 31, 2025

Type Date Num Memo Debit Credit Balance

Cash in County - Sewer 115,928.81
1135 - #2551 Tax Revenue -Sewer 28,195.23
General Jour... 02/01/2024 GAG Feb 2024 Interest Payment 10,732.50 17,462.73
General Jour...  05/31/2024 County 914.22 18,376.95
General Jour... 05/31/2024 Prop Tax 58,221.22 76,598.17
General Jour... 06/28/2024 GAG transfer to SEF Sewer 70,000.00 6,598.17
General Jour... 06/30/2024 County 352.02 6,950.19
General Jour... 06/30/2024 Prop Tax 4,501.15 11,451.34
General Jour...  07/01/2024 County 497.19 11,948.53
General Jour... 08/01/2024 GAG privcipal 31,000.00 -19,051.47
General Jour... 08/01/2024 GAG interest 10,732.50 -29,783.97
General Jour... 10/01/2024 County 0.00 -29,783.97
General Jour... 12/31/2024 Prop Tax 32,083.91 2,299.94
General Jour... 02/01/2025 GAG FEB 2025 INTEREST PAYMENT AUTO- PAID 10,035.00 -7,735.06
General Jour... 03/28/2025 GAG Transfer to accomodate USDA loan for AUG2025/FEB2026 60,000.00 52,264.94
Total 1135 - #2551 Tax Revenue -Sewer 156,569.71 132,500.00 52,264.94
1140 - #2554 RCSD RECD Grant Sewer 864.86
General Jour... 05/31/2024 County 16.83 881.69
General Jour... 06/30/2024 County 5.84 887.53
General Jour... 07/01/2024 County 6.20 893.73
General Jour... 10/01/2024 County 6.85 900.58
Total 1140 - #2554 RCSD RECD Grant Sewer 35.72 0.00 900.58
1145 - #2556 SEF - Sewer 29,708.08
General Jour... 01/29/2024 GAG Pump for Azalea Lift Station 13,618.19 16,089.89
General Jour...  05/31/2024 County 524.94 16,614.83
General Jour... 06/28/2024 GAG Transfer from Sewer TAX to be current to 6-30-2023 95,745.00 112,359.83
General Jour... 06/30/2024 GAG Transfer from SEF Water to make SEF S current to 5-31-... 87,438.00 199,797.83
General Jour... 06/30/2024 GAG trn to 2546 to make WSLF current to 5-31-2024 72,985.00 126,812.83
General Jour...  06/30/2024 County 134.82 126,947.65
General Jour... 07/01/2024 County 153.19 127,100.84
Check 08/28/2024 15134 SEF Sewer To close fiscal 2023/2024 7,977.00 135,077.84
Check 09/20/2024 15203 SEF Sewer July 2024 payment 4,153.00 139,230.84
General Jour...  10/01/2024 County 1,553.28 140,784.12
Check 10/31/2024 15280 SEF Sewer August 2024 payment 4,160.00 144,944.12
Check 12/18/2024 15426 SEF Sewer September 2024 payment 4,156.00 149,100.12
Check 03/04/2025 15589 SEF Sewer October / November 2024 payment 6,480.00 155,580.12
Check 03/25/2025 15657 SEF Sewer DEC 2024 PLUS NOVEMBER SHORTpayment 5,842.00 161,422.12
General Jour... 03/28/2025 GAG Transfer to accomodate USDA loan for AUG2025/FEB2026 60,000.00 101,422.12
Total 1145 - #2556 SEF - Sewer 218,317.23 146,603.19 101,422.12
1150 - #2558 |1 & | Project Fund-Sewer 6,267.48
General Jour... 05/31/2024 County 121.97 6,389.45
General Jour... 06/30/2024 County 42.32 6,431.77
General Jour... 07/01/2024 County 44.95 6,476.72
General Jour... 10/01/2024 County 49.62 6,526.34
Total 1150 - #2558 1 & | Project Fund-Sewer 258.86 0.00 6,526.34
Page 4

Page 36 of 130



3:35 PM
04/03/25
Accrual Basis

Redway Community Services District
Savings Account Activity
As of March 31, 2025

Type Date Memo Debit Credit Balance
1155 - #9855 95 COP Payment Fund-Sewer 1,346.15
General Jour... 05/31/2024 County 26.20 1,372.35
General Jour... 06/30/2024 County 9.09 1,381.44
General Jour... 07/01/2024 County 9.65 1,391.09
General Jour... 10/01/2024 County 10.66 1,401.75
Total 1155 - #9855 95 COP Payment Fund-Sewer 55.60 0.00 1,401.75
1160 - #9856 '95 Reserve Fund Sewer 49,547.01
General Jour...  05/31/2024 County 964.25 50,511.26
General Jour...  06/30/2024 County 334.55 50,845.81
General Jour...  07/01/2024 County 355.36 51,201.17
General Jour... 10/01/2024 County 392.27 51,593.44
Total 1160 - #9856 '95 Reserve Fund Sewer 2,046.43 0.00 51,593.44
Total Cash in County - Sewer 377,283.55 279,103.19 214,109.17
TOTAL 978,994.62 976,333.50 816,642.25
Page 5

Page 37 of 130



Page Left Intentionally Blank

Page 38 of 130



3:36 PM Redway Community Services District

04/03/25 Payments from Customers
Accrual Basis As of March 31, 2025
Type Date Memo Amount
1300 - Accounts Receivable

Deposit 03/03/2025 ALL PAID -2,039.03
Deposit 03/04/2025 ALL PAID -795.93
Deposit 03/05/2025 ALL PAID -300.00
Deposit 03/06/2025 ALL PAID -807.62
Deposit 03/07/2025 ALL PAID -651.26
Deposit 03/07/2025 Deposit -21,586.60
Deposit 03/10/2025 ALL PAID -136.26
Deposit 03/11/2025 ALL PAID -2,082.56
Deposit 03/12/2025 ALL PAID -1,882.07
Deposit 03/12/2025 Deposit -10,998.18
Deposit 03/12/2025 Deposit -9,024.34
Deposit 03/13/2025 ALL PAID -1,276.67
Deposit 03/13/2025 Deposit -5,5657.24
Deposit 03/14/2025 ALL PAID -3,110.64
Deposit 03/14/2025 Deposit -14,184.33
Deposit 03/17/2025 ALL PAID -4,186.04
Deposit 03/18/2025 ALL PAID -655.36
Deposit 03/18/2025 Deposit -3,149.99
Deposit 03/18/2025 Deposit -9,894.71
Deposit 03/18/2025 Deposit -2,766.69
Deposit 03/19/2025 ALL PAID -2,181.31
Deposit 03/20/2025 ALL PAID -628.58
Deposit 03/20/2025 Deposit -9,156.76
Deposit 03/21/2025 ALL PAID -269.41
Deposit 03/21/2025 Deposit -4,261.46
Deposit 03/24/2025 ALL PAID -1,312.63
Deposit 03/24/2025 Deposit -12,277.79
Deposit 03/26/2025 ALL PAID -1,165.57
Deposit 03/26/2025 Deposit -3,171.09
Deposit 03/26/2025 Deposit -3,891.17
Deposit 03/27/2025 ALL PAID -299.74
Deposit 03/27/2025 Deposit -9,917.15
Deposit 03/28/2025 ALL PAID -1,718.17
Deposit 03/31/2025 ALL PAID -998.06
Deposit 03/31/2025 Deposit -3,810.79
Total 1300 - Accounts Receivable -150,145.20
TOTAL -150,145.20

Page 1

Page 39 of 130



Page Left Intentionally Blank

Page 40 of 130



3:37 PM Redway Community Services District

04/03/25 A/P Aging Summary
As of March 31, 2025

Current 1-30 31-60 61-90 > 90 TOTAL
David Katz 0.00 -900.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -900.00
Eureka Humboldt Fire Extinguisher 755.70 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 755.70
Frontier 623.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 623.84
Jim's Quality Quick Lube 0.00 306.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 306.97
Kevin Tupes Fabrication 0.00 4,680.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,680.00
Mission Linen 18.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18.06
Napa Auto Parts 105.32 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 105.32
Pace Supply 923.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 923.42
Parkinson Building Materials 244.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 244.31
quill 428.61 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 428.61
True Value 125.62 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 125.62
Wyckoff's-Fortuna 223.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 223.01
TOTAL 3,447.89 4,086.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,534.86

Page 1

Page 41 of 130



Page Left Intentionally Blank

Page 42 of 130



1:40 PM Redway Community Services District

04/10/25 A/P Aging Summary
As of April 10, 2025

Current 1-30 31-60 61 -90 > 90 TOTAL
GHD Inc 54,028.25 0.00 32,756.26 0.00 0.00 86,784.51
TOTAL 54,028.25 0.00 32,756.26 0.00 0.00 86,784.51

Page 1

Page 43 of 130



Page Left Intentionally Blank

Page 44 of 130



3:38 PM Redway Community Services District
04/03/25 Payroll Details by Account
Accrual Basis March 2025
Mar 25 Mar 24 Jul '24 - Mar ...
Ordinary Income/Expense
Expense
Administrative & General
Insurance
5040 - Employee Health Insura... 13,277.84 10,245.98 111,556.60
5045 - Workers' Comp 0.00 0.00 15,526.76
Total Insurance 13,277.84 10,245.98 127,083.36
5100 - Payroll Taxes 3,161.59 3,292.25 34,837.19
5150 - Wages 22,429.94 20,687.89 224.875.29
Total Administrative & General 38,869.37 34,226.12 386,795.84
Water Treatment
5220 - Wages 9,770.46 6,249.96 86,176.61
Total Water Treatment 9,770.46 6,249.96 86,176.61
Water Trans & Distribution
5320 - Wages 2,023.17 4,356.07 36,167.42
Total Water Trans & Distribution 2,023.17 4,356.07 36,167.42
Sewer Treatment
5420 - Wages 4,130.56 9,135.31 64,844.98
Total Sewer Treatment 4,130.56 9,135.31 64,844.98
Sewer Collection
5520 - Wages 3,972.00 2,876.48 34,363.55
Total Sewer Collection 3,972.00 2,876.48 34,363.55
Total Expense 58,765.56 56,843.94 608,348.40
Net Ordinary Income -58,765.56 -56,843.94 -608,348.40
Net Income -58,765.56 -56,843.94 -608,348.40
Page 1

Page 45 of 130



Page Left Intentionally Blank

Page 46 of 130



Past Due List Status

Past Due Status as of 03-31-2025 amount
Number of accounts on the past due list 117
The Average Bill $722.90
The Median Bill $581.05
Low Balance at 90 days $2.16
High Balance at 90 days $2,894.14
Current balance Past Due List(30,60,90) $62,504.27
Current Balance of at 90 days $20,241.31
Addresses currently off unknown
Past Due status as of 02-28-2025 amount
Number of accounts on the past due list 167
The Average Bill $480.67
The Median Bill $610.55
Low Balance at 90 days $0.92
High Balance at 90 days $7,831.76
Current balance Past Due List $86,009.28
Current Balance of at 90 days $41,002.45
Addresses currently off unknown

WILL WORK WITH EL DORADO TO
CREATE A LOCKED-OFF METER LIST

Page 47 of 130



Page Left Intentionally Blank

Page 48 of 130



To: RCSD Board of Directors

Office Manager’s Memo April 4, 2025

Credit card processing. For the month of March, we had 92 transactions with a value of $26,054.97. In
February, we had 81 transactions with a value of $20,992. With the new billing software, the customers
can view their bill just as they would when it arrives in the PO Box there, they can arrange an ACH
transaction for $1.95 or proceed with a credit card payment at $3.00 or 3% whichever is higher. We will
have to abort ALLPAID by April 30" once we get Intuity linked to the website and fully integrated with
the office staff.

El Dorado billing software. It is getting easier to work with El Dorado. There is a lot to learn. One step
at a time.

Profit to Loss. Fiscal 2024/2025 has just begun. July 1% to March 31 is 75% of the Fiscal year. Income
was $1,144,150 which is 73% of operational funding of $1,568,554. Expenses through March 31%
totaled $1,068,938 which is 74% of the projected approved expenses of $1,441,825 for the 2024/2025
fiscal year. | have received statements from the county, and we have the deposits integrated into this
packet.

Billing and Allocations. Our past due for the month of March was $62,504.27. Our past due for the
month of February is $86,009.28. It appears that the past due fluctuates around $10,000 up or down
every month. The highest in February 2024 was $141.986.14 from $37,000 in March 2020.

Past Due accounts. Currently we have nineteen properties shut off. A couple of the shut-off accounts
are due to customer requests, not past due. Redway CSD has always been quite easy to work with as far
as managing a past due account, but our past due accounts are increasing in numbers and increasing in
value, the patience we do have but with the great influx of past due accounts will influence our daily
operations. Therefore, we are increasing our efforts to have delinquent accounts become current. Once
we have addressed the 90 past due window, we will be focusing on the sixty days past due to become
current or have services shut off after 77 days (60 per state law, 15 days for letter or phone call, 48-hour
notice). Currently it is ninety days before any action takes place beyond the phone calls. We will
increase the number of 48-hour notices going out and become sterner on the amount to be paid. This is a
community, and we all live and work here. It is sad to see our fellow community members do poorly.

New Connections. | have reviewed the New Connections list. The Redway Community Services District
approved fifteen new SFRE Connections after the last capacity analysis. As of now we still have four
unclaimed new connections available. If everyone on the list had their proposed build outs listed as active



construction, we would be in a deficit of thirty-five new connections. We have three Applicants who have
paid their Application fees for their various projects but have elected to let the residents fill out the list for
the remaining four unclaimed SFRE’s.

Pacific Gas and Electric. We have started the process of relocating the service from Willow Avenue to
Rusk Lane. Every person | talk to gives us different information. Friday April 4th, a representative of
PG&E completed a will serve letter for existing spring site, remember confusing information. Next step
yourprojects-pge.com

Savings Accounts with County. All accounts are reconciled to December 31%, 2024. WSLF and SEF
Sewer are caught up with deposits up to January 31%. Money billed in month one, they are collected in
month two and they are disbursed into the savings accounts in month three. Earlier this month We created
a new savings account with vocality, transferred tax roll money out of Water tax account into our
operations account and created a new account at VVocality and transferred that deposit inti the appropriate
account. We transferred $14,885.00 into this account for the JET/VAC truck loan which the first payment
is not due until July 1%, 2025.

Stipend. | inserted the Stipend check condition for the board. We need to account for when we have the
vice-chair fill-in for the chairperson, and we need to accommodate a total maximum per month from $200
up to $300, Michael gets close and if he has a special meeting to attend he goes over the $200

Water Ordinance Appendix B. We inserted the appendix for a few reasons. One it needs to be reviewed
and updated. Another reason is the disconnect/reconnect fee(off/on), | would like to see one fee to turn
service back on fee, we do not have winter service rate, so separation of the fees is obsolete. The late fee
can be revisited, a change to 10% per month after 60 days. We are not trying to raise revenue with the late
fee just awareness with a need to pay the bills regularly, monthly.

Rate review. We are slated for another rate increase of 10% at the beginning of July. | understand both
the need for the increase and the reasons that an increase is not desirable.

If we do not consider raising the rates then we must go into ultra conservative roles, in which running the
district becomes much more difficult and we will start to become delinquent in some of our endeavors.
We are slated for three more rate increases over the same amount of years. Totaling 28%. We can break
it up into seven years with rate increases of 4% a year.

Respectfully,

Glenn Gradin

"When the well is dry, we learn the worth of water.”" Benjamin Franklin



Redway Community Services District
P.O. Box 40
Redway, CA 95560

(707) 923-3101

General Manager’s Report May 8" 2025

To: The Redway Community Services District’s Board of Director’s

From: Cody Cox General Manager/Operations Manager

A) Updating Place of Use Boundary
We have the final submitted version of the notification to CDFW for the
ongoing diversion at the Raw Water Intake and have retained in our files on
the “S” drive at the office. Now we wait for CDFW to process the application
and get a draft Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement (LSAA) to use to
review and comment on. This could possibly take several months just to let
the Board and the public know, | wanted to leave this revolving in the report
for the Board. | have reached out with 4js’s support for CEQA for the POU.
LACO has gotten back to us, GHD needed more time, as did North point
consulting. The Executive committee met over this on 4/9/25, and we will
brief the Board of Directors on this, and what we are supporting.

B) Water Ordinance
The Board of Director had waived the 1% reading of Water Ordinance
number 7. We will be having the second reading which has been
summarized by our District Attorney, and the summary has been published
with the Times Standard, and we met the requirements which was that the
summary had to be posted at least five days prior to the meeting of the next
regular business meeting. That date was 4/16/25, and we posted the
summary in the paper for 4/10/25, and 4/13/25. This summary is included
in the packet.

C) Inspections
We have not conducted any inspections this month so far, but | may have
more to report by the date of this meeting. There are at least two cannabis
operations that need to be inspected in the Evergreen Business Park, and
we will be conducting, or may have already completed the BFA test at the
Redwood Village Apartments, by this meeting date.

Page 51 of 130



Redway Community Services District
P.O. Box 40
Redway, CA 95560

(707) 923-3101

D) Grants DWR,
We have had our bi-weekly check in with Bill Ehorne our project manager
with DWR, and we are meeting our deadline of going out to bid by 4/11/25.
At the same time GHD is preparing, the advertisement for the project, along
with the additive bid item which is the filter tank rehab. The other
item/deadline that is pending is the completion of the water meter
installation. We have to be complete by June 2025. If you remember
correctly, we knew that this deadline was aggressive, especially since we
are self-performing these installations throughout town.
Currently we are at a total install of 300 meters and will have 200 more to
go thereatfter. If we have to ask for an extension we can do so, but at this
point we do not anticipate having to ask for an extension, we will know
more by the end of this month.

E) Wastewater Infrastructure Improvements Project/Planning,
We are at 90% design currently, and there is nothing new to report for this
project at this time.

F) Security
During the event at the Elementary School, | ran into our District
Supervisor, and she had reported that they were currently conducting the
cleanup near our old tank site at the north end of town. She had mentioned
that our area would be included in the cleanup. This is great news! We
have also begun the fence repair out at the treated effluent percolation
ponds and have hung all the necessary signage as well. We will need to
budget for future repairs and fencing in general.

Cody Cox
GM

Page 52 of 130



REDWAY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

WATER ORDINANCE NO. 7:

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING RATES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
FOR WATER SERVICE.

Approved by RCSD Board

Date:

Page 53 of 130



Contents

ARTICLE O PURPOSE AND POLICY ...ttt ettt ettt e s e e e 10
LT o O A o U oo 1 T PP U P PRT R UPTPPPRUOTRI 10
SBC. 0.2 SCOPIE. ...ttt ettt etttk e e ekttt e e e R bt e e e e a e e e e e e be e e e e e e br e e e e e annraaeans 10

ArLICIE 1 - DEFINITIONS ..ottt ettt et sb e e ebb e e erb e e snb e e anbeeesnteeeeneeeenes 11
LT Y o] o (o7 o | SO PRTPR 11
SEC L2 BOANM. ..ttt 11
SEC 1.3 CONMNMEBCTION ...ttt ettt e e e bt b e s 11
SEC 1.4 CONNECTLION FEES ...ttt ettt nbe e b 11
SBC 1.5 COST ...t 11
SEC 1.6 CroSS-CONMMEBCLION ...ttt et 11
SEC 1.7 CUSTOMIBT ...ttt et et na e n e b 12
SEC 1.8 CUSTOMET LALETAL .......eeiiiiiiiii ettt 12
SEC LLO DISEIICT. ...ttt ettt 12
SEC L.LO IMIBIN ..kttt h et b e n e 12
SEC L.LL MR .t 12
SEC 112 IMETEI BOX. ..ttt 12
SEC LA NON-POLADIE ... 12
SeC 1.14 Notice Of COMPIETION........uuiii i 12
SEC L.L5 OWINET ittt ettt 13
SeC 1.16 Potable/Treated WALeN............ooiiiiiiiie e 13
SEBC. L.17 PEISON ...ttt 13
SEC L. L8 PreMIISES. ...tttk ekt b ettt b e 13
SEC LLGSIIEEL ... 13
Sec 1.20 Private Fire ProteCtion SEIVICE..........c.cciiiiiiiiiiieiii et 13
Sec 1.21 Public Fire ProteCtion SEIVICE .......cccviiiiiiiiiiiiiieiie et 13
SEC 1.22 REQUIAI WALEE SEIVICE ... .vviiieiiiiiie ettt e e e e s e e e e s snbaae e 13

Page 2 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 54 of 130



Sec 1.23 Commercial Agriculture Water SEIVICE .........cccveeiiiiieiiiee e 13

SEC 1.24 TeMPOTrary WALEE SEIVICE .......uveeiiieeeiiiieeeiiie et e ettt e st e st e s e e e e e e 14
LT A B 1 T i = o1 =T PSR 14
SEC L.26 PEIMIT ...ttt ettt ettt e nre s 14
LT A Y o] o] [ o= g | TSR 14
SEC 1,28 CONTIACTON ...ttt ettt n e 14
Sec 1,29 Single Family LIVING UNTT.......ocuiiiiiie e 14
Sec 1.30 Multiple Service CONNECLION, ........uuie i 14
Sec 1.31 Water SErviCe CONNECTION .......ooiuiiiiieiieeiie ettt 15
Sec 1.32 AccesSOry DWEIING UNITS ......c.uviiiiiie i 15
Sec 1.33 Single Family Residence Equivalency (SFRE)..........ccceiiiiiiiiieiiiie e 15
SeC 1,34 USE/UNIT EQUIVAIEINCY ...cc.vviiiiiiie ettt 15
SeC 1.35 Additional DefiNIIONS .........coiiiiiiiiiiieiic e 16
ARTICLE 2 GENERAL RULES ... ..otttk e e e e e 17
SEC 2.1 SNOIE TILIE ...t 17
SeC 2.2 Rules and REQUIALIONS. .........uviiiiiiie et e e e a e e s arrae e 17
SBC 2.3 PUIPOSE ...ttt ettt e e e e e e et e e e e e e e s s bbb e et e e e e e e e e naabrrreeaaeeeannne 17
SEC 2.4 WOrdS AN PRIASES......ccuiiiiiieiiiieiieee et 17
TR AL =T 0 V] = 1 P EUP O PPRPPPN 17
SEC 2.6 SEPAIADIIITY .....vveeeiieiee e 17
SEC 2.7 Pressure CONTITIONS. ........eiiiiiiiieiie ittt 18
Sec 2.8 Maintenance of Water Pressure/Interruption of Service ..........ccccccvvvveeeiiiiiec e, 18
Sec 2.9 Tampering With DIStICt PrOPEITY ......cc.vviiiiiiiiie et 18
SeC 2.10 Penalty fOr VIOIAtION ..........oieiiiiiie et naae e e 18
SEC 2.11 NOLICE L0 CUSTOMIBIS ...ttt ettt ettt 18
Sec 2.12 Correspondence from CUSTOMENS ........ccoiiiiiiieiiiiiie e 19
ARTICLE 3 General USe OFTINANCES .........coiriiiiiiiiieiiiaiiie ettt 19
SEC 3.1 EFfICIENE WALET USE......ooiiiiiiiiiete e 19

Page 3 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 55 of 130



Sec 2.2 ResponsSibility fOr FACHITIES .........cooiiiieiiiieciee e 19

Sec 3.3 Damage to Water System FaCilities...........ocouviiiiiiiiiie e 19
SeC 3.4 CuStomer CONrol VAIVE.............oiiiiiiicee s 19
Sec 3.6 Changes in CUStomMer's EQUIPMENT ........ooiiiiiiiiiieiiie e 20
Sec 3.7 Damage from Leaking Pipes and FIXTUIES..........ccouiiiiiiiieiiiiee e 20
Sec 3.8 Backflow Protection and Cross-Connection Control Program...........ccccecveeviieeiineennne 20
Sec 3.9 Gray Water Systems and Rainwater Collection SyStems ..........ccccceevvvieiiiieniiieenieeee 22
Sec 3.10 Special Cases — Unusual or Hazardous Materials..............cccceeivieniiiiiien e 22
SeC 3.11 Pressure REHEf VAIVES. .........ooiiiiiiii s 22
SEC 3.12 INLErrUPLIONS IN SEIVICE. ....eiiiiiieeiiiieeiiee ettt et e st e e b e e nes 22
SEC 3. 13 INQrESS ANU EQIESS ....uvveeiuiiieiieieeeitie e sitee ettt ettt st e b e e snb e e anae e e enbee e e 22
ARTICLE 4 Conservation OFQINANCES.........cccuuiiiiaiiiaiieiie ettt 22
Sec 4.1 Water Shortage Contingency COMPIANCE..........ccocvvieeiiiiiiee i 22
SEC 4.2 POO0IS AN TANKS. .....eeiiiiiieiie ettt 23
ARTICLE 5 APPLICATIONS FOR WATER SERVICE ......cooiiiiie et 23
SeC 5.0 ApPlICatioN REQUITEM .........vvieeeiiiiii e e s e ae e e e s enaaee e 23
SEC5.0.1 RCSD CapaCity t0 SEIVE......ccciiiiiii ettt e s e e e s nbaee e 23
Sec 5.0.2 Capacity to Serve Determination ............cccveeeiiiiieee i 24
SEC5.0.3 APPHCALION FEES .. .vviiiiiiiiie et 24
SeC 5.0.4 Payment fOr PreVIOUS SEIVICE .......cciiuviieei i e e saaee e 24
Sec 5.1.0 Service Applications CatEQOIIES ........uvviieiiiiiee ettt 24
SeC5.1.1EXIStING CONNECTIONS. ......uviiieiiiiiee e ittt e ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e nnaaee e 27
Sec 5.1.2 Modification Of CONNECLIONS..........uiiiiiiiieiiie e 27
Sec 5.1.3 Application for Access to Public Water SYStem ..........ccccceeiiiiiiie i 28
Sec. 5.2.0 WIll Serve Letters (CAVEALS) ......ueeciiiiiie ettt e s tee e e e e e saaae e e 28
Sec. 5.2.0.1 Ownership or Written PermiSSION........ccuuiieiiiiire et siaaee e 28
Sec. 5.2.0.2 Executed Development or Water/Sewer Connection Agreement...............ccvee..n. 28
Sec. 5.2.0.3 County BUilding PEIrMIT..........coeiiiiiiiie et 28

Page 4 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 56 of 130



SeC 5.2.0.4 RCSD COMMUTMENT LIMITS ...oeeren ettt e e e e e e e e e e e s 28

Sec. 5.2.0.5 RCSD Fire Flow Commitment Limited to Existing Conditions.............cccccceeviieeennee. 29
Sec. 5.2.0.6 Applicant Commitment to Water Shortage Contingency Plan............ccccceevvennee 29
Sec. 5.2.0.7 Payment of CONNECLION FEE.......ccouiiiiiiieiiie e 29
Sec. 5.2.0.8 Completed Construction / Final INSPection ............cccoviiiiiiiiiiiee e 29
Sec 5.3 Water/Sewer CONNECtioN AGrEEMENT...........uiiiiieiiiie et 30
Sec 5.3.1 Administration Fee and Engineering DEPOSIT ..........cooveiiiiieiiiee i 30
Sec 5.3.2 Water/Sewer Connection Agreement; Improvements to District Water System
RCTo 0T =To F TSP UPRRROUPRPTI 31
Sec 5.4.0 New Connections WaItiNg LISt .........cc.uueiiiiiiiiieiiiie e 32
1. Capacity Shortage NOTITICALION. .........ccoiiiiiiiii e 33
2. Capacity Availability NOtIfICAtION ..........ccuiiiiiiiiiie e 33
3. Applicant Prepared t0 ProCEEA .........cuuiiii it e e 33
4. Applicant DeclineS tO PrOCEEA ........ccoiiiiiiii et 34
5. Capacity Availability TIME FramMe .........ooviiiiiiii e 34
Article 6 PROVISIONS FOR WATER MAIN EXTENSIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS TO DISTRICT WATER
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEIM ...ttt ettt ettt e ekt e e e et e e e e e bbn e e e e anbnee e 35
LYo S Y o] o] o 1 [o] o ISR OUPPRRRR 35
Sec 6.1 Applicability OF AFTICIE 4........oooiiieieee e 35
Sec 6.2 Extension or Improvement of Facilities, Main Extension and Development Agreement
R CTo U =0 PSPPSR 36
Sec 6.2.1 Application for Extension or Improvement of Facilities, Main Extension................... 36
SEC 6.2.2 ProjeCt APPIOVAL......eii it 36
Sec 6.2.3 Installation and Ownership of Extension of FaCilities ............ccccccvviiieeiiiiiie e, 37
Sec 6.2.4 Inspection of PUBIIC WaterWOrKS ..........coooviiiiiiiiiic e 37
SEC 6.2.5 SIZING OF FACHHTIES. .. .eeeeiiiiiie et e e e e s srbaae e 37
Sec 6.2.6 Deposits and Payment Of COSES........uvuiiiiiiiiiie e 37
Sec 6.2.7 As-Built Drawings and Proof of Service Certification............cccccceeviiiieeiiiiiiec e, 38
Sec 6.2.8 Project Bonding and First Year Warranty Responsibility.............cccocceiiiiiiiciiiiinnnenns 38

Page 5 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 57 of 130



Sec 6.2.9 Documentation Of PrOJECE COSES. ...coiviiiiiiiiiiiie ittt 38

Sec 6.2.10 Cost Reimbursed Dy the DISTIICT.........cooiiiiiiiiiiie s 39
Sec 6.2.11 Environmental Impact Report Charge ..........cccooiiriiiii e 40
Sec 6.3 Easements Or RIGNt OF WAYS .......ccooiiiiiiiiiie e 40
Sec 6.4 Persons authorized to Perform WOrK ..o 40
SEC 6.5 Grate SEAKES ......coiiiiiiiiiei ettt 40
Sec 6.6 Compliance with Local RegUIALIONS............cuiiiiiiiiiiie e 41
SEC 6.7 Protection Of EXCAVATION........cc.uiiiiiiiieiiie e 41
Sec 6.8 Design and CoNStruction StaNUArdS ...........ccveeiiiiriiiie i 41
Sec .9 Completion of Water Improvements REQUITEd ............coovviiiiiiiiiiieeiiee e 41
ARTICLE 7 Construction and Installation ReQUIrEMENTS ...........eeiiiiiiiiiie i 41
Sec 7.1 Unauthorized SErvice CONNECLIONS ..........eeirieiieiieeiie ettt 41
SeC 7.2 INStAllation OF SEIVICE ......coiiiiiiiiiee s 41
Sec 7.3 Connection and Meter Installation FEES ..o 42
Sec 7.4 Determination of Service Line and Meter Siz€ ..........cccooveiiiiiiiiiiciieeee e 42
Sec 7.5 Supply t0 Separate STIUCLUIES ........ccoiiiviiie it raree e 43
Sec 6.6 ACCesSOry DWEING UNITS ......cvvvieiiiiiiie et saree e 43
Sec 7.7 No Service to AdJacent ParCelS .........cocuvviiiiiiiiic e 44
SeC 7.8 Separate OWNEISNIPS. .....ccuiiie ettt e e e st e e e e s sraaaa e 44
Sec 7.9 Multiple SErviCe CONNECLIONS .........eiiiiiiiiee it e e e e e e eaaee e 45
SEC 7.10 PArcel SUDAIVISIONS ........coiiiiiiiiiieiie e 45
ARTICLE 8 INSPECTIONS ... .t eiiiie ettt e e e e et e e e e et e e e et e e e e et e e e e enb e e e e e e nbneeeeennes 45
Sec 8.1 Changes in Owner’s Equipment, Operations or Water Demand (look back)................. 45
Sec 8.2 Inspection of Private (Customer Lateral) Water Service Installation..................cccvveen 46
SEC 8.3 INSPECLION FEES....ciiiiiiii e ittt ettt e e e e e e e e e e st b e e e s asb e e e s anaaeeeeas 46
Sec 8.4 Required AdVANCE NOTICE .....cccoiiiiie et e e e s saaae e 46
SeC 8.5 NOrmMal WOrKiNg HOUIS ........coiiiiiiiie ettt e e saaee e e 47
Sec. 8.6 Site Inspections After Installation 0f SEIVICE .........cevveiiiiiiii i 47

Page 6 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 58 of 130



ARTICLE 8 METERS ...t 47

SEC 9.01 INSTAIATIONS ...ttt 47
Sec 9.02 Service ConNections and Charges ..........oooueeeiiiie i 47
SeC 9.03 Meter INSTAllAtIONS ........coiiiiiiieiee s 47
Sec 9.04 Change in LOCAtioN OF METEIS ........uiiiiiie i 48
SEC 9.05 SiZ€ AN LOCALION ......eeiiiiiiiieiie ettt 48
SEC 9.06 ANGIE METEE STOP ..eeiviieeiiiiee ittt ettt ettt e et e et e e e be e e e nes 48
SEC 9.07 METEI TESES ...ttt ettt 48
Sec 9.08 Adjustment for Meter Errors—Fast MEters .........cccceiiiiiiiiie e 48
Sec 9.09 Adjustment for Meter Errors—SIoW METErS .........c.eviiiiiiiiiie e 49
SeC 9.10 NON-REQGISTEIING IMETEIS. .....oi ittt 49
SEC 0. 11 IMETEI ACCESS ...ttt ettt ettt n bt e e 49
Sec9.12 AbandonNMENT Of SEIVICES .......ccuuiiiiiiiiiiie e 49
SeC 9.13 Penalty fOr VIOIAtION ..........oiiiiiiiee ittt e e 50
ARTICLE 10 BILLING ...ttt ettt et e et e e e ek e e e e e e e e e e nbneeeeennes 50
SEC L0.1BIlING PEIIOA ...t e e e e e s naaae e 50
SEC 10.2 METEI REAUING .....cvieie ettt s e e e e e e et e e e e e b e e e e snnaaeee e 50
Sec10.3 0pening and CloSiNG BillS.........cuvvriiiiiiiie e 50
SEC 10.4 WALl ChAITES ... viiee ettt e e e et e e e et e e e e e b e e e e annbaeee e 50
SeC 10.5PaymMeENt OF BillS........cocoiiiiiiieiiiie e 50
SeC 10.6 Billing Of SEPArate IMELEIS ........vvviieiiiiiie et 51
S€C 10.7 CUSTOMEN'S GUANANTEE ... ..ciiiiiiieiiiieitiee it 51
Sec 10.8 Water Used Without Application Being Made ............ccccveeiiiiiii i 51
SeC 10.10 DAMAQES TO MEBLEIS ... .uviiiiiiiie ettt e e e e e e e e e e e nnanees 51
Sec 10.11 Water Leak RElIET POIICY .......cuviiieiiiiiie ettt rna e 51
ARTICLE 11 DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE.......co it 52
Sec 11.1 Discontinuance of Service for Delinquent Bills............ccccooiiiiiiii e, 52
SEC11.2Charges @aDebt ........ooii i 52

Page 7 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 59 of 130



SEC 11.3 RECONNECTION CNAIGE ... ieiii ittt 52

SEC 11.4 UNSAFE APPAIATUS ......vveeeiiiee ittt ettt ettt et e e et e e st e e et e e snee e e neeeenes 53
SEC 11.5 CroSS-CONNECTION ....eeiiiiiiie ettt 53
SEC 11.6 Fraud OF ADUSE .....cc.viiiiieiie e 53
Sec 11.7 Non-Compliance With REQUIALIONS...........cuviiiiiiiiiiie e 54
Sec 11.8 Use of Water Without APPlICATION ........cooiiiiiiiiiiiie e 54
SEC 11.9UP0oN VacatiNg PreIMISES ......ccuuiiiiiie it aitiee ettt ettt aee et e s sbae s e e e nes 54
SeC 10.10 AbandonmMENt Charge.........cuueeiiiie ettt 54
ARTICLE 11 ENFORCEMENT OF PAYMENT ..ottt 95
Sec. 11.1 Collection of DelinQUENt ACCOUNT ..........coiuiiiiiieeiie et 55
Sec. 11.2 Collection by Recordation of Lien Against Property.........ccccoveeveeeiiieeiiiee e 55
Sec. 11.3 Collection by Further Legal ACLION ..........coiuiiiiiiiiiie e 55
Sec. 11.4 Discontinuation Of SEIVICE. .........iiiiiiiieiiieiie e 56
Sec. 11.5 Collection of Delinquent Charges on Tax ROl ...........cocooieeiiiiiiiii e 56
Sec. 11.6 Alternative Method of COIIECLION..........cccviiiiiiiiiic e 57
Sec. 11.7 Remedies are CUMUIATIVE .........c.eiiiiiiiiiiieiiie e 57
Article 12 ENFORCEMENT OF ORDINANCE ......cooiuiiiiiiie ittt 57
Sec. 12.1 Penalty for Violations of Ordinance. ...........cccooiiiiie i 57
Sec. 12.1.1 Discontinuation of Service for VIolation.............cccociiiiiiiiiiiciecc 57
Sec 12.1.2 Relief 0n APPHICALION........ccoiiiiiii e 58
Sec12.1.3 Relief 0N OWN MOTION .....ooiuiiiiiieie e 58
Sec12.1.4 Board RUIINGS FINAL .........oviiiiiiiie et raaae e 58
Sec 12.1.5 Falsifying of INTOrMation. ............coouiiiiiiiiie e 59
SeC 12.1.6 COStS and ATLOINEY’S FEES .. .uviiiieiiiiiie ettt eabree e 59
ARTICLE 13 FIRE PROTECTION ....eetieiiiiiei ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e e enees 59
SeC 13.0 PUBIIC FIre PrOtECLION ....covviiiiiiiie e 59
SeC 13.0.1Use Of FIre HYAIants. .......ccooiuiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e e 59
Sec 13.0.2 Moving Of Fire HYArants. .........oeeeiiiiiie it arne e 59

Page 8 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 60 of 130



SeC 13.1 Private Fire ProteCHION SEIVICE ... ..ot e s 59

SEC 13.1.1 PAYMENT OF COST. .iiiiiiiiie ittt sttt e e e e aneee 59
Sec 13.1.2 No Connection t0 Other SYSTEM. ........coiiii i 60
SEC 1313 USE. ittt 60
SEC 13 1.4 IMELEI RALES. ...ttt 60
SEC 13. 1.5 MONTNIY RALES. ..ot e e 60
SeC 13.1.6 Violation Of AQIreEMENT.........uiiiiiii e 60
Sec 13.1.7 Water Pressure and SUPPIY. ..o 60
Sec 13.1.8 Fire Service CONNECLION RUIES. ........cceiiiiiiiieiii e 60
ARTICLE 14 RATES AND FEES ...ttt ettt e e 61
SEC 14.1 CONNECLION FREI. ...ttt ettt 61
Sec 14.2 Monthly Rates and Charges: .........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 61
SeC 14.3 SyStem EXPANSION FEE .......ciiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e e aaa e 61
SeC 14.4 ReCONNECTION CNAIQES: .. .vviiei ittt e e e e e e e s e e e e e naareeeeans 61
SBC LA.5 DBPOSITS: .eittiiee e ittt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e abar e e e e nbraeaean 62
SEC. LA.6LALE FEES ...ttt 62
SEC LA.7 BUIK WALET ...ttt ettt ettt 62
Sec 14. 8 NoNnprofit Irrigation RALE ..........evveiiiiiiie e 62
Sec 14.9 Rates, fees and penalties are set by Resolution of the District Board of Directors...... 62
ARTICLE 15 - TIME OF TAKING EFFECT ...ttt 62
Sec 15.1 - This ordinance shall take effeCt ... 62

Page 9 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 61 of 130



ARTICLE 0 PURPOSE AND POLICY

Sec. 0.1 Purpose.

This Water Ordinance sets uniform requirements for providing public water supplies by Redway
Community Services District (hereinafter referred to as "District") to its customers and enables the
District to comply with drinking water supply requirements set by the California Department of
Drinking Water and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. The purpose of this ordinance is to
provide for maximum possible beneficial public use of the District's water supply facilities through
adequate regulation of water supply and usage, and to provide procedures for complying with
requirements placed upon the District by other regulatory agencies.

Sec. 0.2 Scope.

This ordinance shall be interpreted in accordance with the definitions set forth herein. The
provisions of this ordinance will apply to the supply of water to District customers through the
District’s Water Infrastructure. This Ordinance provides for the setting of user rates, charges, and
fees for the equitable distribution of water supply costs among all District customers. It also provides
for an Application for Water Service procedure for new customers which procedure allocates the
District’s limited water supply to new customers dependent upon the then current capacity of the
District to supply water to customers in the amounts applied for. This ordinance also provides for the
regulation of water connection construction in areas within the District, the use, inspection and
relocation of water meters, water rate billing procedures, and methods of enforcement of the
requirements of this Ordinance.

The District Standard Specifications and Standard Details are hereby made a part of this Ordinance
including other standards and codes referenced herein and referenced in the Standard Specification
and Details. The Standard Specifications and Details are "Dynamic"” documents and shall be revised
periodically to reflect changing regulations, design and construction methods, materials and
test/inspection procedures. Revisions to the Standard Specifications and Details will not require this
Ordinance to be modified.

Page 10 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 62 of 130



Article 1 - DEFINITIONS

Sec 1.1 Applicant

Shall mean any person or group of persons who initiates a request for water service from the
District by filing an application for water service or a water installation. The applicant shall be the
owner of the premises to be served by the water facilities for which the application is filed, or the
authorized agent of the owner.

Sec 1.2 Board
Shall mean the Board of Directors of the District.

Sec 1.3 Connection

Shall mean the pipeline and appurtenant facilities such as the curb stop, meter and meter box used
to extend water service from a water main to a customer’s premises, the laying thereof and the
tapping of the main. Where services are divided at the curb or property line to serve several
customers, each such branch service shall be deemed a separate service.

Sec 1.4 Connection Fees

Shall mean a one-time charge paid when a new connection is made to the District Water System.
The fee is based on the capital cost of capacity and represents a reimbursement to the District's
ratepayers for providing available capacity to future users of the water system. By paying this fee
new customers have participated equally with existing rate payers in sharing the capital cost of
water system capacity.

Sec 1.5 Cost
Shall mean the cost of labor, material, transportation, supervision, engineering, consultants,
attorneys and all other necessary overhead expenses.

Sec 1.6 Cross-Connection

Shall mean an unprotected actual or potential physical connection between the District’s potable
water system used to supply water for drinking purposes and any other source or system containing
unapproved water or a substance that is not or cannot be approved as safe, wholesome, and
potable, whereby water from the unapproved source may be drawn into the District’s water
distribution system and expose drinking water to contamination or pollution due to the backflow or
back-siphon of contaminants or pollutants through the water service connection.

Page 11 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 63 of 130



Sec 1.7 Customer

Shall mean an individual, company, association, partnership, or public or private corporation to
whom the District provides water service. The customer shall be the owner of the premises to which
the water is provided.

Sec 1.8 Customer Lateral

Shall mean the customer’s water supply facilities necessary to serve water from the connection of
the District’s water supply facilities at the meter assembly to the building(s) intended to receive
water located on the customer’s premises.

Sec 1.9 District
Shall mean the Redway Community Services District its Directors, officers, staff or authorized
representatives.

Sec 1.10 Main

Shall mean water lines in streets, highways, alleys, and easements used for public and private fire
protection or for general distribution of water for residential, irrigation, industrial, and municipal
purposes.

Sec 1.11 Meter
Shall mean any device used for measuring the quantity of water delivered to a customer.

Sec 1.12 Meter Box

Shall mean a plastic or cement utility box owned by the District and used to house and protect the
water meter and angle meter stop, which is a valve on the District’s side of the water meter used to
shut and lock off water service to a customer’s premises.

Sec 1.13 Non-potable

Shall mean water which does not meet the drinking water standards as specified under the
California Safe Drinking Water Act. Non-potable water includes recycled water, which is
wastewater which has been treated in order to be suitable for uses other than potable uses; and
untreated water meaning raw surface or groundwater that has not been treated and does not meet
drinking water standards.

Sec 1.14 Notice of Completion
Shall mean the legal notice recorded by the District with the County Recorder upon completion of a
project.

Page 12 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 64 of 130



Sec 1.15 Owner

Shall mean the person owning the fee or the person in whose name the legal title to the property
appears, by deed duly recorded in the County Recorder’s office, or the person in possession, or the
executor, administrator, guardian, or trustee of the owner.

Sec 1.16 Potable/Treated Water
Shall mean water which has been treated to meet the drinking water standards specified in the
California Safe Drinking Water Act.

Sec. 1.17 Person
Shall mean an individual or a company, association, co-partnership, trust, or public or private
corporation.

Sec 1.18 Premises
Shall mean a lot or parcel of real property, or contiguous lots or parcels of real property under one
ownership, including easements appurtenant to such premises.

Sec 1.19 Street
Shall mean any public highway, road, street, avenue, alleyway, public place, public easement, or
right-of-way.

Sec 1.20 Private Fire Protection Service
Shall mean water service and facilities for building sprinkler systems, hydrants, hose reels, and other
facilities installed on private property for fire protection and water available, therefore.

Sec 1.21 Public Fire Protection Service

Shall mean the service and facilities of the entire water supply, storage, and distribution system of
the District used for public fire protection, including the fire hydrants affixed thereto, and the water
available for fire protection, excepting residential service connections.

Sec 1.22 Regular Water Service
Shall mean water service and facilities rendered for normal residential, commercial and industrial
facilities or purposes on a permanent basis, and the water available, therefore.

Sec 1.23 Commercial Agriculture Water Service

Shall mean water facilities and service delivered and used for the growing and raising of agricultural,
horticultural and/or floricultural products in conformity with recognized practices of husbandry, for
the purposes of commerce, trade or industry. This service provides agricultural customers with
either potable or nonpotable water depending on availability. These customers must have an

Page 13 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 65 of 130



agricultural operation involving a minimum of five acres of land in the case of outside cultivation, or
a minimum of (to be determined) square feet in the case of indoor cultivation.

Sec 1.24 Temporary Water Service
Shall mean water service and facilities rendered for construction work and other uses of limited
duration as established by the District on a case-by-case basis and water available for such uses.

Sec 1.25 District Engineer
Shall mean the Engineer employed and acting for the Board of Directors and shall be a Registered
Civil Engineer.

Sec 1.26 Permit
Shall mean any written authorization required from the District pursuant to this or any other
regulation of the District for the installation of any water service.

Sec 1.27 Applicant

Shall mean the person making application to the District for a permit for a water service installation,
who shall be the owner of premises to be served by the water service for which a permit is
requested, or his authorized agent.

Sec 1,28 Contractor
Shall mean any individual, firm, corporation, partnership, or association duly licensed by the State of
California to perform the type of work to be done under the permit.

Sec 1,29 Single Family Living Unit
A living unit shall mean any residence, trailer, recreational vehicle, mobile home, habitation or other
structure customarily occupied by a person or family containing bath and kitchen facilities.

Sec 1.30 Multiple Service Connection,

When more than one service connection is placed on the same parcel of property and each is
conducting a separately established residence or business, a water meter may be required and
installed for each occupancy.

Where there is a preexisting multiple use service from one meter, there will be additional accounts
and charges for each additional commercial, professional, dwelling, or living unit situated upon the
premises not served by an individual meter, and the cost shall not be less than the established
minimum for each such use.

Page 14 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 66 of 130



Sec 1.31 Water Service Connection
Shall mean the physical water facilities owned by the District including those consisting of the
following:

(@) The service lateral assembly, which includes the tap to the main, connection valve,
service lateral, and curb stop which connect the water main to the meter.

(b) The meter assembly, which may include the meter, meter box and vault, a valve
on the customer’s side of the meter, and a backflow device.

Water service connections extend water service from the distribution main to the meter by means
of a District owned service lateral, and from the meter to the premises by means of a Customer
Lateral pipeline. Where services are divided at the curb or property line to serve several customers,
each such branch of service shall be deemed a separate service requiring a separate meter.

Sec 1.32 Accessory Dwelling Units

An accessory dwelling unit (“ADU’) is an attached or detached residential dwelling unit built on
a lot with existing or proposed housing and provides complete independent living facilities for
one or more persons. It shall include permanent facilities for living, sleeping, eating, cooking,
and sanitation on the same parcel of property as a single family or multifamily dwelling is or
will be situated. An ADU may be constructed as (1) detached from the primary residential
structure, (2) attached to the primary residential structure, (3) conversion of existing space in a
primary residential structure such as master bedroom, attached garage, storage area or similar
area; or (4) conversion of the space within a separate accessory structure on the same parcel
such as a detached garage, barn, pool house, studio or other similar structure the use of which
is incidental to the use of the primary residential structure on the parcel.

Sec 1.33 Single Family Residence Equivalency (SFRE)
(A volume of monthly water use as defined in the RCSD Water Use Evaluation by Water Works
Engineering 1/15/2016)

Sec 1,34 Use/Unit Equivalency

Use/ Unit equivalency rates are based upon the nature of the business as it relates to the potential
impact of water use on the district’s system and its water capacity, as well as the number of
staff/occupancies, and the number of additional sinks, toilets and tubs/showers.

Residential use/unit equivalency rates are based on a single-family residence. Each residence,
whether separate or connected to another residence will be considered a unit for billing purposes.

Page 15 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 67 of 130



Sec 1.35 Additional Definitions

For the purposes of this ordinance, additional terms shall have the meaning indicated in Chapter 1
of the most recent edition of the “Uniform Plumbing Code” adopted by the International
Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials.

Page 16 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 171, 2017

Page 68 of 130



Be it ordained by the Board of Directors of the Redway Community Services District, Humboldt
County, California, as follows:

ARTICLE 2 GENERAL RULES

Sec 2.1 Short Title
This ordinance shall be known as and may be cited as the Redway Community Services District
Water Code.

Sec 2.2 Rules and Regulations

The following rules and regulations respecting provision of water and connections to the water
supply, storage, and distribution facilities of District are hereby adopted, and all work in respect
thereto shall be performed as herein required and not otherwise.

Sec 2.3 Purpose

This Ordinance is intended to provide certain minimum standards, provisions, and requirements for
design, methods of construction, and use of materials in water facilities and water service
connections hereafter installed, altered, or repaired. This Ordinance shall not apply retroactively
and in the event of an alteration or repair hereafter made, it shall apply only to the new materials
and methods used therein.

Sec 2.4 Words and Phrases

For the purpose of this ordinance, all words used herein in the present tense shall include the
future; all words in the plural number shall include the singular number; and all words in the
singular number shall include the plural number.

Sec 2.5 Water system

The District’s water system consists of all facilities, improvements and system components used
for and useful in obtaining, conserving, and distributing water for public and private uses, including
all parts of the system, all appurtenances to it, and lands, easements, rights in land, water rights,
contract rights, franchises, and other water supply, storage and distribution facilities and
equipment.

Sec 2.6 Separability

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phase of this ordinance is for any reason held to be
invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of
this ordinance.

Page 17 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 69 of 130



Sec 2.7 Pressure Conditions

All applicants for service connections or water service shall be required to accept such conditions of
pressure and service as are provided by the distributing system at the location of the proposed
service connection, and to hold the District harmless for any damages arising out of low pressure or
high-pressure conditions or interruptions in service.

Sec 2.8 Maintenance of Water Pressure/Interruption of Service

The District shall not be responsible for the maintenance of pressure, and it reserves the right to
discontinue service while making emergency repairs due to natural disasters or other circumstances
beyond the District’s control. Customers that are dependent upon a continuous supply should have
independent emergency storage. The District shall not be liable for damages that may result from
an interruption in service from a cause beyond the control of the District. Temporary shutdowns
may be made to make improvements and repairs. Whenever possible all customers affected will be
notified prior to making such shutdowns. The District will not be liable for interruption, shortage,
pressure increase or loss, insufficiency of supply, or for any loss or damage occasioned thereby, if
caused by accident, act of God, fire, strikes, riots, war, or any other cause not within its control.

Sec 2.9 Tampering with District Property

No one, except a certified employee or representative of the Board with a certified employee, shall
at any time in any manner operate the curb cocks or valves, main cocks, gates or valves of the
Districts’ system, or interfere with meters or their connections, street mains, or other parts of the
water system.

Sec 2.10 Penalty for Violation

For the failure of the customer to comply with all or any part of this ordinance and any ordinance,
resolution or order fixing rates and charges of this District, a penalty for which has not hereafter
been specifically fixed, the customer’s service shall be discontinued and the water shall not be
supplied such customer until they have complied with the rule or regulation, rate or charge which
was violated or, in the event that they cannot comply with said rule or regulation, until they have
satisfied the District that in the future they will comply with all the rules and regulations established
by ordinance of the District and will pay all rates and charges.

Sec 2.11 Notice to Customers

Notice from the District to a customer will normally be given in writing, and either delivered or
mailed to him/her at his/her last known address. Where conditions warrant and in emergencies,
the District may resort to notification either by telephone or messenger.

Page 18 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 70 of 130



Sec 2.12 Correspondence from Customers
A customer or their authorized representative may present correspondence to the District Board of
Directors or to the District Office

ARTICLE 3 General Use Ordinances

Sec 3.1 Efficient Water Use

All customers shall endeavor to use water efficiently, and not knowingly permit leaks or waste of
water. Where water is wastefully or negligently used on a customer’s premises, which in the
opinion of the District affects the general water service, the District has the authority to discontinue
the service after giving written notice to the customer and to levy such penalties as may be
permitted by law and the District’s rules and regulations.

Sec 3.2 Responsibility for Facilities

All facilities installed by the District for the purpose of supplying water service shall remain the
property of the District and will be maintained, repaired, or replaced by the District. The
property owner shall use reasonable care in the protection of the facilities. Any person who
damages such facilities, and any property owner who knowingly or negligently permits such
damage to occur will be liable to the District and subject to applicable legal remedies as
provided for under these rules and regulations and California law. No person shall place or
permit the placement of any object in a manner which will interfere with the District’s free
access to its water service connection or access to a meter box which would interfere with
reading of a meter. The District may require a property owner to convey an easement or right-
of-way for the protection or maintenance of water system facilities located on private property.

Sec 3.3 Damage to Water System Facilities

The customer shall be liable for any damage to the service facilities when such damage is caused by
an act of the customer or his tenants, agents, employees, contractors, licensees or permittees,
including the breaking or destruction of locks by the customer or others on or near a meter, and any
damage to a meter that may result from tampering, hot water or steam from a boiler or heater on
the customer’s premises. The District shall be reimbursed by the customer for the costs of any such
damage promptly on presentation of an invoice for such damages...

Sec 3.4 Customer Control Valve

The customer valve inside the meter box is provided to allow the customer to turn water off in
case of emergencies. Said customer valve shall be the property of the District. The customer
shall be responsible, at its sole cost and expense, for the operation, maintenance and repair of

Page 19 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 71 of 130



the customer valve and for any damage or liability that may arise in connection with the use of
the customer valve.

Sec 3.5 Curb Stop

Every service connection installed by the District shall be equipped with a curb stop on the inlet side
of the meter. The curb stop is intended for the exclusive use of the District in controlling the water
supply through the service connection pipe. If the curb stop is damaged by the customer’s use,
repair or replacement of the curb stop shall be at the owner’s sole expense.

Sec 3.6 Changes in Customer's Equipment

Customers making any material changes in the size, character, or extent of the equipment or
operations utilizing water service, or whose change in operations results in a large increase in the
use of water, shall immediately give the District written notice of the nature of the change and, if
necessary, amend their application to provide for installation of a larger meter.

Sec 3.7 Damage from Leaking Pipes and Fixtures

When turning off the meter to a house or property which is vacant, the District will attempt to
determine if water is running. If the water meter shows that water is running, the District will shut
off the water at the customer valve. However, the District’s jurisdiction and responsibility cease at
the end of the service connection at the meter and in no case will the District be liable for damages
caused by water running from open or faulty fixtures, or from broken or damaged pipes beyond the
District’s meter connection.

Sec 3.8 Backflow Protection and Cross-Connection Control Program
A. The purpose of this program is to: (1) protect the public water supply against actual
or potential backflow due to cross-connections between the customer’s water system and
the source of contamination; (2) eliminate existing connections between potable drinking
water systems, non-potable water systems and other sources of contamination; (3) prevent
the making of cross-connections in the future; and (4) provide for a continuing program of
backflow prevention and cross-connection control. The District’s Cross Control Protection
Program is attached hereto as Appendix A and incorporated herein by this reference.

B. It is the responsibility of the District to protect the public water supply system from
contamination due to unprotected actual or potential cross-connections. It is the intent of
the Cross-Connection Control Program to prevent such contamination in accordance with
state law and regulations. It shall be the customer’s responsibility to comply with the
District’s Cross-Connection Control Program requirements as a condition of receiving and
continuing to receive water service. When, in the judgment of the District, a backflow
prevention assembly is required to protect the public water system, it shall be the

Page 20 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 72 of 130



responsibility of the customer to install, test, and repair the backflow assembly at the
customer’s expense. Ownership of the backflow prevention assembly will remain with the
customer.

C. The District adopts by reference the current California Code of Regulations entitled
“Regulations Relating to Cross-Connections” as said regulations may be revised or amended
from time to time (the “Regulations”), and the State Water Resources Control Board’s Cross
Connection Control Handbook, Standards and Principles for California’s Public Water
Systems (12/19/23) (the “Handbook”).

D. The District is responsible for applying and enforcing the Cross-Connection Control
Program. In doing so all state and local laws, regulations, codes and the Handbook will be
followed as they may apply to the program. The District shall evaluate the degree of actual
or potential health hazard to the public water system as may be created by all water
services, both existing and new. This evaluation shall be conducted by onsite inspections
and onsite re-inspections as needed. In conducting an evaluation of a customer’s premises
private wells will be considered an actual hazard to the public water system and appropriate
backflow prevention will be required.

1. The type of protection that shall be provided to prevent backflow into the
public water system shall be commensurate with the degree of hazard that exists, or
has the potential to exist, on the customer’s premises. The type of protective device
that may be required includes double check valve assembly, reduced pressure
principle backflow prevention device, and air gap separation. The customer may
choose a higher level of protection than required by the District.

2. Backflow protection will be required on premises with the following: where
hazardous substances are handled in any manner that may enter the potable water
system; irrigation systems into which pesticides, herbicides or fertilizers may be
injected; any unapproved auxiliary water supply; certain fire systems; where entry is
restricted limiting inspections for cross-connections; and where there is a repeated
history of cross-connections.

E. The customer shall own and is responsible for the installation, testing, repair
and/or replacement of all backflow prevention assemblies at their expense as
required by the District and backflow prevention assembly shall be installed in
accordance with District standards. The customer is responsible to send the
appropriate copy of the periodic test to the District in a timely manner along with all

Page 21 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 73 of 130



information on repairs and parts used. Testing of backflow prevention assemblies
shall be conducted by competent backflow prevention assembly testers certified by
the County of Humboldt and approved by the District. The customer shall not alter,
remove or replace any backflow prevention assembly without prior written approval
of the District.

Sec 3.9 Gray Water Systems and Rainwater Collection Systems

Gray water systems shall comply with Title 24, Part 5 of the California Plumbing Code and any
county regulations. To comply with California Code of Regulations Water System Protection
Requirements, backflow protection on the customer’s potable water meter will be required if the
gray water or rainwater system has a hard-wired distribution system or is connected by any means
to an irrigation system existing on the property.

Sec 3.10 Special Cases - Unusual or Hazardous Materials

In special circumstances, when the customer is engaged in the handling of especially dangerous or
corrosive liquids or industrial or process waters, the District may require the customer to eliminate
certain plumbing or piping connections as an additional precaution and as a protection to the back-
flow preventive devices.

Sec 3.11 Pressure Relief Valves.

As a protection to the customer’s plumbing system, a suitable pressure relief valve must be installed
and maintained by the customer at the customer’s expense when check valve or other protective
devices are used. The relief valve shall be installed between the check valves and the water heater.

Sec 3.12 Interruptions in Service.
The District shall not be liable for damage that may result from an interruption in service from a
cause beyond the control of the District.

Sec 3.13 Ingress and Egress

Representatives from the District shall have the right of ingress and egress over the customer's
premises at reasonable hours for any purpose related to the provision of water service. The District
shall provide employees with appropriate identification to be shown to the customer upon request.

ARTICLE 4 Conservation Ordinances

Sec 4.1 Water Shortage Contingency Compliance
All customers shall be required to comply with RCSD’s Water Shortage Contingency Plan when
activated by resolution of the board. Changes to the Water Shortage Contingency Plan may be

Page 22 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 74 of 130



made by resolution of the board to accommodate existing conditions of resource availability,
system function or other emergency conditions.

Sec 4.2 Pools and Tanks.

When an abnormally large quantity of water is desired for filling a swimming pool or other
purposes, arrangements must be made with the District prior to taking such water. Permission to
take water in unusual quantities will be given only if it can be safely delivered through the District’s
facilities and if other consumers are not inconvenienced thereby. A copy of procedures will be given
along with permission.

ARTICLE 5 APPLICATIONS FOR WATER SERVICE

Sec 5.0 Application Required

Each person applying for service connection or activation must complete an application in the
manner and on a form prescribed by the District prior to making any connection (Existing building
service connections, new construction for single family residences and small developments - no
improvement of RCSD facilities or main extension required). Such application shall include a signed
affirmation of the customer’s willingness and intention to comply with this and other ordinances or
regulations of the District relating to water service. The Applicant shall either be the Owner, or
receive written permission from the Owner of the property to connect to the District’s water
distribution system,

The application shall contain the legal description of the property to be served and the Assessor
Parcel Number of the property. The application shall be accompanied by a map or plot plan showing
the location of all proposed connections. The applicant shall submit a copy of the plans and
specifications submitted to the Humboldt County Building Department and any other plans and
specifications and proposed water consumption estimates that may be required by the District in
connection with the application. The application form is available at the District office. The District
may modify application forms from time to time without modification to this ordinance.

The District will perform a feasibility evaluation and a capacity analysis of the applicant’s Project
based on the description of the Project and the estimated water demand of the Project specified in
the application.

Sec 5.0.1 RCSD Capacity to Serve

Redway CSD's intent is to provide s water service to properties within the RCSD Service Area. From
time-to-time demand for new connections to the District's water system may exceed the capacity of
RCSD's existing infrastructure and/or water sources to provide services. Such lack of capacity may

Page 23 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 75 of 130



be due to a variety of factors including, but not limited to, water supply limitations due to drought;
limitations in the District’s water treatment system to provide sufficient amounts of treated water
on a long-term or short-term basis as required by current customer demand and anticipated
demand from new connections; limitations imposed on the District’s permits to provide water
supply to its customers by state and/or federal authorities.

Sec 5.0.2 Capacity to Serve Determination

Should the District Engineer determine, after review of the Application, plans and specifications for
the Project, Applicant’s water usage estimates, and the District’s water usage estimates for
Applicant’s Project that the District’s water distribution or treatment system lack the capacity, or
sufficient water supply, to meet the demands of Applicant’s project, the Applicant will be notified in
writing by District of such current lack of capacity. The Application will then be handled pursuant to
the provisions of Section 4.4.0 (formerly section 4.19) of this Ordinance. If, on the other hand, the
District Engineer determines that the District’s water distribution and/or treatment systems provide
sufficient capacity and water supply to meet the demands of Applicant’s Project, the Applicant will
be provided a Will Serve letter pursuant to Section 4.2.0 hereof, and will be required to execute a
Water/Sewer Connection Agreement with the District as provided in Section 4.3.0.

Sec 5.0.3 Application Fees

Application fees are charged for the District Engineer to perform a feasibility evaluation and
capacity analysis of the Applicant’s Project and for the District to open a file for the applicant. The
amount of the application fee is set forth in the Appendix B (Water Ordinance Rates and Charges) of
this Ordinance. These fees are non-refundable. These fees represent reimbursement of the costs
incurred by the District in initially evaluating the feasibility of supplying water to the applicant’s
project as described in the application and are payable at the time of the submission of the
Application.

Sec 5.0.4 Payment for Previous Service

An application will not be honored unless payment in full has been made for water service
previously rendered to the property that is the subject of the application, and any other premises
owned by the applicant located within the jurisdictional boundaries of the District.

Sec 5.1.0 Service Applications Categories
Applications for RCSD Water Service will follow processes appropriate to the projects being
proposed.

A simple reactivation of service for an existing connection will follow a different course than new
construction involving small residential or commercial projects, or a large project involving a
subdivision consisting of many residential units or large commercial or industrial projects.

Page 24 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 76 of 130



Therefore, the District considers several types of development classifications, and each classification
will require slightly different application processing procedures. A list of new connection
classifications is specified below. The criteria to determine which path an application to provide
service to new construction will follow are as follows:

1. Single Family Residential Classification

A Project involving new construction involving 4 or less single-family residential
dwelling units, or a multiple housing unit with four (4) or less residential units; or
A commercial or industrial project comprising 1500 sq. ft. or less of floor space.

Upon approval of the Application by the District, the applicant will be required to enter into
a Water/Sewer Connection Agreement with the District pursuant to Section 4.3 hereof. This
is the least restrictive development classification.

2. Small Development Classification

A Project involving new construction involving 5 or more single family residential
dwelling units, or a multiple housing unit with 5 or more residential units; or

A commercial or industrial project comprising more than 1500 sg. ft. of floor
space; or

A residential, commercial or industrial project requiring the Applicant to construct new
water system improvements to be incorporated into the District’s water system and
dedicated to the District.

Upon approval of the Application by the District, the applicant will be required to enter into
a Water/Sewer Connection Agreement with the District pursuant to Section 4.3 hereof
which incorporates the provisions of the Operations Plan.3. Large Development
Classification

A Project satisfying all of the criteria of the Small Development Classification which also
meets the following criteria: (1) a Tentative and Final Subdivision Map is required by the
County; and/or (2) environmental review and documentation is required under CEQA
consisting of either an Environmental Impact Report (EIR) or a Mitigated Negative
Declaration; and/or (3) the Project is located outside of the District’s jurisdictional
boundaries and annexation into the District is required; and/or (4) the Project’s projected
water demand on the District’s Water System exceeds the amount of (need amount).

3. Large Development Classification

Page 25 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 77 of 130



Proposed Large Developments will complete an initial application and move directly to a
review by the RCSD Board of Directors and commencement of negotiations upon a
Development Agreement between the Applicant and the District. Large Developments will
not receive a Will-Serve letter from RCSD until approved by the RCSD Board. A description of
the process required for approval of Large Developments can be found as Appendix E Large
Development Process of this Ordinance.

4. Commercial Agriculture Producer Classification

A Project involving the use of a building(s) and/or property for the growing and raising of
agricultural, horticultural and/or floricultural products including cannabis in conformity with
recognized practices of husbandry, for the purposes of commerce, trade or industry. This
water service provides agricultural customers with either potable or nonpotable water
depending on availability. These customers must have an agricultural operation involving a
minimum of five acres of land in the case of outside cultivation, or a minimum of 1500
square feet in the case of indoor cultivation. Projects within this classification are subject to
special requirements consisting of (1) a water use forbearance period from May 15 to
October 1 during which time the District lacks water system capacity to serve the Project and
will limit an applicant’s water usage to less than or equal to 500 CU/FT per month during the
forbearance period; and (2) a water usage cap on the amount of water to be provided to the
Project by the District to no more than 12,200 CU/FT per year. If itis necessary for the Board
to declare a water conservation emergency before May 15 in any year, the forbearance
period will begin on the date that the water conservation emergency declaration goes into
effect.

Projects within this classification are required to submit with the application an Operations
Plan prepared by a certified Professional Engineer which addresses the following issues: (1)
project description including but not limited to amount of indoor and/or outdoor space
dedicated to cultivation; number of growing cycles to be harvested each year; anticipated
sources of electricity, water and refuse collection; hours of operation; (2) a cultivation plan
which addresses characteristics of the plant beds; amount and method of disposal of
drainage from planting beds; sources of plants to be cultivated; usage plan for grow lights
including hours of operation; methods of mixing water with nutrients, description of all
nutrients and fertilizers to be used, and methods of application of water and nutrients to
plants; methods of pest control including pest control agents to be used; odor control
measures; methods of storage and disposal of plant waste products; nature and extent of
plant processing or drying; (3) an employee plan outlining the number of employees and
whether full time or part time and what PPE will be provided to employees; (4) water source,

Page 26 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 78 of 130



storage and anticipated water demand, including number and capacity of mixing tanks,
storage tanks, and dehumidifiers; anticipated daily, monthly and annual water use;
anticipated daily, monthly and annual water sourced from recycled water from
dehumidifiers, water storage tanks on site, and to be supplied by the District; methods for
sourcing water during the water use forbearance period; and methods for complying with
the District’s annual water supply cap; (5) a security plan in cases of cannabis cultivation; (6)
noise sources and mitigation measures; (7) parking and road plans; (8) light pollution and
control; (9) nature and extent of usage and storage of hazardous materials; (10) sewage
disposal and waste management plan.

Upon approval of the Application and the Operations Plan by the District, the applicant will be
required to enter into a Water/Sewer Connection Agreement with the District pursuant to Section
4.3 hereof which incorporates the provisions of the Operations Plan.

Sec 5.1.1 Existing Connections

Activation of an Existing Connection to the District requires applicant to submit an application
pursuant to Section 5.0 and to sign a Water/Sewer Connection Agreement pursuant to Section 5.3
hereof.

Sec 5.1.2 Modification of Connections

These projects also require that the applicant submit an Application pursuant to Section 4.0 and to
sign a Water/Sewer Connection Agreement pursuant to Section 4.3 hereof. These projects will
require submission of project plans and estimated water use as part of the contents of the
Application. The District will prepare a feasibility analysis including an estimate of the impact of the
modification of the connection to the District’s capacity to serve the requested demand of the
applicant. Such a feasibility analysis may include evaluation of changes in water use, service to
separate structures, and review of changes in equipment, operations or water demand or projected
usage. A finding in such a feasibility analysis that such a project will have a “significant impact” on
water usage may require installation of a separate meter and payment of a separate connection fee.
Projects with projected water use that remains within a 100% variation from calculated SFRE
volumes for the existing connection will not be deemed to have significant impact.

However, determination of Significant Impact and/or modification of connections to provide for a
detached ADU or other multiple dwelling units on a single parcel may require installation of an
individual unit meter and payment of a separate connection charge for each newly constructed
detached ADU or other multiple dwelling unit on a single parcel under single ownership.

Page 27 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 79 of 130



Sec 5.1.3 Application for Access to Public Water System

An application is also required prior to uncovering, making any connection with, opening into, using,
altering, or disturbing the District’s public water system, service meter box, or any appurtenances
thereto.

Sec. 5.2.0 Will Serve Letters (Caveats)

When the review of the Application by the District is complete and the District has determined that
the District’s water system has the capacity to provide sufficient water supply and treatment to
meet the demands of Applicant’s Project as specified in the application, the District will provide a
Will-Serve letter to each applicant for water service certifying that the District is willing to provide
water services to the applicant subject to the availability of water at the time of the Applicant’s
request for connection to the District’s water distribution system, and subject to the District having
sufficient capacity to accept new connections to its water distribution system at the time that the
Applicant requests connection of the Applicant’s premises to the District’s water distribution
system. All such Will-Serve letters shall be subject to the following conditions:

Sec. 5.2.0.1 Ownership or Written Permission

That the Applicant either be the Owner or receive written permission from the Owner of the
property to connect to the District’s water distribution system, which written permission shall
constitute a part of the Application filed by the Applicant.

Sec. 5.2.0.2 Executed Development or Water/Sewer Connection Agreement

That the Applicant execute a Water/Sewer Connection Agreement with the District in the form
provided by District as described in section 4.3 of this Ordinance (hereinafter referred to as the
District Agreement).

Sec. 5.2.0.3 County Building Permit

That the Applicant secure a building permit from the County of Humboldt for any improvement
project on the premises that will be connecting to the District’s water distribution system and be
ready to commence construction within sixty days after execution of the District Agreement.

Sec 5.2.0.4 RCSD Commitment Limits

That the District’s commitment to provide water to the Applicant’s premises is limited to the water
demand associated with those improvements to the premises that are specified in the Application
submitted by the Applicant to the District and specified in the District Agreement. The District’s
commitment to provide water for the Applicant’s Project is also conditioned upon both the
availability of sufficient water to serve the Applicant’s Project at the time Applicant requests
physical connection of the Project to the District’s water system, and the District having sufficient

Page 28 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 80 of 130



capacity to accept new connections to the District’s water system at the time the Applicant requests
physical connection to the District’s water system

Sec. 5.2.0.5 RCSD Fire Flow Commitment Limited to Existing Conditions

That the District’s commitment to provide fire flow services to the Applicant’s premises is limited to
the storage and pressure conditions existing in the District’s distribution system at the time the
District Agreement is as executed by all parties. The District’'s commitment to provide fire flow
services is also conditioned upon the Applicant securing written approval for fire flow requirements
to Applicant’s premises from the local public agency having jurisdiction over the fire protection
standards governing Applicant’s premises and submission of a copy of such written approval to
District.

Sec. 5.2.0.6 Applicant Commitment to Water Shortage Contingency Plan
That the Applicant commit to observing the District’s Water Ordinance and Water Shortage
Contingency Plan regarding water shortages when such conditions are in effect.

Sec. 5.2.0.7 Payment of Connection Fee

That the Applicant pay a water connection fee for connection to the District’s water system in the
amount in effect when the District Agreement has been executed by all parties, all plans for
improvement projects to Applicant’s premises have been approved by the County, all improvements
comprising the Applicant’s Project including have been completed and inspected by District, and
Applicant is ready to physically connect to the District’s water distribution system. During such
times as a water shortage condition has been declared by the District, or when the District lacks
sufficient water supply and/or distribution capacity to serve the Applicant’s premises, the time
when water connection fees must be paid will change pursuant to the District Policy regarding
Procedures for Allocation of Water Supply and Distribution Capacity in Times of Limited Capacity
detailed at Section 4.4 of this Ordinance.

Sec. 5.2.0.8 Completed Construction / Final Inspection

That the Applicant complete construction of all main extensions or other improvements to the
District’s water distribution system required by District to the satisfaction of the District; that the
District formally accept dedication of all such improvements and related property rights and
easements from the applicant; that the Applicant and any general contractor retained by applicant
shall have provided all applicable warranties and bonds and that such warranties and bonds remain
in full force and effect, and that all District costs and expenses associated with Applicant’s project
shall have been reimbursed by Applicant.

Page 29 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 81 of 130



Sec 5.3 Water/Sewer Connection Agreement

Once the District determines that its water and sewer systems have the current capacity to serve
the Applicant’s project, and the District has issued a Will Serve letter, the District will request that
the Applicant enter into a Water/Sewer Connection Agreement with the District.

The Agreement for Water System Connections assures that the District is reimbursed for all of its
administrative, engineering, design and associated legal costs incurred in completing its processing
of the application; reviewing and commenting on revisions to the plans and specifications for the
water distribution components of any improvement project on the Applicant’s premises; inspection
of any construction; and preparing and completing all required environmental documentation for
such components. The Agreement also describes the conditions that must be satisfied by the
Applicant for water to be provided by District to Applicant’s Project.

The Agreement provides that the applicant shall advance an amount equal to the estimated costs to
be incurred by the District in completing the processing of the application, reviewing revisions to
the plans and specifications for the project, reviewing easement and real property title issues, and
reviewing any plans and specifications and inspecting the construction of any improvements to the
District’s water system to be constructed by Applicant and connected to the District’s system, if any.
If the amount of funds advanced by the Applicant exceeds the District’s actual costs of
administration, engineering, design, legal, inspection and other charges attributable to the
proposed project, the balance shall be refunded to the Applicant upon connection to the District’s
water system. If the amount of the deposit is insufficient to pay all of the District’s costs incurred
with respect to the project with respect to administration, engineering, design, legal, inspection and
other costs attributable to the project, the Applicant shall replenish the funds advanced to the level
specified in the Agreement to cover such additional costs at the request of the District, and the
District shall have no obligation to continue its processing of the application or its acceptance of the
project until such additional deposits have been received. The Agreement also specifies the amount
of connection and meter installation fees payable by the Applicant as a condition of connection to
the District’s water distribution system and requires payment of those fees to the District in
consideration for the District’s agreement to provide water service to the premises of the Applicant.

Sec 5.3.1 Administration Fee and Engineering Deposit

Once this Water/Sewer Connection Agreement is signed, the applicant must pay the water
administrative fee deposit and the engineering fee deposit to initiate work on the project. The fees
and deposits will be made in cash, check or warrant (which must clear the bank before further work
is done). The administrative fee is a non-refundable charge that reimburses the District for costs
incurred for District staff time involving assistance to the Applicant regarding processing of the
application, preparation and negotiation of the Agreement for Water/Sewer Connections,

Page 30 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 82 of 130



responding to inquiries from the applicant and meetings with the applicant, time scheduling and
bookkeeping. The administrative fee is charged on an hourly basis at the rates specified in Appendix
B to this ordinance. The engineering fee is a charge to reimburse the District for engineering costs
incurred in processing the application, inspection costs, development plan review, and real property
title and easement review. The engineering fee is charged on an hourly basis at the rate specified in
Appendix B to this ordinance. As District incurs costs in reviewing Applicant’s Project, District shall
use the administrative fee deposit and engineering fee deposit to reimburse the District for such
costs and expenses. Should such deposits be insufficient to reimburse all the administrative and/or
engineering costs incurred by District, Applicant will be requested to make additional advances to
the District following receipt of a written notice requesting such additional advances to cover
additional costs to be incurred by the District in performing its development review tasks. If
applicant does not deliver the requested additional funding amount to the District within fifteen
days after request, District will have no obligation to proceed with its review and approval of the
Applicant’s application and plans and specifications until such additional advances are received.
Upon request District will provide to Applicant a summary of how the Applicant’s deposits and
advances have been spent and the unexpended balance remaining. To the extent the funds
deposited and advanced by Applicant towards the administration fee and the engineering fee
exceed the final amount of costs incurred by the District in performing such administrative and
engineering tasks, any balance remaining in such administrative fee account and/or engineering fee
account will be refunded to the Applicant.

Sec 5.3.2 Water/Sewer Connection Agreement; Improvements to District Water System
Required

The Water/Sewer Connection Agreement contains several specific provisions that are applicable
only to those projects that require improvements to the District’s water system to be constructed
by the Applicant pursuant to District standards and dedicated to the District upon completion. The
standards applicable to the construction of such improvements are specified in Article 5 of this
Ordinance. These contractual provisions are specifically initialed by both the applicant and the
District for only those projects requiring such improvements. Such contractual provisions include
the following:

A. Performance Bond and a Payment Bonds

The Applicant/Developer will be required to provide two separate bonds in the name of the
District in the amount of 100% of the estimated costs of the construction of all water main
extensions and related improvements, using prevailing wage rates. The first bond shall be a
Performance Bond issued by a surety company admitted doing business in the State of
California as an insurer, maintained during the entire life of the Agreement at the expense of

Page 31 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 83 of 130



Applicant/Developer, and shall guarantee the faithful performance of all aspects of the work
of improvements specified in the Agreement. The second bond shall be the payment bond
required by Division 4, Part 6, Title 3, Chapter 5 of the Civil Code of California, shall be in the
amount of 100% of the estimated cost of the improvements at prevailing wage rates, and
shall guarantee the payment of wages and materials, supplies, or equipment used by all
contractors and subcontractors in the performance of the work specified in the Agreement.

B. Indemnification of District

The Agreement requires that the Applicant/Developer agree to defend, indemnify, and hold
harmless the District from any and all claims, actions, liability, damages, and costs, including
attorney’s fees, resulting from or arising out of: (1) the design or construction of the water
main extension or any water system improvements by Applicant/Developer; (2) the approval
of the agreement by District; or (3) any environmental review or approval process with
respect to the improvements.

C. Construction Warranty

The Applicant/Developer will be required in the Agreement to furnish a Construction
Warranty Bond in the amount of 25% of the final cost of the installed improvements to
secure the warranty of the Applicant/Developer against defective workmanship and
materials for a period of 2 years from the date of District’s acceptance of such
improvements.

D. Payment of Prevailing Wage

Any contractor retained by the Applicant to construct the water main extension or other
water system improvements to be dedicated to District shall select a general contractor duly
licensed to perform such work who is acceptable to District, and execute and form of
construction agreement with that general contractor that requires the payment of prevailing
wages to all laborers working on such project as required by Labor Code section 1771 et seq.
and contains the bonding, indemnification an warranty requirements specified in
subsections A, B and C above.

Sec 5.4.0 New Connections Waiting List

The provisions specified in this section apply when the District has determined that it lacks sufficient
water supply and/or water system capacity to meet the estimated water usage demands of the
Applicant’s Project pursuant to Section 4.0.2 of this Ordinance. In order to fairly allocate this

Page 32 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 84 of 130



essential, finite resource the District must provide for allocation procedures for water supply and
distribution in times of limited capacity that (1) provide property owners with assurance that upon
completion of their project, physical connection to the District’s water system could be made; and
(2) prevent hoarding and speculating on water capacity by applicants who do not immediately
intend to construct their project but who desire a District commitment to provide water capacity.
The purpose of these procedures is to make water system capacity available on a fair and
nondiscriminatory basis to those Applicants who are in need of immediate water supply and can
reasonably guarantee that they are prepared to immediately develop their property and physically
connect to the District’s water distribution system, and simultaneously to provide the District
sufficient funding to plan for and provide for water distribution system improvements essential to
increase capacity to serve all existing customers and future applicants. To accomplish these
purposes the following procedures shall apply to allocation of water supply and distribution in times
of limited capacity:

1. Capacity Shortage Notification

Upon the filing of an application and payment of the application fee the applicant will be
notified by the District as to whether sufficient water supply capacity exists to meet the water
demands required for the Applicant’s projected use of the premises. If water supply capacity is
limited at the time an application is received, applicant shall be notified by the District in
chronological order of the date their Applications are received, and each such application shall
receive a designated number based on the chronological date of its receipt.

2. Capacity Availability Notification

At such time as the District develops one or more capital improvement projects to increase
water supply capacity, , in the sole discretion of the District, applicants will be notified in writing
by the District in chronological order of the receipt of their applications, that sufficient capacity
is anticipated to exist at the time such capital improvement project(s) is completed to provide
sufficient water capacity to meet the demands specified in their particular application,
conditioned upon the applicant’s compliance with all of the provisions in Articles 4 and 5 of this
Ordinance. The anticipated date that sufficient capacity is expected to be available due to the
completion of such water capacity projects shall be stated in the notice.

3. Applicant Prepared to proceed

If an applicant desires to proceed with its application after receipt of such notice of anticipated
available capacity from the District, the District will agree to reserve capacity for that
Applicant’s projected use of its premises upon payment of all applicable connection fees and
meter installation fees by the Applicant at the rates in effect on the date of the notice by District
to applicant of sufficient anticipated capacity to provide water to Applicant’s premises or

Page 33 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 85 of 130



project. Such connection fees must be paid within two months of the date of notice from the
District to Applicant of anticipated sufficient capacity to serve the Applicant’s project. Failure to
pay such connection fees will result in withdrawal of the application. However, an Applicant may
elect to defer all or a portion of its application for water service provided the Applicant delivers
written notice of such deferral to the District within one month of the receipt of the notice from
District of anticipated available capacity and deposits with the District a deferral fee in the
amount listed in the Appendix B Current Rates and Charges per single family residential
equivalent unit. Upon payment of such deferral fee, the Applicant’s application will not be
deemed withdrawn, but will be placed on a supplemental chronological application list. An
Applicant may reinstate such application within twenty-four (24) months of payment of the
deferral fee upon written notice to the District at which time such application shall have
precedence over other applications filed after the date of payment of the deferral fee as water
supply capacity becomes available.

An applicant may renew its deferral of its application one time prior to expiration of the initial
deferral period of twenty-four (24) month period by providing written notice to District of such
renewal and payment of a deferral renewal fee as specified in Appendix B. Such renewed
deferral period shall not exceed a period of twenty-four (24) months. By payment of the deferral
renewal fee, an applicant may reinstate its application for the renewed deferral period during
which time such application shall continue to take precedence over other applications filed after
the date of payment of the initial deferral fee by an applicant. All deferral fees paid by an
applicant will be credited against the ultimate connection fees payable by that applicant.

4. Applicant Declines to Proceed

If an Applicant does not wish to proceed with Applicant’s Project at the time of such notice of
anticipated available capacity, the next Applicant on the chronological list of Applicants will be
given the opportunity to reserve such capacity in the District’s water distribution system upon
payment of all applicable connection charges. This process of allocation of available capacity to
applicants in the chronological order of the date of receipt of their Applications will continue
until the District determines that all anticipated available water supply capacity to be provided
to such capital improvement projects has been committed. If an applicant declines to proceed
with its project after deferral of its application and payment of a deferral fee, the District will
compute its administrative costs regarding capacity notifications, administration of the
chronological application list, and communications with the applicant, and refund any remaining
balance to the applicant.

5. Capacity Availability Time Frame

Page 34 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 86 of 130



In order to assure utilization of available capacity within a reasonable period of time, all
applicants who have agreed to proceed with their projects upon receipt of notice of anticipated
available capacity and payment of the required connection fee must physically connect to the
District’s water distribution system and within twelve (12) months of the date of completion of
the capital improvement project providing additional available water supply capacity specified in
section 2 above.

Article 6 PROVISIONS FOR WATER MAIN EXTENSIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS
TODISTRICT WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM

Sec 6.0 Application

After receipt of an application for a water service connection, the District shall determine whether a
main extension and/or other improvements to the District’s water system infrastructure are
necessary to provide such service. A main extension or other such improvements shall be installed
in the manner provided in this section whenever the District determines that such a main extension
or other such improvements are necessary to provide regular water service to the property
described in the application.

Unless a water main extension and other related improvements are part of a District Capital
Improvement Project, the District expects the Applicant for a water main extension to complete all
design and construction work of such extension and related improvements at Applicant’s sole
expense. Upon receipt of the Application, the District Engineer shall make an investigation of the
proposed water extension and submit his or her opinion of the estimated cost thereof to the
General Manager. All plans and specifications for the water main extension and related
improvements must be submitted for evaluation and approval by the District Engineer prior to
construction, must comply with all District Standard Specifications and Details, and must be
prepared by a registered Civil Engineer. The Applicant must provide the required application,
acceptable plans and specifications for required improvements approved by District in writing, and
an executed Water/Sewer Connection Agreement prior to commencement of any work.

Sec 6.1 Applicability of Article 4

All the provisions of sections 4.0 through 4.4 shall be applicable to all Applications requiring a water
main extensions or other improvements to the District’s water distribution system to be
constructed by the Applicant.

Page 35 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 87 of 130



Sec 6.2 Extension or Improvement of Facilities, Main Extension and Development
Agreement Required

When water service is requested for property within the District which does not have an adequate
water distribution main, an extension or improvement of the District’s system shall be required.
Such facilities may include, but not be limited to, water mains, water storage tanks, valves, fire
hydrants, public water services, service meter boxes, pressure regulating valves and booster
stations. Minimum standards for the design and construction of water facilities within the District
shall be in accordance with the applicable provisions of District ordinances, master plans, rules and
regulations and with the District Standard Specifications and Standard Details heretofore or
hereafter adopted by the District, copies of which are on file in the District office. The District or the
District Engineer may permit modifications or may require higher standards where unusual
conditions are encountered.

Sec 6.2.1 Application for Extension or Improvement of Facilities, Main Extension

An extension or improvement of District facilities shall be initiated by completing an application and
depositing an application fee pursuant to the provisions of section 4.0. Such applications will also
require the execution of a District Agreement between the applicant and the District pursuant to
the provisions of section 4.3. The application shall become null and void under the following
conditions:

a) The application shall become void ninety (90) days following date of issue unless a District
Agreement has been signed by both the District and the applicant pursuant to section 5.2
hereof.,

b) The application and District Agreement shall both be void and terminated eighteen (18)
months after execution of the District Agreement unless construction has been completed
and accepted in writing by the District. Extensions of time may be granted upon request by
the applicant and approval in writing by the District.

Sec 6.2.2 Project Approval

Design documents accompanying extension or improvement applications shall be reviewed by the
District. If further information or redesign is required by the District, the applicant shall furnish such
additional material or information before such application shall be considered further. All such
designs shall be certified and stamped by an engineer registered to practice in the State of California
and all design and material specifications shall be in accordance with standard specifications
approved by the District. Upon District approval, the design shall be incorporated into the District
Agreement.

No actual construction or fieldwork shall begin until the District Agreement has been signed by all
parties.

Page 36 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 88 of 130



Sec 6.2.3 Installation and Ownership of Extension of Facilities

The Applicant shall have the facilities constructed and installed by an experienced, competent
contractor approved by the District. The District reserves the right to construct, with its own
personnel or by contract, at cost to the applicant, taps or connections to existing pipes and any
other complex or difficult construction which may be crucial to proper operation and function of
District facilities, in the opinion of the District. Upon completion, final inspection and acceptance in
writing by the District, the newly constructed water facilities shall be owned and operated by the
District as part of its water system. All fire hydrants installed on the District water system shall be
constructed to District specifications and dedicated to the District upon completion of installation
and written acceptance by the District. All such water system facilities shall be installed in
easements or rights of way dedicated to and accepted by the District.

Sec 6.2.4 Inspection of Public Waterworks

All public water system construction shall be inspected by personnel of the District during
construction. In making a connection to a water main, no physical alterations of the District’s
facilities shall commence until an inspector is present.

Sec 6.2.5 Sizing of Facilities

The size of water facilities required to be constructed by the applicant pursuant to the District
Agreement will be determined by the District based upon the water system capacity required to
serve the proposed development, plus additional capacity required to be served through the same
facilities to serve potential development beyond the boundaries of the applicant’s project. Water
facilities that may be required to be oversized include, but are not limited to, water mains, pumping
stations and water storage facilities.

Sec 6.2.6 Deposits and Payment of Costs
The Applicant shall pay the District’s actual costs including, but not limited to:

a) Engineering analysis, designs, plan review or preparation of environmental impact
documents, hearings, review or preparation of improvement plans, construction inspection,
as-built drawings, project management and usual overhead expenses allocated to such work.

b) The Applicant shall deposit with the District the District’s estimate of engineering review,
inspection and project administrative costs prior to improvement plan review/approval and
performance of additional work. Such costs will be deducted from the deposit periodically
(usually monthly). The applicant shall maintain a positive balance at all times. Failure to do so
may result in automatic withdrawal of approval of the application.

i) Upon completion of the work, if the amount deposited with the District is less than
actual costs, the difference shall be paid to the District prior to acceptance of the facility.

Page 37 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 89 of 130



i) Any amount deposited in excess of actual cost will be refunded to the applicant following
acceptance of the facility.

Sec 6.2.7 As-Built Drawings and Proof of Service Certification
Upon completion and final inspection by the District, Applicant shall submit a complete set of as-
built drawings of the facility acceptable to the District.

After all conditions for acceptance of the facility have been met, the District will issue written
certification of proof of service to the County Building Department.

Sec 6.2.8 Project Bonding and First Year Warranty Responsibility

Prior to commencement of construction of any of the infrastructure improvements to be
constructed by the Applicant under the Agreement, Applicant or its contractor shall furnish bonds
covering the faithful performance of the construction or installation activities required under the
agreement, and the payment of all obligations arising hereunder as specifically required in this
ordinance.

a) The premiums for the bonds shall be paid by Applicant or its contractor.

b) The Applicant shall deliver the required bonds to the District not later than the date of
commencement of the work for each phase of work.

c) Said bonds shall be issued by a surety company acceptable to the District duly licensed to
issue bonds in the State of California, and shall be in the amount of 100% of the estimated
construction costs, as determined by the District, for the next phase of construction to be
then undertaken by applicant for faithful performance, and 100% of estimated cost of labor
and materials, for the next phase of construction for payment of labor and materials.

d) Failure by the applicant to pay for any damage to District facilities described above after
being billed by the District will result in a lien being placed against the property by the
District.

e) The applicant, or the applicant’s contractor, shall submit a one (1) year warranty surety, a
bond, (in form acceptable to the District), certificate of deposit, or irrevocable letter of
credit, in an amount not less than twenty-five (25%) of the actual construction costs of the
facilities.

Sec 6.2.9 Documentation of Project Costs.

For projects involving District reimbursement or reimbursement by other users, the applicant shall
provide the District with copies of all invoices for materials, equipment, employed labor and District
costs for construction of the project marked “PAID” and signed by the applicant or his authorized
agent.

Page 38 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 90 of 130



Sec 6.2.10 Cost Reimbursed by the District

a.

Reimbursement of reasonable costs to an applicant for extension of permanent

facilities required to be larger than needed by the applicant may be made pursuant to the District
reimbursement policies outlined in the following section and the execution of a separate
Reimbursement Agreement between District and Applicant.

b.

The District will collect and disperse funds for partial reimbursement of oversized

facilities constructed by others through execution of a Reimbursement Agreement under the
conditions set forth below.

)

ii)

The District shall be under no obligation to make any reimbursement payment
whatsoever, except as outlined in this section and in the Reimbursement Agreement. All
guestions as to the meaning of any portion of this section shall be as interpreted by the
District.
Proposed facilities must be constructed in accordance with plans and specifications
approved by the District. The District may require that the facilities have sufficient
capacity not only to serve the applicants’ areas, but other areas beyond, or in addition to
the applicant’s areas.
Any applicant who requires service through facilities or improvements constructed by
others pursuant to a Reimbursement Agreement and who did not contribute to the cost
of construction shall pay a pro rata reimbursement fee in addition to all other required
charges prior to service being provided. An administration charge of ten (10) percent
shall be added to the reimbursement fee, to compensate District for administration of
the Reimbursement Agreement. An area of benefit which identifies parcels having
access to the constructed facility shall be determined at the sole discretion of the District
and a map of the area shall be attached as Exhibit A to the Reimbursement Agreement.
The District shall make an estimate of future use within the area of benefit based upon
knowledge and investigation of those same factors by which sizing of the constructed
facility was determined. This total projected future use calculated in terms of single
family residential equivalent units, assigned to the mapped area of benefit plus the
verified cost of the project constitute those factors by which a contractually obligated
reimbursement fee shall be calculated according to the following formula:

1. Rf=Reimbursement Fee.

2. Cp =Cost of project as determined in paragraph 3.01.9

3. Tc=Total capacity of facility expressed in Single Family Residential

Equivalent Units as determined solely by District.
4. HE =Number of Single-Family Residential Equivalents Units required by
Applicant’s parcel(s) or subdivision thereof.

Page 39 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 91 of 130



5. Where Rf = (Cp+Tc) x HE

iv) Each year, the District will disperse any collected reimbursement funds, less the
administrative fee, to the applicant who constructed the facilities, without interest.
Applicant shall keep the District informed of any change of applicant’s mailing address.

v) All obligations for reimbursement of any excess capacity costs to Applicant expire ten
(10) years following the date of transfer of title to District of the reimbursable facilities.
In no event shall reimbursement payments exceed total project construction costs less
capacity used by the original applicant/builder of the project.

vi) The Applicant’s rights to reimbursement funds shall not be transferable or assignable
without the express written consent of the District.

vii) Applicant shall be solely responsible for providing District with a current contact address
and phone number during the reimbursement period. District shall have no responsibility
to make reimbursement to applicants who cannot be contacted at the address and/or
phone number provided by the Applicant. Under such circumstances, reimbursement
amounts collected shall be retained by the District.

Sec 6.2.11 Environmental Impact Report Charge

Unless all such environmental processing has been done by the County or another agency, the
District may determine that an environmental impact study or report is required for a proposed
extension facility necessary to serve an applicant’s land. The applicant shall be responsible for the
costs of preparing such a study and/or report, including associated costs incurred by the District for
overhead, preparation, attorney’ fees, environmental consultants, and hearings.

Sec 6.3 Easements or Right of Ways

In the event that an easement is required for the extension of the public water or the making of
connections, the applicant shall procure and have accepted by the District proper easement or grant
of right of way sufficient in width to allow the laying and maintenance of such extension or
connection.

Sec 6.4 Persons authorized to Perform Work

Only properly licensed contractors shall be authorized to perform the work of community water
construction within the District. All terms and conditions of the permit issued by the District to the
applicant shall be binding on the contractor. The requirements of this Section shall apply to
waterlines installed concurrently with Public water construction.

Sec 6.5 Grade Stakes

A Registered Civil Engineer or Licensed Land Surveyor shall set grade and line stakes prior to the
start of work on any public water construction. The contractor shall be responsible for accurately
transferring grade to water invert.

Page 40 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 92 of 130



Sec 6.6 Compliance with Local Regulations

Any persons constructing a water line within a street shall comply with all State and County laws,
ordinances, rules and regulations. They shall obtain all permits and pay all fees required by the
department having jurisdiction prior to the issuance of a permit by the District.

Sec 6.7 Protection of Excavation

The applicant shall maintain such barriers, lights and signs as are necessary to give warning to the
public at all times that a water line is under construction and of each dangerous condition to be
encountered as a result thereof. He shall also likewise protect the public in the use of the sidewalks
against any such conditions in connection with the construction of the water. Streets, sidewalks,
parkways and other property disturbed in the course of the work shall be reinstalled in a manner
satisfactory to the District and any other person or agency having jurisdiction there over.

Sec 6.8 Design and Construction Standards

Minimum standards for the design and construction of water lines within the District shall be in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the ordinances, rules and regulations heretofore or
hereinafter adopted by the District, copies of which are on file in the office of the District. The
District may permit modifications or may require higher standards where unusual conditions are
encountered. “As-built” drawings showing the actual location of all mains, structures, valves and
laterals shall be filed with the District before final acceptance of the work.

Sec .9 Completion of Water Improvements Required

Before acceptance of any water improvements by the District and prior to the furnishing of any
water from the District, the water improvements shall be tested and shall be completed in full
compliance with all requirements of the accepted specifications and to the satisfaction of the
District.

ARTICLE 7 Construction and Installation Requirements

Sec 7.1 Unauthorized Service Connections

Construction of the service connection to the District’s water distribution system without making
application therefor to the District and without payment to District of all applicable connection
charges and other charges in accordance with this ordinance is not permitted.

Sec 7.2 Installation of Service

Service installations will be made only to property and/or easements appurtenant thereto abutting
on distribution mains that have been constructed in public streets, alleys, or easements, or to
extensions thereof as herein provided pursuant to the provisions in Article 5 hereof. Services

Page 41 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 93 of 130



installed prior to the construction of streets or in advance of street improvement must be accepted
by the applicant in the installed location.

Sec 7.3 Connection and Meter Installation Fees

The Applicant shall pay all water connection fees and meter installation fees. These fees are paid by
the Applicant at the time the project is ready to connect to the water service main. However, such
connection fees may be payable prior to connection to the District’s Water System during those
times in which the District lacks water supply capacity to serve all applicants as specified in section
4.4.0 of this Ordinance. The connection fee is a one-time charge paid when the connection is made
to the District’s Water System. The connection fee is comprised of a capacity fee and a meter fee.
The capacity fee portion is based on the capital cost of capacity and represents a reimbursement to
the District’s ratepayers for providing available water system capacity to future users of the
District’s water system. By paying this fee new customers have participated equally with existing
ratepayers in sharing the capital costs of the District’s water system capacity. The amount of the
capacity fee is dependent upon the water demand associated with the Applicant’s proposed use of
the premises as estimated by District and calculated in terms of single family residential equivalent
units as specified in Appendix B Current Rates and Charges to this Ordinance. The meter fee is
equivalent to the cost of installation of a water meter to monitor the amount of water distributed
through the new service connection and includes the charges for the service box, the meter, and
the installation of the meter. The current amount of the meter charges is set forth in Appendix B
Current Rates and Charges of this Ordinance.

Sec 7.4 Determination of Service Line and Meter Size

The District’s Standard Specifications and Details list the maximum flow rate, in feet per second,
allowable through any water service connection. The District’s normal single-family residential
service line size shall be 3/4 inch, to accommodate a 5/8 X3/4-inch meter. For all commercial,
industrial and other non-residential uses, the minimum required service line and meter size shall be
determined by the District based on information provided by the applicant regarding the estimated
maximum water consumption requirements of applicant’s project based on the number of single
family residential equivalent units assigned to such estimated water usage. The amount of
anticipated water usage is calculated in terms of single-family residential equivalents units and is
specified in Appendix B Current Rates and Charges (water use calculations) of this Ordinance. The
District will assign a service line size and meter size to the applicant’s project based on such
estimated annual water usage and the applicant will be required to pay a connection capacity fee
calculated on the basis of such estimated water usage measured in terms of single family residential
equivalent units plus the actual costs of meter installation. A customer may request a service line
and meter larger than that assigned by the District in anticipation of future increased water demand
as measured by single-family residential equivalent units, in which case the customer shall agree to

Page 42 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 94 of 130



pay all connection capacity charges and service charges associated with such larger expected future
water usage.

Sec 7.5 Supply to Separate Structures

Each house, structure, commercial or industrial building, dwelling unit, or dwelling unit within a
community housing project, shall require a separate application for water service and shall have a
separate service connection, including a separate meter.

Sec 6.6 Accessory Dwelling Units

a)

b)

Definition. An accessory dwelling unit (“ADU’) is an attached or detached residential
dwelling unit built on a lot with existing or proposed housing and provides complete
independent living facilities for one or more persons. It shall include permanent facilities
for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation on the same parcel of property as a
single family or multifamily dwelling is or will be situated. An ADU may be constructed
as (1) detached from the primary residential structure, (2) attached to the primary
residential structure, (3) conversion of existing space in a primary residential structure
such as master bedroom, attached garage, storage area or similar area; or(4) conversion
of the space within a separate accessory structure on the same parcel such as a detached
garage, barn, pool house, studio or other similar structure the use of which is incidental
to the use of the primary residential structure on the parcel. Such converted existing
space for an ADU may be limited to the footprint of the primary residential dwelling or
accessory structure or may be expanded beyond the existing footprint of the primary
residential structure or accessory structure. (Government Code section 65852.2 which is
incorporated herein by this reference).

ADU’S For Which No Separate Connection Is Required and No Connection Fee or
Capacity Charge Will be Imposed. ADU’s constructed entirely within the footprint of an
existing or proposed primary residence or other accessory structure on the same parcel
with separate exterior access (for which an additional 150 sq. ft. expansion beyond the
footprint may be added) and adequate side and rear yard setbacks are exempt from any
requirement to install a new or separate water meter connection. This class of ADU’s is
also statutorily exempt from connection fees and/or capacity charges imposed by the
District.

ADU’S For Which a Separate Connection is Required, and a Connection Fee or
Charge is Imposed. Newly constructed attached or detached ADU’s, and ADU” s which
consist of conversion of existing space in a primary residence or accessory structure
together with construction beyond the original footprint of the primary residential or

Page 43 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 95 of 130



accessory structure will be required to install a separate water meter connection directly
between the ADU and the District’s water infrastructure. A connection fee and/or
capacity fee will be imposed by the District on these types of ADU’s.

d) Proportional Capacity Fees/Connection Fees. The connection or capacity charge will
not exceed the estimated reasonable cost of providing the water service for which the fee
is imposed and will be calculated and imposed on a proportional basis. The calculated
amount of the connection fee/capacity charge shall be proportional to the burden of the
proposed ADU on the District’'s water infrastructure as compared to the burden of the
primary residence, measured by either the number of square feet of the ADU compared
to the primary residence, or as measured by the number of drainage fixture units (DFU)
values of the ADU compared to the primary residence. For example, using a square foot
proportional approach, a connection or capacity fee for a 1000 sq. ft. ADU should be half
or 50% of the capacity fee for a 2000 sq. ft. primary residence.

e) Newly Constructed ADU’s. ADU’s constructed concurrently with a new single family
dwelling on the same parcel will require a separate connection and water meter and will
be charged a connection fee/capacity charge equivalent to the connection fee/capacity
charge payable by a new single family residence, since a newly constructed ADU in
connection with the construction of a new primary residence is considered a new
residential use for capacity charge calculation purposes.

f) Monthly Fixed Rate Charges for ADU’s. Each ADU, whether separately metered and
subject to payment of connection fees/capacity charges or exempt therefrom, shall be
assigned one (1) Single Family Residential Unit for purposes of calculation and payment
of fixed monthly service charges based on a %-inch meter size rate. State ADU law does
not address monthly service charges for ADU’s.

Sec 7.7 No Service to Adjacent Parcels
No user of water supplied by the District shall supply water to adjacent parcels through that user’s
service connection.

Sec 7.8 Separate Ownerships

Each building under separate ownership must be provided with a separate service connection and
meter. Two or more existing buildings under the same ownership and on the same lot or parcel
may be supplied through the same service connection and meter.

Page 44 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 96 of 130



Sec 7.9 Multiple service connections
Multiple service connections for single parcel with single owner are allowed under these conditions:

A master meter is installed at the property line.

Metered service connections are provided for each subunit. Meters and valves will be
supplied and remain property of RCSD.

Supply line from the master meter to each of the units shall be installed and maintained by
owner.

Owner will be responsible for usage on master meter, determined by deducting each subunit
from master meter.

Sec 7.10 Parcel Subdivisions

Should the owner of a single property subsequently subdivide such parcel, then the portion of that
parcel not directly connected with the District’s water system through a separate service connection
must be connected with the District’s public water system through a separate service connection,
for which additional connection charges are payable. It shall be unlawful and a violation of this
ordinance for such owner to continue to use or maintain an existing service connection to the
District’s public water system for the purpose of providing an indirect connection to provide water
to an additional parcel through an existing service connection for which no separate application has
been filed. Any such indirect connections in existence prior to the adoption of this provision of this
ordinance shall be abandoned by the customer upon issuance of a written order from the District.
Any failure by an owner or customer to comply with such order from the District shall be
enforceable by discontinuance of service pursuant to SECTION 10.1.5 of this Ordinance.

ARTICLE 8 Inspections

Sec 8.1 Changes in Owner’s Equipment, Operations or Water Demand (look back)
Owners or customers making any material changes in the size, character, or extent of the service
connection or other equipment or operations upon the property utilizing District water service, or
whose changes in operations result in an increase in the use of water, shall notify the District not
less than ten (10) working days prior to commencement of any such work, or additions or
modifications to buildings or premises, or changes in the type of business or occupancy, which
would affect the amount of water used on the premises, and file a new application to enable the
District to determine whether a larger service line size or meter is required pursuant to the
provisions of this Ordinance, or whether the anticipated increase in annual average water use
associated with such changes will result in an increase in the number of single family residential
equivalent units assigned to the Owner’s use of District water from that determined at the time of

Page 45 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 97 of 130



application which would require the payment of a higher connection capacity fee than that initially
paid by the Owner at the time of connection to the District’s water distribution system.

If a larger service connection is ordered by the District, or if the changes in the Owner’s use results
in an increase in estimated water use and the number of single family residential equivalent units
assigned by the District to the Owner’s use from that determined at the time of application, the
Owner may be required to install a larger service connection as required by the District within the
time period specified by the District, and will be required to pay any applicable additional
connection capacity charges associated with such increased anticipated water usage. If no larger
service connection is required, additional documentation of water usage by the Owner beyond that
specified in the application may result in the payment of an additional connection fee represented
by the difference between the connection fee originally paid and the connection fee applicable to
the estimated number of single family residential equivalent units of water representing the
increased water usage associated with the Owner’s change in equipment or operations on the
premises. This fee represents the cost of increased water capacity assigned by the District to the
Owner’s initial water demand resulting from the Owner’s change in use of the premises since the
time of connection to the District’s water system.

Sec 8.2 Inspection of Private (Customer Lateral) Water Service Installation

The private water service shall be inspected by the District from a point within three (3) feet of the
structure or foundation of any structure on Owner’s premises to the point of connection to the
District’s public water service. No backfill shall be placed over any portion of a new service connection
or private lateral until the work has been inspected. Any excavation on public rights of way shall be
done only after permission has been received from the authority having jurisdiction thereof. Any
installation not approved by the District shall be redone or replaced at the expense of the applicant.

Sec 8.3 Inspection Fees

The inspection fee for all water connections is detailed in Appendix B Current Rates and Charges. An
additional inspection fee may be charged if the work is not ready for inspection or requires
additional inspections due to non-compliance with District Standard Specifications and Details. The
additional fee, if charged, will be calculated on a time and materials basis, at the rate shown in
Appendix B Current Rates and Charges.

Sec 8.4 Required Advance Notice

The applicant must notify the District at least three (3) working days in advance of making the
service connection to the District’s public water service or of any other work requiring inspection by
the District.

Page 46 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 98 of 130



Sec 8.5 Normal Working Hours

Service connections installed on the District’s public water system must be made during normal
working hours of the District and a District inspector must be present. The applicant may be
required to disconnect and reconnect the service connection for inspection purposes, if the District
is not notified as required herein. All inspections of private water services will be completed during
normal working hours of the District unless otherwise arranged and paid for by the applicant.

Sec. 8.6 Site Inspections After Installation of Service

The District reserves the right to inspect its service connections and the conditions of water usage
on a Customer’s premises in order to ensure that the Owner of the premises is in compliance with
all of the provisions of this Ordinance. Such inspections will typically occur when property
ownership changes; when the County issues a building permit for a parcel; when existing Customer
accounts are closed; when new Customer accounts are opened; and when water service is
discontinued.

ARTICLE 8 METERS

Sec 9.01 Installations

All services shall be metered. A sum of money, as set forth in EXHIBIT B—WATER RATES, CHARGES &
FEES, shall be deposited with the District prior to installation of the facilities to pay all or a portion of
the cost. The service connection, whether located on public or private property, is the property of
the District and the District reserves the right to repair, replace, relocate and maintain it, including
but not limited to removing it upon discontinuance of service.

Sec 9.02 Service Connections and Charges

The District will furnish and install a service of such size and at such location as the applicant requests,
provided such requests are reasonable and approved by District. The service will be installed from
the water distribution main to the curb line or property line of the premises, which may abut the
street, on other thoroughfares, or on District rights-of-way or easements. Charges for new services
are payable in advance and shall include charge for the service box, meter, meter installation, and
connection fee. Applicable rates and fees are set forth in EXHIBIT B—WATER RATES, CHARGES & FEES.

Sec 9.03 Meter Installations

Only authorized employees or agents of the District will be permitted to install a service connection
from the District's main to the customer's premises. Meters will be installed at the curb or within the
District easement and shall be owned by the District and installed and removed at its expense after
payment of the established charges. The District will not pay rent or other charge for a meter or other

Page 47 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 99 of 130



facilities, including housing and connections, located on a customer's premises. The District will seal
all meters at the time of installation, and no seal shall be altered or broken except as authorized by
the District.

Sec 9.04 Change in Location of Meters

Meters moved for the convenience of the customer will be relocated at the customer's expense.
Meters moved to protect the District's property will be moved at its expense unless improvements
made by the customer or meter tampering by the customer have caused the need for relocation. If
the lateral distance which the customer desires to have the meter moved exceeds eight (8) feet, he
may be required to pay for and install a new service at the desired location.

Sec 9.05 Size and Location

The District reserves the right to determine the size of service connections, meters and their location
with respect to the boundaries of the premises to be served. The laying of a customer’s pipeline to
the curb shall not be done until the District has approved the location of the service connection. The
installation, including the meter, shall be the property of the District. The service between the meter
and the building served by the installation (the “Customer Lateral”) shall be the private property of
the customer and shall be maintained by the customer at his expense. The District shall not be
responsible for leaks or damage to the Customer Lateral under any circumstances. The District’s
responsibility for damage to the service connection is limited to the facilities between the main and
the meter box. The District recommends that a valve be installed on the customer’s side of the water
meter if customer wishes to turn water off to the residence.

Sec 9.06 Angle Meter Stop

Every service connection installed by the District shall be equipped with an angle meter stop. The
stop is to be on the water main side of the service installation. Such stop is intended for the exclusive
use of the District in controlling the water supply through the service connection pipe. If the stop is
damaged by the customer's use, replacement shall be at the customer's expense. The District
recommends that a valve be installed on the customer’s side of the water meter if customer wishes
to turn water off to the residence.

Sec 9.07 Meter Tests

All meters are factory tested prior to installation. A customer may request that his/her meter be
tested by the District if he/she feels it is not reading accurately. See EXHIBIT B-WATER RATES,
CHARGES & FEES.

Sec 9.08 Adjustment for Meter Errors—Fast Meters
If a meter, tested at the request of a customer pursuant to Section 8.07, is found to be more than two
percent (2%) fast, the excess charges for the time service was rendered to the customer requesting

Page 48 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 100 of 130



the test or for a period of six months, whichever is less, shall be credited to the customer’s account
and the meter or meter register will be changed by the District.

Sec 9.09 Adjustment for Meter Errors—Slow Meters

If a meter, tested at the request of a customer pursuant to Section 8.07, is found to be more than 5%
slow (i.e., registered less than 95% of actual flow) the District may bill the customer for the amount
of the undercharge based upon corrected meter readings for the time service was rendered to the
customer but not exceeding a period of six months and the meter or meter register will be changed
by the District.

Sec 9.10 Non-Registering Meters

If a meter is found not registering, then the charges for service shall be based on the estimated
consumption. Such estimates shall be made from previous consumption for a comparable period or
by such other method as is determined by the District.

Sec 9.11 Meter Access

The area surrounding the meter box must be kept clear of all obstructions for accessibility at all times
to allow access by District personnel. The area shall be kept free of vegetation or obstructions. If
vegetation causes access difficulty, the customer will be notified in writing and have fifteen (15) days
from the date of the notice in which to clear the meter access area. At the end of fifteen (15) days if
such clearance has not taken place the District will have the option to clear the vegetation without
further notice. In the event of an emergency the District may remove vegetation or obstructions to
make repairs without customer verification. The District reserves the right to require customers to
relocate a meter which may have been previously located on private property or is otherwise
inaccessible to District personnel or is outside of the public right-of-way. In the event the District
determines that such relocation is not feasible, the District may elect, in its discretion, to permit such
a meter to remain in its current location subject to the conveyance to the District of an easement or
other right-of-way, as determined by the District, in order to provide the District with access to the
meter.

Sec 9.12 Abandonment of Services

Abandonment occurs when the customer surrenders his or her service and advises the District of his
or her intent to terminate water services. All materials on the premises beyond the point of
disconnection to the District’s water distribution system are the property of the customer. If water
services of the District have been abandoned and the customer wishes to reestablish service, the
customer will be charged the meter charge for every month that the connection has been
disconnected plus any outstanding balance due, and reconnection fees.

Page 49 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 101 of 130



Sec 9.13 Penalty for Violation

The District shall have the right to assess such penalties as may be permitted by law and/or
discontinue the water service to the premises, up to and including seizure of the service connection,
of any customer for failure to comply with any rule and regulation of the District. The customer will
be notified of the District’s intention to discontinue service for noncompliance, with an explanation
of the violation or infraction committed. There will be a reasonable opportunity given to comply
before actions will be taken by the District. However, no such notice to afford an opportunity to
comply need be given in those instances in which the noncompliance may cause conditions dangerous
and detrimental to public health, safety and welfare, or are in violation of state law. These violations
include, but are not limited to, trespass, assault, water theft, cross-connection and water system
damage.

ARTICLE 10 BILLING

Sec 10.1 Billing Period
The regular billing period will be monthly.

Sec 10.2 Meter Reading
Meters will be read as nearly as possible on the same day of each month.

Sec10.3 Opening and Closing Bills
Opening and closing bills for less than the normal billing period shall be prorated as to quantity
used.

Sec 10.4 Water Charges

Any residential multiple unit dwelling exceeding 2 units will be billed to the owner or property
management at the appropriate unit equivalency rate. Water charges are due and payable at the
office of the District on the date of mailing the bill to the property owner or his agent as designated
in the application and are considered delinquent if not received by 5:00 p.m. the last business day of
the month.

Service may be discontinued pursuant to the provisions of Article 10 hereto if payment is not made
within 60 calendar days of the delinquent date.

Sec 10.5 Payment of Bills

Bills for water service shall be rendered at the end of each billing period and may be combined with
sewer bills. Bills shall be payable on presentation and will be considered delinquent if payment is
not received by 5:00 p.m. the last business day of the month.

Page 50 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 102 of 130



Sec 10.6 Billing of Separate Meters
Separate bills will be rendered for each meter installation.

Sec 10.7 Customer’s Guarantee

The water charge begins when a service connection is installed, and the meter is set. The property
owner must sign the Water/Sewer Connection Agreement form prior to being connected which
guarantees payment of future water bills for service required.

a) Renters are required to place a deposit of at the current rate specified in Appendix B Current
Rates and Charges, refundable after 2 years of good payment history.

b) Owner may waive deposit for renter and will be responsible for charges. Account must be
current before tenant’s account can be established.

c) Failure to receive a bill does not relieve consumer of liability. Any amount due shall be
deemed a debt to the District and any person, firm, or corporation failing, neglecting, or
refusing to pay said indebtedness shall be liable to an action in the name of the District in
any court of competent jurisdiction for the amount.

Sec 10.8 Water Used Without Application Being Made

A person taking possession of premises and using water from an active service connection without
having made application to the District for water service, shall be held liable for the water delivered
from the date of the last recorded meter reading, and if the meter is found inoperative, the quantity
consumed will be estimated. If proper application for water service is not made upon notification to
do so by the District and if accumulated bills for service are not paid immediately, the service may
be discontinued by the District without further notice.

Sec 10.10 Damages to Meters

The Board reserves the right to set and maintain a meter on any service connection. The water
consumer shall be held liable however, for any damage to the meter due to his negligence or
carelessness and in particular for damage caused by hot water or steam from the premises.

Sec 10.11 Water Leak Relief Policy

The District will forgive one half (1/2) the bill of one month's unusual water usage minus the normal
use. The total amount forgiven will not exceed the current amount specified in Appendix B Current
Rates and Charges within a two-year period. Staff will notify customers if they observe unusual
water usage. No credit will be awarded until the water leak has been repaired.

Page 51 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 103 of 130



ARTICLE 11 DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE

Sec 11.1 Discontinuance of Service for Delinquent Bills

Service may be discontinued for nonpayment of bills after 60 calendar days from the date of
delinquency as specified herein. Monthly bills are generated on the same business day of each
month. Current charges are due and payable upon receipt of the invoice and are considered
delinquent if not received by 5:00 p.m. the last business day of the month.

Payment of the Disconnect Notice must be received within seven (7) days after the date of mailing.
If payment is not received by the end of the business hours on the due date, service shall be
scheduled for disconnection within 48 hours. However, services will not be discontinued on a
Friday, weekend, holiday or day preceding a holiday.

The failure of the District to send, or any person to receive such notice shall not affect the District's
power to discontinue services pursuant to this ordinance. Reconnection will be made by District
only upon complete payment of all delinquent service charges and penalties, interest,
reimbursement to District of its actual costs of disconnecting and reconnecting District's water
system to the premises, payment of all applicable disconnection and reconnection fees specified in
this Ordinance, and, in the event reconnection is requested, payment of a security depositin an
amount equal to the water service charges averaged over the preceding 6 months times the
number of months the water has been shut off. In addition, a customer’s water service may be
discontinued if water service provided at a previous location is not paid for within the time for
payment of bills provided herein. If the customer receives water service at more than one location,
and the bill for water service at any one location becomes delinquent, water service at all locations
may be disconnected.

Sec 11.2 Charges a Debt

Failure to receive a bill does not relieve the customer or property owner of liability for payment of
the water service charges specified in said bill. Any amount due shall be deemed a debt to the
District, and any person, firm or corporation failing, neglecting or refusing to pay said indebtedness
shall be liable to an action in the name of the District in any court of competent jurisdiction for the
amount thereof. In addition, such debt is subject to the collection procedures consisting of a lien on
the property of the customer or owner and collection of the delinquent amounts on the property
tax rolls as specified in Section 11.2 of this ordinance.

Sec 11.3 Reconnection Charge

A current reconnection charge plus all applicable fees, charges and penalties specified in Appendix B
Current Rates and Charges will be assessed and collected prior to renewing service following a
discontinuance.

Page 52 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 104 of 130



Sec 11.4 Unsafe Apparatus
Water Service may be refused or discontinued on any premises where apparatus or appliances are
in use which might endanger or disturb the service to other customers.

Sec 11.5 Cross-Connection
Water service may be refused or discontinued to any premises where there exists a cross-
connection in violation of state or federal laws or this ordinance.

Sec 11.6 Fraud or Abuse

Service may be discontinued or removed, including the removal of unapproved connections or
unauthorized facilities, and penalties imposed, if necessary, to protect the District against fraud or
abuse.

a) Fraud or abuse is the act of any person to commit, authorize, solicit, aid, abet or attempt any
of the following acts:

i) Divert or cause to be diverted water service by any means.

i) Make or cause to be made any connection or reconnection to the District's water system
without the authorization or consent of the District. As used in this section "water system"
means all property owned by the District for the transmission, collection, storage or
treatment of water.

iii) Tampering with or otherwise interfere with any water meter or other water flow
measurement device so as to prevent the accurate measurement of water use.

iv) Use or receive the benefit of water from the District with knowledge or reason to believe
that the use or receipt of such water is unauthorized by the District.

v) Tampering with any property owned or used by the District to provide water service.

vi) Providing water through a service connection to another premises or parcel of property
that does not have its own service connection, or for which an application for service
connection has not been filed with the District.

b) A violation exists if, on premises owned or controlled by the Customer or any person using or
receiving the direct benefit of the water service, there is either of the following:

i) Any instrument, apparatus or device designed to be used to obtain service without paying
the full lawful charge therefor.

i) Any meter that is altered, tampered with or bypassed so as to cause no measurement or
inaccurate measurement of water service.

iii) Any person who is determined by District staff to have committed fraud or abuse as
defined herein shall be billed by the District for the damage to the property owned or used
by the District to provide service, the actual cost to remove and reinstall facilities, for loss
of water, plus a penalty of the current rate specified in Appendix B Current Rates and
Charges per infraction. A separate infraction will be found for each day such fraud or
abuse is determined by District to have continued.

Page 53 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 105 of 130



¢) Upon approval by the Board of Directors, the District may bring a civil action pursuant to
Section 1882.1 of the California Civil Code to recover up to three times the actual damages
suffered by the District, plus its costs of suit and reasonable attorneys’ fees, for each violation
of the provisions of this section.

d) The remedies set forth in this section shall be in addition to all other remedies, civil and
criminal, available to the District for violation of the provisions of this section or for any
ordinance, resolution, rule or regulation of the District, or any provision of Federal, State or
local law.

Sec 11.7 Non-Compliance with Regulations

Service may be discontinued for non-compliance with this or any other ordinance or regulation
relating to the water service. The Customer will be notified of the District's intention to discontinue
service for noncompliance, with an explanation of the violation or infraction committed. There will
be a reasonable opportunity given to comply before actions to discontinue water service will be
taken by the District. However, no such notice to afford an opportunity to comply need be given to
a Customer in those instances in which the noncompliance may cause conditions dangerous or
detrimental to public health, safety and welfare, or are in violation of state law. These violations
include, but are not limited to, trespass, assault, water theft, cross connection deficiencies, and
water system or facility damage.

Sec 11.8 Use of Water Without Application

Service may be discontinued in all cases in which a person is determined by District to have used
water from the District’s water system without having made Application to the District therefore, or
without having a separate service connection installed by District to provide water to that person’s
premises, or without having paid all applicable connection charges and service and meter
installation charges.

Sec 11.9 Upon Vacating Premises

Customers desiring to discontinue service should so notify the district two (2) days prior to vacating
the premises. Unless discontinuance of service is ordered, the customer shall be liable for charges
whether or not any water is used.

Sec 11.10 Abandonment Charge

Any person who desires to abandon services to a building from the District’s water system or to
abandon service to a property, shall pay to the District an Abandonment Charge. The Abandonment
Charge shall consist of:

a) All costs incurred by the District in disconnecting the system at the property line and

plugging and sealing the line, including the cost of surveying, if any, and.

Page 54 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 106 of 130



b) The sum of at current rate to recover the District’s costs.
Item (b) of the Abandonment Charge shall not apply to any person who desires to disconnect
a building from the District’s Water or Sewer system but who intends to keep other buildings
on the property connected to the system or to disconnect from one building while
connecting to another on the same property.
Unauthorized removal of water. Unauthorized removal of water from any source may result
in a charge at the current rate and or referral to law enforcement.

ARTICLE 12 ENFORCEMENT OF PAYMENT

Sec. 12.1 Collection of Delinquent Account
If an account has not been paid in full when due, such account shall be considered delinquent, and a
penalty assessed in the amount of “at current rate”.

Sec. 12.2 Collection by Recordation of Lien Against Property

The Board of Directors may recover any water service charges, penalties and interest which are
delinquent for a period of 30 days by recording in the office of the County Recorder of Humboldt
County a Notice of Lien for unpaid delinquent charges, penalties, interest, lien administration
charges and applicable Recorder’s fees. Said Notice of Lien shall declare the amount of the
delinquent charges, penalties, interest and related charges due, and the name and last the address
of the person liable for such delinquent charges, penalties and interest. Pursuant to Government
Code section 61115 (c) from the time of recordation of such Notice of Lien, the amount of such
delinquent water service charges, penalties, interest, lien administration charges and applicable
Recorder’s fees shall constitute a lien against the lot or parcel of land against which the charge is
imposed and all other property within Siskiyou County owned by the property owner of the parcel
upon which the water service charges are delinquent. The District will record a Notice of Release or
Discharge of Lien upon the payment by the property owner of all delinquent charges, penalties,
interest, lien administration charges and applicable Recorder’s fees within 30 days of receipt of
payment for all such amounts due.

Sec. 12.3 Collection by Further Legal Action

The Board is further authorized to institute and prosecute in the name of the District appropriate
legal action for the collection of delinquent water charges, penalties, interest, lien administration
charges and Recorder’s fees against the property owner of the parcel upon which the water service
charges were levied. By application for and receipt of water services, all property
owners/customers agree to be responsible for reimbursement to the District of all attorneys’ fees
and other legal costs incurred by the District in collecting any delinquent water service charges,
penalties, interest and related costs from the property owner/customer through such legal action.

Page 55 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 107 of 130



In the event the District recovers a court judgment ordering the property owner/customer to pay all
delinquent debt service charges, penalties, interest, and related costs, together with attorney’s fees
and legal costs, and the property owner/customer fails to pay such judgment, the District will
amend its Notice of Lien recorded pursuant to Section 11.2 of this Ordinance to include the amount
of attorney’s fees and legal costs ordered by the court to be reimbursed by the property
owner/customer to the District.

Sec. 12.4 Discontinuation of Service
Water service may be disconnected for nonpayment of water service bills in the time and manner
specified in Article 10 of this Ordinance.

Sec. 12.5 Collection of Delinquent Charges on Tax Roll

For any water charges which have been delinquent for sixty (60) days, the District shall provide that
any delinquent charges, penalties and interest may be collected on the property tax roll in the same
manner as property taxes. On or about June 1st of each year, the General Manager shall prepare
and file a written report with the District Board of Directors that describes each aspect of parcel of
real property and the number of delinquent charges, penalties and interest for each affected parcel
for the year pursuant to Government Code Section 61115(b). the General Manager shall give notice
of the filing of the report and of the time and place for a public hearing before the Board of
Directors by publishing a notice of hearing pursuant to Section 6066 in a newspaper of general
circulation, and by mailing the notice to the property owner of each affected parcel. At the public
hearing, the Board of Directors shall hear and consider any objections or protests to the report. At
the conclusion of the public hearing the Board of Directors may adopt or revise the delinquent
charges, penalties and interest, and determine to collect such delinquent charges, penalties and
interest upon the County Property Tax Roll each affected parcel of property for the ensuing fiscal
year. The Board of Director shall make its determination on each affected parcel by resolution and
its determination shall be final.

On or before August 10 of each year following such determination by resolution of the Board, the
General Manager shall thereafter file with the County Auditor a copy of the report filed with the
Board of Directors and the resolution adopted by the Board at such public hearing, and request that
the delinquent charges, penalties and interest be added to and collected with property tax on each
affected parcel of property described in the written report and resolution at the same time and in
the same manner as property taxes are collected by the County Auditor. Government Code section
61115(b) directs the County auditor to place such delinquent charges, penalties and interest on the
tax bills for each affected parcel of real property listed in the District report and resolution and
collect the charges and penalties in the same manner as property taxes for the fiscal year in which
such District report and resolution are filed with the County Auditor. |

Page 56 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 108 of 130



Sec. 12.6 Alternative Method of Collection

If the bill is not paid within 60 days of becoming due, water service may be discontinued pursuant to
Section 10 of this Ordinance. In addition, the rates for water service may be collected on the same
bill with the rates for other services provided by the District. Failure to timely pay applicable rates
for water service provided by the District to the Customer may also result in the discontinuance of
any and all services such as sewer services provided by the District pursuant to the provisions of
Government Code section 61115(a)(3).

Sec. 12.7 Remedies are Cumulative

Each and all of the remedies for the collection and enforcement of delinquent water service rates,
penalties, interest and related charges listed in this Section 11 are cumulative and the District may
pursue any or all of such remedies alternatively or consecutively as authorized by Government Code
section 61115 (e).

Article 13 ENFORCEMENT OF ORDINANCE

Sec. 13.1 Penalty for Violations of Ordinance

Any violation of this Ordinance shall be a misdemeanor and shall be punishable by imprisonment in
the County Jail for a period not to exceed 6 months, or by fine, not exceeding $1000, or by both.
Every day of violation of this Ordinance continues shall constitute a separate offense. The attorney
of the District, upon order of the District’s Board of Directors, shall request the District Attorney of
Humboldt County to file an action in the Superior Court to confirm that the provisions of this
Ordinance have been violated, to find that a misdemeanor has occurred, and to impose such
penalties, fines, and reimbursement to the District of its attorney’s fees and legal costs as provided
by law and the provisions of this Ordinance. Any property owner/customer found to be violating
any provision of this or any other ordinance, rule, or regulation of the District, shall be served by the
District with written notice stating the nature of the violation and, if applicable, providing a
reasonable time limit for the satisfactory correction thereof. The offender shall, within the period
of time stated in such notice, permanently cease all violations.

Sec. 13.1.1 Discontinuation of Service for Violation

As a means of enforcement of the provisions of this ordinance, or any other rule or regulation of the
District, the District shall have the right to assess all such penalties as may be permitted by law
and/or discontinue water service or any other utility services provided by the District to the
property owner/customer as detailed in Sections 10 and 11 of this Ordinance. However, no such
notice to afford an opportunity to comply need to be given to a property owner/customer in those

Page 57 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 109 of 130



instances in which the noncompliance may cause conditions dangerous or detrimental to public
health, safety and welfare, or are in violation of state law. These violations include, but are not
limited to, trespass, assault, water theft, cross connections and water system facility damaged.

Water service and any other discontinued utility services shall not be supplied to such property
owner/customer until he or she shall have complied with the ordinance provision, rule, regulation,
rate or charge order which has been violated to the satisfaction of the District. Reconnection shall
be made only upon prior payment of charges, penalties and interest due, plus the disconnection
and/or reconnection fee as detailed in this Ordinance and possible payment of a security deposit in
the discretion of the District.

Sec 13.1.2 Relief on Application

When any property owner/customer is of the opinion that any provision of this Ordinance is unjust
or inequitable as applied to his premises due to special circumstances, such property
owner/customer may make written application to the General Manager, stating the special
circumstances, citing the provision complained of, and requesting suspension or modification of
such provisions as applied to the premises of such property owner/customer. If such application is
approved by the General Manager, the General Manager will recommend to the Board that it act by
resolution to suspend or modify the ordinance provision complained of, as applied to such
premises, to be effective as of the date of the application and continuing during the period of the
special circumstances cited. If an Owner’s application for relief is denied by the General Manager,
such denial shall be in writing and delivered to the Owner. The Owner shall have ten days from the
date of such written denial to file a written appeal with the Board of Directors with arguments as to
why specified provisions of this Ordinance should not be applied to the Owner’s property. The
Board of Directors will schedule a regular or special meeting at its earliest convenience to consider
such an appeal. The Board of Directors will render its decision within ten days after completion of
any such appeal hearing and advise the Owner in writing of its decision. The decision of the Board of
Directors on any such appeal shall be final.

Sec13.1.3 Relief on Own Motion

The Board of Directors may, on its own motion, find that, by reason of special circumstances, any
provision of this ordinance should be suspended or modified as applied to particular premises, and
may, by resolution, order such suspension or modification for such premises during the period of
such special circumstances.

Sec13.1.4 Board Rulings Final
All rulings of the Board of Directors on relief or from or suspension of provisions of this ordinance
with respect to a particular ordinance provision shall be final and not subject to appeal.

Page 58 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 110 of 130



Sec 13.1.5 Falsifying of Information

Any person who knowingly makes any false statement or representation to District personnel, or
submits a false record, report, plan or other document with the District, or who falsifies, tampers
with, or knowingly renders inaccurate any monitoring device or method required under this
ordinance, is guilty of a violation of this Ordinance and subject to the enforcement penalties
provided in sections 10 and 11 hereof including misdemeanor criminal proceedings, disconnection
of water and other utility services, payment of all applicable District fees and charges, and
reimbursement of all attorney’s fees and legal costs incurred by the District arising out of such
conduct.

Sec 13.1.6 Costs and Attorney’s Fees

Defendant shall pay court costs and attorney’s fees incurred by the District in enforcing this
ordinance and seeking collection of delinquent accounts in any judgment rendered in favor of the
District and so consents to such an award of costs and attorney’s fees by the filing of an Application
for Water Service.

ARTICLE 14 FIRE PROTECTION
Sec 14.0 Public Fire Protection

Sec 14.0.1 Use of Fire Hydrants

Fire hydrants are for use by the District or by organized fire protection agencies pursuant to
contract with the District. Other parties desiring to use fire hydrants for any purpose must first
obtain written permission from the Board prior to use and shall operate the hydrant in accordance
with instructions issued by the District.

Sec 14.0.2 Moving of Fire Hydrants

When a fire hydrant has been installed in the location specified by the proper authority, the District
has fulfilled its obligation. If a property owner or other party desires a change in the size, type, or
location of the hydrant, they shall bear all costs of such changes without refund. Prior to any change
in the location of a fire hydrant must be approved by the Board of Directors.

Sec 14.1 Private Fire Protection Service

Sec 14.1.1 Payment of Cost

The applicant for private fire protection service shall pay the total cost of installation of the service
from the distribution main to the customer’s premises, including the cost of a detector check meter
or other suitable and equivalent device, valve, and meter box, said installation to become the

Page 59 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 111 of 130



property of the District. The District may agree to install the connection and meter at cost plus ten
percent (10%).

Sec 14.1.2 No Connection to Other System
There shall be no connections between this fire protection system and any other water distribution
system on the premises.

Sec 14.1.3 Use
There shall be no water used through the fire protection service except to extinguish fires and for
testing the firefighting equipment.

Sec 14.1.4 Meter Rates

Any consumption recorded on the meter will be charged for at double the regular service rate
except that no charge will be made for water used to extinguish fires where such fires have been
reported to the fire department.

Sec 14.1.5 Monthly Rates
The District Board upon receipt of application shall establish the monthly rates for private fire
protection.

Sec 14.1.6 Violation of Agreement
If water is used from a private fire service in violation of the agreement or of these regulations, the
District may, at its option, discontinue and remove the service.

Sec 14.1.7 Water Pressure and Supply

The District assumes no responsibility for loss or damage due to lack of water or pressure, either
high or low, and merely agrees to furnish such quantities and pressures as are available in its
general distribution system. The service is subject to shutdowns and variations required by the
operation of the system.

Sec 14.1.8 Fire Service Connection Rules
The following rules shall apply to fire service connections:

Cross Connection: Proper back flow device must be installed for each private fire protection system.

Valve: When a fire service connection is installed, the valve governing it will be closed and LOCKED
and remain so until a written order is received from the owner of the premises to have the water
turned on.

Meter: If the District does not require a meter and if the water is used through a fire service
connection for any other purpose than extinguishing of fires, it shall have the right to place a meter

Page 60 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17", 2017

Page 112 of 130



on the fire service connection and at the owner’s expense or shut off the entire water supply from
such premises.

ARTICLE 15 RATES AND FEES

Sec 15.1 Connection Fee

In addition to any other charges established by the ordinances, rules and regulations of the District,
a connection charge shall be collected prior to connecting to the water distribution system as
follows.

The connection charge shall consist of three components:
The cost of the installation of the hardware by meter size.
The cost of buying into the existing assets of the system

The cost of developing and implementing specific projects to create the capacity to support
new connections to the system.

These may change from time to time as conditions within the system change and will be charged at
the current rate as detailed in Appendix B Current Rates and Charges.

These fees will be charged based on an evaluation of each application for new connections to assess
the load that the project will place on the system. Charges will be expressed as a multiple of SFREs.

Sec 15.2 Monthly Rates and Charges

Current monthly rates and charges for water service are specified in Appendix B Current Rates and
Charges. All references in Sections 14.1 through 14.8 to “at current rate” can be found specified in
Appendix B Current Rates and Charges.

Sec 15.3 System Expansion Fee
System Expansion Fund for Expansion and Capital Improvements: A minimum monthly charge “at
the current rate” per use/unit equivalency.

Sec 15.4 Reconnection Charges
Customers whose service has been disconnected pursuant to Article 10, Section 10.3 and who now
wish to have their service reconnected shall pay “at the current rate” for a Reconnection Charge.

Page 61 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 113 of 130



Sec 15.5 Deposits
One-unit residential dwelling: “at the current rate”

Rental properties with Commercial accounts: “at the current rate”

Sec. 15.6 Late Fees
To be charged “at the current rate” per residential or commercial unit

Sec 15.7 Bulk Water
RCSD does not allow sales of bulk water.

Sec 15.8 Nonprofit Irrigation Rate
Non-profit organizations whose sole use of water is irrigating playing fields used primarily for youth
athletic activities may apply for an irrigation only water rate.

Sec 15.9 Rates, fees and penalties are set by Resolution of the District Board of Directors
Following annual evaluation any adjustment of rates and fees shall be accomplished by resolution
by the District’s Board of Directors as required to be fiscally responsible to the requirements of the
community and in compliance with state and local regulations. The current rates and fees will be set
by the most recent Board Resolution of record.

ARTICLE 16 - TIME OF TAKING EFFECT

Sec 16.1 This ordinance shall take effect

This Ordinance shall take effect thirty days after its adoption by the Board of Directors, provided that
a summary of this ordinance as adopted is published in a newspaper of general circulation throughout
the District and the full text of the ordinance as adopted is posted at the District offices within fifteen
days after the adoption of this amendment by the Board of Directors.

Page 62 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 171, 2017

Page 114 of 130



AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

DIRECTORS
DIRECTORS
DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS

Signature lines

X

X

Secretary X

Page 63 - RCSD Water Ordinance #6 May 17, 2017

Page 115 of 130



Page Left Intentionally Blank

Page 116 of 130



Water Ordinance Fees and Charges
Sec 2.12 Unauthorized removal of water fee - $1,000.00.
Sec 4.0.3 Application Fees $880 non-refundable (6 hours admin staff, 8 hours field staff)
Sec 4.3.1 RCSD Staff Time Basis
Administrative Staff: 60 per hour
Field Staff: 65 per hour
Sec 4.4.0 Deferral Fee $2500 -- must be exercised within 48 months of payment if capacity is
still available. All fees must be paid within 3 months of notice of capacity availability.
Sec 6.0 Meter installation fee deposit $1000
Calculation method to determine capacity fee (See Sec 6.1)
Sec 6.6 Inspection Fees -Time and materials: $75 minimum
Sec 6.1 Water use calculations for connection fees (based on Waterworks analysis)
Standard calculation will reference SFRE calculations in the Waterworks Engineering
Water Use Evaluation 01-05-2016 report.
1 SFRE for each residential unit
1 SFRE for each commercial unit
0.5 SFRE for each apartment or ADU
AAU 200 GPD per SFRE
ADMM 350 GPD per SFRE
PDD 700 GPD per SFRE
Sec 9.7 Customer's Guarantee
Residential Rentals are required to pay $100 Deposit
Commercial Rentals are required to pay $200 Deposit
Sec 10.1 Disconnection Fee for Non-Payment 27.50
Sec 10.3 Reconnection Cost
27.50 Reconnection Fee plus
Residential Rentals may be required to pay $100 Deposit
Commercial Rentals may be required to pay $200 Deposit
(see Sections 9.7 and 10.1)
Sec 10.6 Fraud or abuse penalty $300 per infraction
Sec 10.10 Abandonment charge $500
Sec 11.1 Collection of Delinquent Account:
Late fee: $12 per month
Sec 14.1 Current Connection Charges
$12,445 per SFRE plus meter and other installation charges
Section 14.3 System Enhancement Fund monthly fee
$8.00 per use/unit equivalency
Sec 14.4 Reconnection Cost
$27.50 Disconnection Fee plus deposits
Sec 14.5 Account Deposits
Residential Rentals are required to pay $100 Deposit
Commercial Rentals are required to pay $200 Deposit
(as in Sections 9.7 and 10.1)
Sec 14.6 Late Fees (see Sec 11.1)

Page 1 of 2
Water Ordinance Appendix B Current Rates and Charges 2018-01-01\\192.168.1.10\Office
Share\office.rcsd\Operations\~Ordinance current and edits\Water Ordinance\Water Ordinance

Appendix B Current Rates and CharRggf@s81-P1gtbck 30



Sewer Ordinances Rates and Charges

Sec. 8.5 Lateral Connection Charges
Sewer Connection Fees are included in Water/Sewer Connection Fee as approved by RCSD
Board. (See Water Ordinance Sec 14.1)

Lateral Connection deposit and construction costs

Sec 8.5 A.

Four (4) inch lateral

Deposit: $1,000 to be reconciled with actual construction costs

Sec85B
Six (6) inch lateral
Deposit: $3,000 to be reconciled with actual construction costs

Sewer Ordinance Fees and Charges

Sec 8.8 Abandonment charge

(See Water Section 10.10)

Combined water and sewer abandonment charge:
($500)

Sec 8.9 Late charge
(See Water Section 11.1 Collection of Delinquent Account)
Combined water and sewer accounts will be billed only one late charge per month.

Page 2 of 2
Water Ordinance Appendix B Current Rates and Charges 2018-01-01\\192.168.1.10\Office
Share\office.rcsd\Operations\~Ordinance current and edits\Water Ordinance\Water Ordinance

Appendix B Current Rates and CharReggf@89181atbck 30



Board Stipends

. Board Stipend Guidance: Following discussion Michael McKaskle moved that the Chairman of the
Redway Community Services Disttict Board of Directors receive $75.00 for each business
meeting
attended and $50.00 for each Redwood Regional Economic Development Commission meeting
attended plus mileage at the current rate with the total not to exceed $200.00 per month. Each
member of the Redway Community Services District Board of Directors will receive $50.00 for each
business meeting attended with the total not to exceed $150.00 per month. Dian Griffith seconded
the motion. The metien was carried with a voice vote of five Yeas and zero Nays.

Page 119 of 130



Page Left Intentionally Blank

Page 120 of 130



Redwood Region Economic Development Commission Report for March 2025

The Redwood Region Economic Development Commission was formed to help
mitigate job losses feared to be looming due to the expansion of Redwood National Park.
Upon our creation in 1977 the Department of Commerce's Economic Development
Administration (EDA) first granted us funds, half of which we lost in the first few years. Since
then we have vastly improved our performance and are self-supporting through revenue
received by lending EDA funds and our own money as well as from partnering on some loans
with the Headwaters Fund and Humboldt Area Foundation. The goal of our lending is to
increase employment.

We act as a lender to businesses and non-profits who are unable to access traditional
financing. Some of our funds are closely overseen by the EDA, others we are fully
responsible for. We are using some those funds for a micro-loan program.

This Month we had a presentation by our auditor Harshwal & Company LLC. We did
great! As usual we have an adverse opinion on US Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
because we write off any loan portfolio losses to the fund balance when determined to be
uncollectible and instead of recording gains or losses on the sale of assets/forfited collateral
as income or expenses we credit or charge them to the principal. We are required by our
regulator to do it that way (no idea why) so we got an unmodified opinion on the regulatory
basis of accounting.

We are preparing our budget. With commercial rates creeping up and ours having
been lowered due to the Federal largess during Covid we are not charging much more for our
(riskier) customers than commercial lenders. We may raise our rates by .25 to .5%. We may
change our arrangement for investing HAF’'s endowment. We currently charge an origination
fee but may ask for a percentage or 2 servicing fee. We are expecting about $50K in losses
this year. 1 larger shared one is in default and 2 smaller ones are in distress. The best thing |
was able to do while | was chair in 2017 was defining and championing “local investment” in
our planning session whose 2 planks were funding solar panels on public buildings and
investing local endowments locally. RCEA jumped on the solar initiative as soon as we
brought it to them as a priority of ours and we never even needed to invest a penny or
moment of staff time after our first meeting because they found the funds and hired a
dedicated staff person. ED Foster’s relationships as chair of HAF’s investment committee and
our being Headwater’s Fund’s landlord at the time probably helped the endowment
investment plans. We are currently investing $4.4 million of Headwaters’s and $1.7 million of
Humboldt Area Foundation’s endowments in local businesses.

Rio Dell had a clean audit and still wants a park. Spay/neuter programs work.

Eureka is wrestling with their sewer lateral regulations.

Fortuna needs city council members. They are losing their police chief but a solid Lt.
will manage things as they find a replacement.

Willow Creek’s waste water treatment plant is done! The skate park is entering the
permitting process and the second phase is going to bid. They have only 3 full time positions
having lost a water operator.

Arcata transferred ownership of Arcata/Mad River Transit to Humboldt Transit Authority
but maybe | got that wrong and they only transferred their transfer station.

Ferndale reports that the County Fair may have no horse races.

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District’'s Ruth Lake is still overflowing. They are
moving away from Chlorine gas disinfection to Sodiumhypochlorite.

The County will change quarterly “EIID” meetings (not sure what they are) to yearly
because there is so little money to oversee. Director Arroyo was out of town on Coast Guard

Page 121 of 130



duty most of the Month doing Hazmat cleanup response in the LA fire zones. She dealt with
many batteries and had EPA coworkers downsized in the midst of the job.

Humboldt CSD did a recreation needs survey and people want parks. They have drilled
a well at Spruce Point that can supply 10% of their needs in an emergency.

Blue Lake’s meetings have been calmer and they are moving slowly. Traffic on
Greenwood Rd has been slowed near the school.

Manila needs to pave Lupine Rd., one of the main roas in town. Bids are in for their
drainage grant but it seems there may not be enough money for the rain garden. They got a
new to them 15 year old van.

Mcknv CSD secured funding for 3 new laterals under Hwy 101 to increase capacity to
the plant. Alternate Director Mayo in on the board of the Association of California Water
Agencies and reported that legislation is being worked on to help districts pay for dealing with
PFAS and microplastic fibers.

Our public meetings are most 4" Mondays at 6:30pm at Eureka City Hall, with excellent
snacks.
Submitted by Michael McKaskle, Redway CSD RREDC representative.

Page 122 of 130



Redway Community Services District

P.O. Box 40
Redway, CA 95560

(707) ©23-3101
March 31, 2025
The Honorable Alex Padilla The Honorable Adam Schiff
United States Senate United States Senate
331 Hart Senate Office Building Hart Senate Office Building #112
Washington, DC 20510 Washington, DC 20510

RE: Humboldt County Garberville Complete Streets Project (Redwood Drive)
Dear Senators Padilla and Schiff:

On behalf of the Redway Community Services District, | am writing in strong support of
Humboldt County’s request for $5,000,000 in Congressionally Directed Funding for the
Garberville Complete Streets Project. Funding for this project would be used to improve,
retrofit and reconstruct existing sidewalks and roadway on Redwood Drive to provide safe
and convenient travel by all users, including pedestrians, bicyclists, motorists, and public
transit.

Redwood Drive, which runs through Garberville, has the highest average daily traffic load in
Southern Humboldt County. Current counts in the reach of road addressed by this project are
approximately 9,800 vehicles per day. An average of five accidents occurs annually on this
stretch of road, making it one of the higher accident zones on the County’s road system.

Humboldt County has completed improvements on all other sections of Redwood Drive,
including replacing a narrow, functionally obsolete concrete arch bridge over Bear Gulch
with a wider bridge that is capable of handling the growth of motorist, pedestrian, and
bicyclist usage. The Garberville portion of Redwood Drive is characterized by pedestrian and
vehicular congestion, deteriorating roadway surfaces, insufficient pedestrian facilities,
higher speeds due to on/off ramps, and a budding business hub for much of the greater
southern Humboldt area. A complete streets solution has the opportunity to improve the
safety of the business loop corridor that is shared by motorists, bicyclists, and pedestrians.

In addition to safety and capacity improvements, this project will yield economic benefits, as
it is a gateway project for both Mendocino County on the South-Bound Highway 101 and
Humboldt County for North-Bound Highway 101. It should be noted that this project is
included in the Regional Transportation Plan of the Humboldt County Association of
Governments. Furthermore, Humboldt County has committed to financing the 20 percent local
match that would be required for this type of Federal-aid highway project.

Page 123 of 130



This project is not only a gateway to Humboldt County, but the gateway to a significant amount
of Federal Lands. This includes:

National Park
e Redwood National and State Parks - National Park Service

Conservation Area
e King Range National Conservation Area and The Lost Coast - Bureau of Land
Management

Recreation Area
¢ Samoa Dunes Recreation Area - Bureau of Land Management

Forest
* Headwaters Forest Reserve - Bureau of Land Management
e Six Rivers National Forest - National Forest Service
e Trinity National Forest - National Forest Service

Wildlife Refuge
e Humboldt Bay National Wildlife Refuge - Bureau of Land Management and
U.S Fish and Wildlife Service

Again, I'm pleased to write in strong support of the Garberville Complete Streets project, and
| urge you to seek federal funding to help fund this important work.

Sincerely,

Cody Cox, General Manager
Redway Community Services District

Page 124 of 130



e

Redway Community Services District

P.O. Box 40
Redway, CA 95560
(707) 923-3101
March 31, 2025

The Honorable Alex Padilla The Honorable Adam Schiff
United States Senate United States Senate
331 Hart Senate Office Building Hart Senate Office Building #112
Washington, DC 20510 Washington, DC 20510

RE: Support for Funding the Garberville Veterans Building
Dear Senators Padilla and Schiff,

On behalf of the Redway Community Services District I am writing to express my full support for the
Humboldt County Board of Supervisors' request for funding in the amount of $4.5 million to support the
Garberville Veterans Building. As a member of our community, I understand the critical importance of
this facility to our veterans and the broader Southern Humboldt community,

The Garberville Veterans Building is far more than just a physical structure. It serves as a crucial hub
that:

Provides a dedicated space for veterans 10 meet and connect

Offers essential resources and support for those who have served our country

Acts as a central gathering point for community events and activities

Strengthens community bonds by bringing together veterans and local residents

The financial challenges facing Humboldt County make external support essential for maintaining and
improving this vital community resource. The Veterans Building represents our community's deep
respect and ongoing commitment to those who have sacrificed for our nation.

[ strongly urge you to advocate that this Community Project Request be funded in fiscal year 2026.

Your assistance will ensure that the Garberville Veterans Building can continue to serve our veterans
and enrich our entire community.

Thank you for your consideration and support.

Sincerely,
Cody Cox

’,‘-—‘:’Q
General Manager

(530)922-0338
Redwaycsd@gmail.com

Page 125 of 130



Page Left Intentionally Blank

Page 126 of 130



Redway Community Services District
P.O. Box 40
Redway, CA 95560

(707) 923:3101

March 28,2025

Somach Simmons and Dunn
Attorneys at Law

500 Capitol Mall

Suite 100

Sacramento, CA 95814

Greetings Attorneys,

Back in July of 2016 we provided a retainer of $3000.00, paid with check number 8746.

In 2024 we tried to utilize your organization for another situation, and it turns out you are
very specific for what you litigate. Upon much consideration we would like to have our
retainer returned to us. Thank you very much for understanding.

Regards,
Glenn Gradin

Office Manager

Redway Community Services District
3168 Redwood Drive

PO Box 40

Redway, CA 95560

(530)922-0347
glenn@redwaycsd.org
redwaycsd.org

Board meetings are held on the third Wednesday of the month @ 6pm

Page 127 of 130



Page Left Intentionally Blank

Page 128 of 130



ORDINANCE 2025-01

REDWAY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 2025-01, REVISING ORDINANCE NO. 7
ESTABLISHING RATES, RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR WATER SERVICE

By action adopted by the Board of Directors of the Redway Community Services District
(hereinafter “the District)” pursuant to the provisions of Government Code section 25124 (b) (1),
the following Summary of Proposed Ordinance 2025 — 01 , an Ordinance revising the District’s
Ordinance No. 7 Establishing Rates, Rules and Regulations for Water Service , is hereby
authorized to be published in a newspaper of general circulation throughout the jurisdiction of the
District in order to notify citizens of a public hearing before the Board of Directors of the District
to determine whether to adopt Ordinance 2025— 01. This public hearing is scheduled to occur on

April 16, 2025, at 6 p.m. at 3168 Redwood Drive, Redway, CA 95560.
This Summary of Ordinance 2025 — 01 proposes revisions to the District’s existing

Ordinance No. 7 establishing rates, rules and regulations for water service as follows:

1. Adds new section 0.1 specifying the purposes of the Water Ordinance, which are
to set uniform requirements for providing public water supplies to District Customers for
maximum possible beneficial use in compliance with all drinking water supply requirements of

state and federal law.

2. Adds new section 0.2 which specifies the Scope of the Water Ordinance, which
includes the setting of user rates, charges and fees for the equitable distribution of water supply
costs among all District customers. The Water Ordinance also provides for an Application for
Water Service procedure for new customers which procedure allocates the District’s limited water
supplies to new customers depending upon the then current capacity of the District to supply

water to customers in the amount applied for.

3. Clarifies certain definitions of terms within the Ordinance in Section 1, and adds
new definitions of terms for new classes of water service customers including Commercial
Agricultural Water Service at Section 1.23 and Accessory Dwelling Unit Water Service at Section

1.32.

1

Page 129 of 130



4. Revises the procedure for discontinuance of water supply for non-payment of
water service rates, charges and/or fees in Section 10.1 by extending the delinquency period to 60
days after a water bill becomes delinquent before a Notice of Discontinuation of Water Supply

may be sent to the delinquent customer and water disconnection procedures can be commenced.

5. Adds an updated description of the District’s Backflow Protection and Cross-
Control Protection Program at Section 2.8, which program has been approved by the State Water

Resources Control Board.

6. Adds a new Section 6.6 regarding Accessory Dwelling Units which describes the
circumstances under which water will be supplied to accessory dwelling units, and defines those
situations in which a separate water meter connection and connection fee will be imposed for
supplying water to an accessory dwelling unit, and those circumstances in which no new water

meter connection or connection fee will be required.

7. Adds a new Section 4.1.0 (4) regarding Applications for Water Service which adds
a new service application classification entitled “Commercial Agriculture Producer
Classification”. This section sets forth the minimum criteria defining a commercial agriculture
producer and imposes the following requirements on such customers: (1) the filing of an
Operations Plan which details the amounts of water required and water delivery and storage
details; (2) imposes a water use forbearance period from May 15 to October 1 each year during
which time the District lacks sufficient water supply capacity to serve such customers; and (3)
establishes a water usage annual cap on the amount of water to be provided by the District to each

such user.

A printed copy of the proposed Water Ordinance is available for inspection by any person
during regular office hours in the administrative offices of the District at
3168 Redwood Drive, Redway, CA 95560. A copy of the Water Ordinance and this Summary is
also posted at the District Office and on the District’s website. This Summary has also been
published pursuant to the requirements of California Government Code Sections 25120 through

25132.

2

Page 130 of 130



4)sConsulting

P.O.BOX 653
Blue Lake, Ca 95525
(F0#) 222-456F

Memorandum

To Board of Directors
_Agency Redway Community Service District
From Jennie Short, Project Manager

Mtg. Date April 23, 2025

Project Water Rights Update - Meadows Business Park Unit 3
Lake and Streambed Alteration Notification to CDFW
Division of Drinking Water Permit Amendment Application

Update on Status

SWRCB-DWR Processes:
Five specific actions have been requested from the State Waterboard so far. They are:
1.  Petition to Change the Place of Use on the river license (A11876)
2. Petition to Change the Place of Use on the river permit (A15665)
3.  Petition for Extension of Time on the river permit (A15665)
4
5

Request to convert the river permit (A15665) to a license
Request to convert the spring permit (A15666) to a license

I met with DWR lead to go over the project elements and status for the petition noticing. As part
of this discussion, | inquired about the possibility of processing a Petition for 1707 Instream
Dedication on the unnamed spring (A23018) permit as a mechanism to permanently protect the
flow that we are bypassing at the spring for the use of fish, wildlife and recreation. This spring
feeds the waterfall at Ravencliff. This petition would change the place of use for the spring to be
the watercourse from the spring box to the confluence of the spring channel and the SF Eel
River, which is basically the waterfall. The petition would also change the beneficial use to fish,
wildlife, and recreation. There is a fee for processing the petition with the Waterboard but
generally the additional $850 fee to Fish & Wildlife is waived due to the benefits to fish & wildlife.
The District would give up their right to divert the water for municipal uses, but would still hold
the water right with the new POU & beneficial uses.

Cody and | have reached out to GHD, SHN, North Point, and LACO to discuss the elements of
this project and the viability of their providing the CEQA services for the project. The only firm
that has provided a proposal to date is LACO, which is attached. LACO’s proposal is based
upon the assumption that | will continue to manage the project elements related to the
Waterboard, CDFW, and DDW and will be available to assist in creating the project description
and reviewing the documents as they are drafted to provide any clarifications or corrections as
needed. There are some minor elements of the contract terms that | am working with them on to
change, but the scope of services as presented is complete. Cody and | are both in agreement
that the District should proceed with having LACO complete the environmental review and we
are requesting that the Board authorize Cody to sign the agreement on behalf of the Board.

1|2Pages



4)sConsulting

Division of Drinking Water Process:

The application for an amendment to a domestic water supply permit was submitted to the
Klamath District Engineer of the Division of Drinking Water on November 21, 2024. The
application was focused on adding the infrastructure from West Coast Road out to the Meadows
Business Park. No additional documentation has been requested and we are awaiting review by
DDW.

CDFW Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement for the Raw Water Intake in SF Eel River
Process:

The notice has been completed and submitted to CDFW as of March 7, 2025. The next step will
be for CDFW to produce a draft Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement for the District to
review. This will probably take 3 months.

Humboldt LAFCo

Mr. Voice had inquired with the Executive Director about whether the RCSD needs to obtain any
additional approvals from LAFCo related to the provision of water to the parcels annexed for
sewer service at the Meadows Business Park. Ms. Santsche responded to his inquiry via email
on June 17, 2024 (attached) stating that “Since the Meadows Business Park had already been
annexed to Redway CSD in 1993, no additional LAFCo approvals would have been required for
the District to accept the established private water system and begin providing service’. In an
effort to obtain a more formal response from LAFCo, | prepared a letter for Cody to send to her
so that she can make a formal finding or provide it to the commission in some form that will
result in a response on LAFCo letterhead that can be used to combat Mr. Voice’s assertions with
the Waterboard and/or Fish and Wildlife. The letter is attached for your information.

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS
1. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract with LACO Associates for CEQA
services

2. Authorize the submittal of a Petition for 1707 Instream Dedication on the unnamed spring
(A23018) permit to the State Waterboard

Attachments:
LACO Associates Proposal
Letter to LAFCo with inspection documents
Email from LAFCo’s Executive Officer

2|2Pages



LAC

>passociates.com

PROJECT NO. 7009.04
ENGINEERING SERVICE AGREEMENT for Planning Services
Redway Community Services District, referred to as “CLIENT”, requests, and LACO Associates, referred to as “LACO”, agree to
provide Planning services for the following project.

Project Name: Redway CSD: Place of Use CEQA
Project Location: Redway, California

Description of Scope and Services to Be Provided
e Please refer to the attached Exhibit A dated April 11, 2025.

Estimated Completion Time Frame
e December 1, 2025, 8 Months

*Estimated date of completion is contingent on when we receive the signed agreement and specified retainer and assumptions listed in the Exhibit A
dated April 11, 2025.

Prevailing Wage rates do not apply to this project.
Payment Terms: Net 15

CLIENT agrees to pay at the hourly rates and to pay all other costs for the work or portion of work performed as set forth in the

“SCHEDULE OF RATES” attached and made a part of this Agreement. The time and material based not to exceed fee is: $47,640*
*This is an estimate of the anticipated costs associated with the services we are proposing to provide. An estimate is made with our best professional
judgment, but we cannot anticipate everything that will happen during the course of completing your project and there are often unforeseen
circumstances or conditions that result in a greater commitment of staff resources than the originally estimated amount. LACO reserves the right, as
a condition of this service agreement, to invoice up to an amount 10% greater than the amount originally estimated without CLIENT consultation and
without a fully executed service agreement amendment.

Retainer has been waived for this project.
This agreement includes the following attachments: GENERAL CONDITIONS, labeled GEN2007, Schedule of Rates, and others (if

any) noted above.
This agreement is entered on this day, April 11, 2025, in Eureka, Humboldt County, California.

SIGNED SIGNED

LACO Associates

21 West Fourth Street PRINTED

Eureka, CA 95501

(707) 443-5054 DATE

Principal: Meghan K. Ryan CLIENT: Redway Community Services District
PM: Megan M. Marruffo Cody Cox, General Manager

ADDRESS: PO Box 40
Redway, CA 95560
PHONE: 707-923-3101

Received on Retainer EMAIL: redwaycsd@gmail.com
21 W Fourth Street 1072 N State Street 1550 Airport Blvd., Suite 120 2561 California Park Dr., #200
Eureka, CA 95501 Ukiah, CA 95482 Santa Rosa, CA 95403 Chico, CA 95928
707 443-5054 707 462-0222 707 525-1222 530 801-6170

Toll Free 800 515-5054
Native Owned | Community Partners | Trusted Advisors



LACO

laocoassociates.com

EXHIBIT A
Redway Community Services District
Place of Use CEQA
Redway, California
Assessor’s Parcel Number: Various
LACO Project No. 7009.04
April 11, 2025

Redway Community Services District (RCSD; CLIENT) has requested professional services from LACO
Associates (LACO) for environmental review services pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) associated with updating existing water rights through the State Water Resources Control Board
(SWRCB) - Division of Water Rights regarding the spring and Place Of Use (POU) to include the existing
Meadows Business Park (Site), located off Evergreen Road, east of the community of Redway, which is
currently served by the RCSD.

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

LACO understands that the Site is located east of the community of Redway and consists of approximately
260 acres. As described by the Timeline for Meadows Subdivisions: Overview Units 1 & 2 | Detail for Unit 3
(Business Park) Phase 1 and 2 Draft (Timeline) prepared by 4JS Consulting dated August 2024, LACO
understands that the original subdivision approval included development of 152 parcels divided into three
units. Initially, two groundwater wells would supply water and the RCSD would provide wastewater services.
After approval of Unit 2, two groundwater wells and a 100,000-gallon water tank were installed in 1986. On
June 23, 1992, the Humboldt County Board of Supervisors approved a revised tentative map for Unit 2 where
water continued to be provided by the existing infrastructure.

After approval of the Tentative Map in 1992, the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) then
proceeded with annexation of the Site into the RCSD for sewer services. LAFCO approved the annexation
on September 8, 1993. This approval included adoption of a Conditional Negative Declaration (CND; SCH
#93081004) for the annexatfion of the Meadows Business Park into the RCSD for sewer services and fire
protection services from the Redway Fire Protection District. The CND states that while water will contfinue to
be supplied by existing wells as the primary water source, noting an application for water service may be
submitted in the future. LACO understands that at the fime the infrastructure for wastewater collection was
developed, a water line was also developed for immediate connection to and service from the RCSD due
fo production issues with the well.. LACO understands subsequent Tentative Maps and environmental review
included evaluation of the water supply and supporting infrastructure.

LACO further understands that since 1998, the CLIENT has been providing water to Meadows Business Park
through existing water license and water permit (Appropriative License A11876 and Appropriative Permit
23017). LACO understands the CLIENT submitted a Petition for Change to the SWRCB — Water Rights Division
to permanently change the existing water rights to include the Meadows Business Park as a POU. As
described by the Petition for Change, both water rights are diverted from a single infiliration gallery in the
South Fork (SF) Eel River. The water is treated and distributed throughout the RCSD service area. There are a
number of parcels that were annexed into the RCSD Jurisdictional Boundary in 1993. Those parcels were
served with water by RCSD in 1998. Those parcels should have been added to the POU but were not. This
petition is to expand the POU to include all parcels currently receiving service and to provide emergency
bulk (frucked) water to the CalFire Concentration Camp in Redway.

Project 7009.04, Exhibit A
Initials: LACO CLIENT



LACO

laocoassociates.com

Additionally, LACO understands that RCSD has petitioned the SWRCB for an Extension of Time for the diversion
of water from the river under permit 15665. LACO further understands that the third water right held by the
RCSD allows for diversion from an unnamed spring (A23018/P15666), which is tributary to the South Fork of the
Eel River. LACO understands that the RCSD is requesting that the permit for the unnamed spring be licensed
by the SWRCB - Division of Water Rights. The Project Description for the IS/MND will include a description of
the Petition to Extend Time application for the river permit and historical and current use of the spring. LACO
understands that as a part of the Peftition to Change process, the SWRCB - Division of Water Rights is
requesting environmental review pursuant to CEQA.

LACO understands no ground disturbance is required for the Project; therefore, LACO assumes no additional
technical studies (e.g. biological assessment or cultural resources study) will be required. Pending further
Project evaluation and coordination with the SWRCB - Division of Water Rights, LACO is recommending an
Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) be prepared. Through further evaluation, should
another level of environmental review (such as a CEQA Exemption, Addendum or Environmental Impact
Report (EIR)) be feasible or required, LACO will discuss with the CLIENT and determine if a Service Agreement
Amendment is necessary. Additionally, Tasks not specifically identified in the Scope of Services below are not
included, including but not limited to preparation of any special studies, entitlement applications, and/or
public hearing support. These services are available upon request and would require a Service Agreement
Amendment.

SCOPE OF SERVICES
LACO proposes the following scope of services:

Phase 1000: Project Management and Client Communication

This phase includes LACQO’s internal project coordination, invoicing, budget and schedule monitoring, and
CLIENT communication. Invoices and correspondence with the CLIENT will be conducted under this phase.
Phase 1000 includes up to two (2) 30-minute video conference and/or phone meetings with CLIENT to discuss
project status and benchmarks over the course of the project. Invoices and correspondence with the CLIENT
will be conducted under this task. This fask also includes preparation and aftendance for two LACO staff to
prepare for and atfend a 30-minute meeting with the SWRCB and CLIENT to discuss the project and
approach to environmental review. Monthly invoices will be delivered to the CLIENT that willinclude a review
of project and budget status.

Phase 2000: Planning Services

Task 2001: CEQA Initial Study

LACO will prepare a CEQA Initial Study (IS) for the proposed change in place of use and permit for extension
of time based upon publicly available information and documentation provided by the CLIENT. Document
preparation will include responses to the standard questions included in Appendix G of the State CEQA
Guidelines about the potential level of environmental impact of the project, pertaining to the environmental
categories listed in the IS checklist. This fask includes summarization of the project site setting,
recommendations, findings, and mitigation measures (if any) for incorporation into the IS, in addition to
preparation of figures to convey the project location. Should any mitigation measures be determined
necessary for the project, LACO will also prepare a comprehensive Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
Program (MMRP), pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15097, which will contain all mitigation measures
identified in the IS.

Project 7009.04, Exhibit A
Initials: LACO CLIENT



LACO

laocoassociates.com

The RCSD will act as Lead Agency for this project and will use the information provided in the IS to defermine
the environmental document to be circulated to the State Clearinghouse. LACO cannot confrol the
schedule or results of the CEQA Initial Study. This proposal is based on the assumption that no technical or
special studies will be required and that a Negative Declaration (ND) or Mitigated Negative Declaration
(MND) will be adopted by the RCSD; however, the RCSD as Lead Agency will make the final determination
on what is the appropriate environmental document. Should a different environmental review document be
determined necessary for the project, such as an Environmental Impact Report (EIR), an amendment to this
agreement would be required.

As part of the CEQA process, LACO will request a Native American Contacts List and Sacred Lands File (SLF)
Search from the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC). Once the contact list and SLF search results
are received from the NAHC, LACO will prepare draft fribal consultations letters to be sent by the RCSD to
notify the local Native American Tribes on the NAHC contact list of the project and to request input regarding
any specific areas within the Area of Potential Effect (APE) which may be likely to harbor culturally valuable
resources. Additionally, LACO will request a Records Search from the Northwest Information Center (NWIC)
at Sonoma State University to identify: 1) whether any prior surveys have been conducted at the Site, 2) if the
Site contains any known resources; 3) the probability of the Site containing unrecorded resources, and 4)
recommendations from NWIC. If a cultural resource study is requested, this will be contracted separately.

This task also includes coordination with resources agencies prior fo and during drafting of the IS/MND. These
services include the preparation and attendance for two LACO staff to prepare for and attend one 30-
minute meeting with the SWRCB and CLIENT to discuss the project and approach to environmental review.
This task also includes up to five hours for the LACO Planning Director and Senior Planner to coordinate with
the California Department of Fish and Wildlife to address questions and attend one 30-minute as needed. As
a part of maintaining the administrative record, LACO will maintain records of communication with resource
agencies and provide action summaries of any meetings.

The scope of services includes:
¢ Oneround of review and revision of an Administrative Draft Initial Study by the CLIENT (Lead Agency).
e Preparation of a Nofice of Availability (NOA) for delivery to the State Clearinghouse, Humboldt
County Clerk, all organizations and individuals who have previously requested such notice, and at
least one of the following:
o Publication at least one time in a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by
the proposed project;
Posting of notices on and off the site in the area where the project is to be located; and/or
Direct mailing to the owners and occupants of property contiguous to the parcel on which
the project is located.
e Preparation of the Notice of Completion (NOC) and Summary Form for submittal to the State
Clearinghouse.
e Submittal of the Draft CEQA IS and associated forms (NOA, NOC, and Summary Form) to the State
Clearinghouse for circulation and review by agencies and the public.
e Preparation of an Agency Item Summary, draft Resolution, and Notice of Determination (NOD) for
adoption of the Draft CEQA IS by the RCSD Board of Directors.
e Submittal of the NOD to the State Clearinghouse and Humboldt County Clerk following adoption of
the Draft CEQA IS by the RCSD Board of Directors.

Schedule and Deliverables:

Project 7009.04, Exhibit A
Initials: LACO CLIENT



LAl

lacoassoc

0O
-

iates.com

An electronic copy (.pdf) of the Administrative Draft CEQA IS will be delivered to the CLIENT for
review and comment within 16 weeks from receipt of signed confract, specified retainer, Native
American Contacts List and SLF Search results from the NAHC, and Records Search Summary from
the NWIC. Delivery of the draft document may also be affected by the availability of SWRCB staff or
other external factors beyond LACQO’s confrol. LACO will provide regular updates to the CLIENT
regarding the status of the Draft CEQA IS and delivery date.

Electronic copies (.pdf) of the CEQA IS, NOA, NOC, and Summary Form, as delivered to the State
Clearinghouse, will be delivered to the CLIENT, in addition to the draft Agenda Item Summary,
Resolution, and NOD.

The CEQA IS, NOA, NOC, and Summary Form will be uploaded to the State Clearinghouse on behalf
of the RCSD through the CEQA Submit portal within 2 weeks of receipt of comments from CLIENT.
The NOD will be filed with the Humboldt County Clerk within five working days of adoption of the
CEQA IS by the RCSD Board of Directors. A copy of the NOD will be uploaded to the State
Clearinghouse on behalf of the CLIENT through the CEQA Submit portal within 24 hours of filing the
NOD with the Humboldt County Clerk.

FEE
Phase Task Description Estimated
Fee
1000 Project Management and Client Communication $8,500
2000 Planning Servies
2001 CEQA Initial Study $39.140
Total Estimated Fee $47,640

LACO wiill invoice Client based on time and materials. The estimated fee is $47,640%.
*This is an estimate of the anticipated costs associated with the services we are proposing to provide. An estimate is made with

our best,

professional judgment but we cannot anticipate everything that will happen during the course of completing your project

and there are often unforeseen circumstances or conditions that result in a greater commitment of staff resources than the
originally estimated amount. LACO reserves the right, as a condition of this service agreement, to invoice up to an amount 10%
greater than the amount originally estimated without CLIENT consultation and without a fully executed service agreement
amendment.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, AND SERVICES NOT PROVIDED

LACO does not make any guarantee of the viability of the project, the date upon which approvals
will be received, or the successful completion of the project. LACO does not possess any control
over the discretionary approval process employed by any involved government agency, or the
fimely processing of application submittals.

Tasks not specifically identified in the Scope of Services above are not included, including but not
limited to preparation of any special studies, enfitlement applications, and/or public hearing
support. These services are available upon request and would require a Service Agreement
Amendment.

Additional services outside of the specific scope of work provided above will not be provided without
an amendment to this agreement.

CLIENT will pay all public agency fees associated with this project. However, should the CLIENT
request payment of any fiing fees to the Humboldt County Clerk by LACO, a 15 percent
administrative fee would apply. Please note payment of any filing fees to the Humboldt County Clerk

Project 7009.04, Exhibit A

Initials: LACO CLIENT



LACO

laocoassociates.com

on behalf of the CLIENT would be charged as Reimbursable Expenses and would be separate from
the specific phase and task budgets denoted in the table above.

e LACO assumes free and unrestricted access to the project site over the duration of our contract.

¢ An environmental assessment or any exploration for the presence or absence of any hazardous,
toxic, or corrosive materials is not included in this scope of services.

Project 7009.04, Exhibit A
Initials: LACO CLIENT



LAC

locoassociates.com

GENERAL CONDITIONS

LACO will perform only those services outlined in the agreed scope of work, except that CLIENT and LACO may subsequently agree in writing to
provide for additional services to be rendered under this agreement for additional, negotiated compensation. The above scope of work represents
the minimum program at this time. As the results of records search or other investigations or tests become known, other tests and/or sampling may
be recommended to the CLIENT for written approval as Additional Services.

Invoices may be submitted to CLIENT as frequently as every four (4) weeks and/or upon completion of the work and are due and payable when
presented. All accounts not paid in full within agreed payment terms will include a late payment charge from the date of the invoice, at the rate of
1.5% per month. If legal action is instituted on this account, the prevailing party shall be awarded such attorney's fees and other costs as the Court
may adjudge to be reasonable. The CLIENT acknowledges the requirements of reporting cash payments for services that exceed $10,000 under
federal law. Generally, any person, as defined, in a trade or business who receives more than $10,000 in cash in a single transaction or in related
transactions must file a Form 8300 with the Internal Revenue Service. CLIENT understands that if such payment(s) are made to LACO, a Form 8300
will have to be submitted by LACO.

If CLIENT for any reason fails to pay the undisputed portion of LACO’s invoices fifteen (15) days after invoice due date, LACO has the right to cease
work on the project, and CLIENT agrees to waive any claim against LACO for cessation of services, and shall defend and indemnify LACO from and
against any claims for injury or loss stemming from LACO’s cessation of service. CLIENT agrees to pay LACO the cost associated with premature project
demobilization.

In the event the project is remobilized, CLIENT agrees to pay the cost of remobilization, and shall renegotiate appropriate contract terms and
conditions, such as those associated with budget, schedule, or scope of service.

In the event any bill or portion thereof is disputed by CLIENT, CLIENT shall notify LACO within ten (10) days of receipt of the bill in question, and
CLIENT and LACO shall work together to resolve the matter within sixty (60) days of its being called to the attention of LACO. If resolution of the
matter is not attained within sixty (60) days, either party may terminate this Agreement in accordance with condition contained herein.

LACO agrees to strive to perform the services set forth in this Agreement in accordance with generally accepted professional practices, in the same
or similar localities, related to the nature of the work accomplished, at the time the services are performed. LACO's services shall not be subject to
any expressed or implied warranties whatsoever.

LACO's services shall not include directly or indirectly storing, arranging for or actually transporting, disposing, treating or monitoring hazardous
substances, hazardous materials, hazardous wastes or hazardous oils, except for delivery of samples to a laboratory. Unless specifically listed in the
Proposal or Scope of Work, services exclude testing for the presence of asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), radon gas, or any airborne
pollutants.

CLIENT recognizes that subsurface conditions may vary from those observed at locations where borings, surveys, or explorations are made, and that
site conditions may change with time. Data interpretations, and recommendations by LACO will be based solely on information available to LACO.
LACO is responsible for these data, interpretations, recommendations, but will not accept responsibility for other parties' interpretations or use of
the information developed. Because geologic and soil formations are inherently random, variable, and indeterminate in nature, the professional
services rendered by LACO, and opinions provided with respect to such services under this Agreement (including opinions regarding potential cleanup
costs), are not guaranteed to be representative of actual site conditions or contamination or costs, which are subject to change with time as a result
of natural or man-made processes.

The CLIENT shall provide all information in its possession, custody, or control which relates to the site, its present and prior uses, or to activities at
the site which may bear upon the services of LACO under this Agreement. LACO may rely on the completeness and accuracy of information supplied
by CLIENT without further verification.

In recognition of the inherent risk of claims associated with the services to be provided and in consideration of our agreement to perform these
services, CLIENT agrees to limit LACO's liability for CLIENT and any third parties arising from LACO's professional acts, errors or omissions, such that
the total aggregate liability of engineer to all those named shall not exceed $50,000 or LACO's total fee for services rendered on this project,
whichever is greater. (If CLIENT wishes to discuss higher limits and charges involved, he should speak with LACO.) CLIENT further agrees to require of
any contractors or subcontractors an identical limitation of LACO's liability for damages suffered by the contractor or subcontractor arising from
LACO's professional acts, errors, or omissions. Neither the contractor, nor any of his subcontractors assumes any liability for damages to others which
may arise on account of LACO's professional acts, errors or omissions except as otherwise stipulated herein. Limitations on liability and indemnities
in this Agreement are business understandings between the parties, voluntarily and knowingly entered into, and shall apply to all theories of recovery,
including but not limited to, breach of contract, warranty, tort (including negligence), strict or statutory liability, or any other cause of action, except
for willful misconduct or gross negligence.
Redway CSD: Place of Use CEQA
Initials: LACO CLIENT
GEN2007




LAC

locoassociates.com

Both CLIENT and LACO agree that, to the extent allowed by law, they will not be liable to each other for special, indirect, or consequential damages
arising out of or related to this Agreement, whether caused by negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of contract, breach of warranty or
other cause or causes whatsoever.

By this Agreement, LACO specifically excludes, disclaims and is discharged from any responsibility or liability for all direct or indirect loss or harm
resulting from the presence, failure to discover, interception, escape or discharge of hazardous or toxic materials of any kind, including the
contamination of soil, water, air or other property as a result thereof. This exclusion included, but is not limited to, exploration, testing, analysis, or
recommendations by LACO.

LACO’s scope of work does not include the investigation or detection of the presence of any Biological Pollutants in or around any structure. CLIENT
agrees that LACO will have no liability for any claim regarding bodily injury or property damage alleged to arise from or be caused by the presence of
or exposure to any Biological Pollutants in or around any structure. In addition, CLIENT will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless LACO from any
third party claim for damages alleged to arise from or be caused by the presence of or exposure to any Biological Pollutants in or around any structure,
except for damages arising from or caused by LACO’s sole negligence. The term “Biological Pollutants” includes, but is not limited to, molds, fungi,
spores, bacteria, and viruses, and the byproducts of any such biological organisms.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, CLIENT agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold LACO, its agents, subcontractors, and employees harmless from
and against any and all claims, defense costs, including attorney's fees, damages, and other liabilities arising out of or in any way related to LACO's
reports or recommendations concerning this Agreement, LACO's presence on the project property, or the presence, release, or threatened release
of asbestos, hazardous substances, or pollutants on or from the project property; provided that CLIENT shall not indemnify LACO against liability for
damages to the extent caused by the negligence or intentional misconduct of LACO, its agents, subcontractors, or employees.

CLIENT waives any claim against LACO and agrees to defend, indemnify and hold LACO harmless for injury or loss which may arise as a result of (1)
alleged cross-contamination of aquifers caused by sampling, (2) release of pollutants to the environment, (3) drill cuttings, fluids or other presumed
hazardous materials being left on-site after containerization by LACO, (4) containing, labeling, transporting, testing, storing, or other handling of
contaminated samples, (5) any work, error, omission or negligent act performed by contractors or others under not complete and direct supervision
by LACO for the specific task concerned.

CLIENT is responsible for accurately delineating the locations of all underground structures and utilities. LACO will take reasonable precautions to
avoid known subterranean structures, and CLIENT agrees to defend, indemnify and hold LACO harmless from any claim or liability for injury or loss,
including costs of defense, arising from damage done to subterranean structures and utilities not identified or accurately located.

In the absence of special arrangements, all uncontaminated samples of soil or rocks will be disposed of by LACO sixty (60) days after submission of
our report. Soil, water, rock and/or other waste materials generated during work on the project site shall remain the sole property and responsibility
of CLIENT. It is CLIENT’s sole responsibility to arrange for lawful disposal of all waste materials. Soil, water, rock and/or other waste materials
generated during LACO’s work efforts on behalf of the CLIENT which may be contaminated with hazardous or toxic materials or potentially hazardous
or toxic materials will be containerized on the site in approved containers at such times as they may be generated. Such materials may be required
by law to be characterized and disposed of within a limited time frame. Arranging for disposal of hazardous or toxic materials or potentially hazardous
or toxic materials is specifically excluded from the scope of LACO’s services. Upon written request from the CLIENT, LACO may assist in coordinating
or facilitating lawful disposal procedures by an appropriately-licensed contractor employed by the CLIENT. Regardless of any coordination or
facilitation of disposal of hazardous or toxic materials or potentially hazardous or toxic materials by LACO on behalf of the CLIENT, CLIENT agrees to
indemnify and hold harmless LACO from any claim of liability for injury, loss or environmental damage, including cost of defense, arising from any
disposal of hazardous or toxic materials or potentially hazardous or toxic materials.

All laboratory and field equipment contaminated with suspected or potentially toxic or hazardous substances in performing our services will be
cleaned at CLIENT's expense. Contaminated consumables will be disposed of and replaced at CLIENT's expense. Equipment (including tools) which
cannot be reasonably decontaminated shall become the property and responsibility of the CLIENT. All such equipment shall be delivered to the
CLIENT or disposed of in a manner similar to that indicated for hazardous samples. CLIENT agrees to pay the fair market value of any such equipment
which cannot reasonably be decontaminated.

CLIENT has relied on LACO's judgement in establishing the workscope and fee for this project, given the project's nature and risks. CLIENT shall,
therefore, rely on LACO's judgement as to the continued adequacy of this Agreement in light of occurrences or discoveries not originally contemplated
or known. Should LACO call for contract renegotiation, LACO shall identify the changed conditions which, in LACO's judgement make such
renegotiation necessary, and LACO and CLIENT shall promptly and in good faith enter into renegotiation of this Agreement to help permit LACO to
continue to meet CLIENT's needs. If renegotiated terms cannot be agreed to, CLIENT agrees that LACO has an absolute right to terminate this
Agreement.

Redway CSD: Place of Use CEQA
Initials: LACO CLIENT
GEN2007




LAC

locoassociates.com

LACO and CLIENT agree that discovery of unanticipated hazardous or toxic materials constitutes a changed condition mandating renegotiation or
termination of services. LACO agrees to notify CLIENT as soon as practically possible should unanticipated hazardous materials or suspected
hazardous or toxic materials be encountered. CLIENT agrees to make any disclosures required by law to the appropriate governmental agencies.
CLIENT and LACO also agree that discovery of hazardous materials may make it necessary for LACO to take immediate action to protect health and
safety. CLIENT agrees to compensate LACO for all costs required for such action and other costs incident to such unanticipated discovery of hazardous
or toxic materials.

CLIENT agrees that construction contractors, subcontractors or others not affiliated with LACO are solely responsible for safety at and near the project
site. LACO will have no responsibility or liability for methods of work performance, supervision including selection of equipment, selection or direction
of contractor's employees, or sequencing of construction other than that done by LACO's own employees. LACO will not be responsible for excavation
safety, temporary slopes, shoring, underpinning, dewatering, or other construction activities of the contractor(s) and subcontractor(s).

Unless otherwise agreed, CLIENT will furnish to LACO, its agents, representatives and subcontractors right-of-entry on land for planned field
operations. CLIENT will notify any and all possessors of the project site that the CLIENT has granted LACO free access to the site. LACO will take
reasonable precautions to minimize damage to the site, but it is understood by CLIENT that, in the normal course of work, some damage may occur
and the correction of such damage is not part of the Agreement unless so specified in the proposal or scope of work.

All documents, reports, boring logs, field and survey notes, tracings, and other documents prepared by LACO as instruments of service shall remain
the property of LACO. All designs, information, reports, or recommendations prepared or issued by LACO are for the sole use of the CLIENT for the
specific project for which they are prepared. CLIENT agrees not to provide such materials to any person or organization unless the person or
organization agrees in writing to be bound by the conditions of this Agreement. CLIENT agrees to save and hold LACO harmless from any liability
arising from any use made by CLIENT or any other party outside the intent of this Agreement.

All claims, disputes, and other matters in controversy between LACO and CLIENT arising out of or in any way related to this Agreement will be
submitted to "alternative dispute resolution" (ADR) before and as a condition precedent to other remedies provided by law. If and to the extent that
CLIENT and LACO have agreed on methods for resolving such disputes, then such methods will be set forth in the "Alternative Dispute Resolution
Agreement" which, if attached, is incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement. If no specific ADR procedures are set forth in this Agreement,
then it shall be understood that the parties will submit disputes to mediation as a condition precedent to litigation.

If a dispute at law arises from matters related to the services provided under this Agreement and that dispute requires litigation instead of ADR as
provided above, then: (1) the claim will be brought and tried in the judicial jurisdiction of the Court of the county where LACO's principal place of
business is located and CLIENT waives the right to remove the action to any other county or judicial jurisdiction, and (2) the prevailing party will be
entitled to recovery of all reasonable costs incurred, including staff time, Court costs, attorney's fees, and other claim related expenses.

This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon ten (10) days written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested. If CLIENT elects to
terminate this Agreement, CLIENT will be responsible for all charges, as computed under this Agreement, for work performed by LACO through the
tenth day after mailing of the notice of termination.

The laws of the State of California will govern the validity of the terms, their interpretation and performance. If any of the provisions contained in
this Agreement are held illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the enforceability of the remaining provisions will not be impaired. Limitations of liability
and indemnities will survive termination of this Agreement for any cause.

Redway CSD: Place of Use CEQA
Initials: LACO CLIENT
GEN2007




LAC

laocoassociates.com

2025 SCHEDULE OF RATES

Senior Managing Engineer/Surveyor, Principal ENGINEET ........cccvvvvviivie it $250.00 - $275.00 per hour
Senior Project Manager, Senior Engineer, Senior Land Surveyor, Principal Planner........cccecue.... $195.00 - $210.00 per hour
Director of Grants & Funding Development, Project Manager, Senior Planner........ccccovvvvvviieiveneneinenenonnns $185.00 per hour
Assistant Project Manager, Licensed Land SUIVEYOT ......cccvuviiieiieiiieiieieiieeserieeesesres e serenesssrenesesenenesesanenes $175.00 per hour
Associate Planner, Associate Surveyor LSIT, Associate ENgineer..........cccccvveeeeeiecciieeeeeeeceereeee $165.00 - $170.00 per hour
Senior Grant Writer, Staff Engineer/Surveyor, Associate Surveyor, Senior Staff Engineer .........$150.00 - $160.00 per hour
Assistant Planner, Grant Writer, Assistant Engineer/Surveyor, Staff Planner ..................... ...5135.00 - $145.00 per hour
Project Coordinator, Senior Project Coordinator, Grant Analyst, Business Manager.................. $100.00 - $120.00 per hour
ENGINEEIING TECNNICIAN. ...ttt et se ettt e e bt s st e e sttt e smeeesb e e e nneesneeenne $80.00 per hour
SURVEY RATES
ONE-PEISON SUIVEY ...eiiriiiriiiririr et e e e e e e e s e e e e e e e e e e et e e eaeaeaeaesenenenenenanenes $200.00 per hour
TWO-PEISON SUINVEY ..oeviririririiiiierererererererererererererererererererererererereneneranenenanonenanensnensnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsssssssnssss $310.00 per hour
TIIEE-PEISON SUIVEY .eeeneeiieeeeieeee sttt e ettt e ee ettt e s etaee e e st te e e e s raeeeantaeesasstaeesessaeeessaeaeasatanesasteeesasseneesassneeannen $390.00 per hour
Drone Data Processing & CHENT ACCESS FEE.....uuiiii ittt e e e e e e se b e e e e e e ee e ntnseeeeeaeeeesnnnens $650.00 each
MaVic 3E / PRANTOM 4 RTK DIONE ..ot ettt eteeeee e et e eeeeeteeeetaeeeseeesseeseneeesntesenseesnteseseeasesensesenseeeaneeean $750.00 per day
Matrice 300 Drone W/LL LIDAR SENSOT .....ccueeiteeeeeeeeeteeeeeeeeeeeeteeeeteeetesessaeenaesesseseebesessseeesesessseeeneeeenseeenees $1,500.00 per day
PREVAILING WAGE RATES
CONSEIUCTION ODSEIVATION. ..uveviititiririririrerererererererererereres e ———n e resesesesesesesesesesesesererereresessesesesesteresesesesesereserene $190.00 per hour
ONe-Person SUrVeY Prevailing WaBE........uviciiiiieeeiie ettt e sre e ettt e ste e e svaesbeeestaesabasessaesssaeesssesssseesssenanes $235.00 per hour
TWO-Person SUrVey PrevailiNg Wage.......coicuvieiieiiiieee ettt sve et ste s veesabeeeveesabeeesaesabaeenanesnseesanenas $390.00 per hour
Three-Person SUrVeY Prevailing WaZE ......c.uviovee et sve e st e e st te e st e taesaneeantnesaneeananeeas $520.00 per hour
TRANSPORTATION
Automobile and pickup:

Trip charge per day (half-day minimum charge) .......cccocoeevvviiiivceee e, $70.00 per day ($35 minimum charge)

Over 80 miles Federal Rate + $0.10 per mile
Other transportation, @ir trAVEl, ETC. ....iiiiiiii et e e s e e e s b e e sbea e e s sabeeeesstbeeeeantaeeesnraeeeans SCost + 15%
PRINTING/MATERIALS
Plan copies per sheet (11X17) ....cccccevevrerrennene. black & White SO.25 ... ..o color $2.50 each
Plan copies per sheet (24X36) ........ccceeveeurennenne. black & white $5.00................... mylar $20.00 ................ color $21.25 each
All other Materials OF PriNTING.......oo it ettt h e et e s bt e st e s seeesbeeeneeesaneeanes $ Cost + 15%

EXPERT WITNESS SERVICES — Expert witness services include, but are not limited to, preparation for and attendance at depositions
or court by Principal or Senior Professionals. Other staff support will be billed at regular hourly rates.

Principal Professional Expert $500.00 per hour
N 1oL e fel (=R oY g = =4 =1 o OSSR $400.00 per hour

ANNUAL RATE INCREASE - LACO Associates anticipates an annual hourly rate increase of 3% to 5% effective January 1%t of each new
year without prior notice. For projects that span multiple years, an updated Schedule of Rates will be sent with the first invoice that
reflects the annual increase.

NOTES
1. The above rates are regular hourly rates and include payroll costs, overhead, and profit. If overtime is requested by the Client,
it will be charged at 130% of the above hourly rates.
2. Outside services, including, but not limited to, consultants and laboratories, will be billed at Cost plus 15%.
Subsistence and per diem will be calculated at Cost plus 15%.
4.  All travel time will be charged at the regular hourly rates.

w

Initials: LACO CLIENT,
Revised: 1/01/2025



Redway Community Services District

PO Box 40
Redway, CA 95560
(707) 923-3101
April 15, 2025
Humboldt LAFCo

Attn: Executive Officer Santsche
670 9th Street, Suite 202
Arcata, CA 95521

SUBJECT: Inquiry on status of Jurisdictional Boundary and Powers for Service Within
Dear Ms. Santsche:

The Redway Community Services District has undertaken a project wherein we are expanding
our Place of Use with the State Water Resources Control Board Division of Water Rights to
include all of the parcels that are within our Jurisdictional Boundary. As you are already aware,
the Meadows Business Park was annexed into the RCSD Jurisdictional Boundary for sewer
services via Resolution 93-04 and subsequent to that, the subdivision was connected to the
RCSD water system with a new transmission line in Redwood Drive. A copy of the waterline
inspection letter is attached for your reference.

In Nov 2024, HLAFCo adopted a Southern Humboldt region Municipal Services Review that
included the RCSD. In that document it clearly showed the RCSD Jurisdictional Boundary and
stated that the District provided water and sewer services within. As part of this project, Mr.
Voice has asserted that the District must process a secondary annexation (or other action) with
LAFCo because LAFCo never formally took action that detailed their approval for water service
to the Meadows Business Park. The District, as a community services district, has the powers
to provide both water and sewer service within their Jurisdictional Boundary and has been
providing both water and sewer service to the subdivision for decades. It is our contention that
additional action is not needed by LAFCo for the District to provide water service to parcels that
have already been annexed inio the District.

The RCSD is formally requesting that LAFCo provide written clarification on the status of the
approval of LAFCo for water service to the subdivision. This will leave no doubt for the two
state agencies that we are working with on the legitimacy of the water service to these parcels.
We will likely include your letter in the upcoming CEQA document for the change in Place of
Use.

If LAFCo determines that some type of application needs to be made to LAFCo to retroactively
“approve” the water service, please be specific about what the process will entail and why it is
necessary in light of the most recent MSR. We appreciate your assistance with clearing up this
guestion.

Respectfully,

RCSD General Manager

Jmshart



M G ma || Jennie Short <4jsconsulting@gmail.com>

RE: RCSD Meadows Business Park Water Use Agreement

1 message

Colette Santsche <colette@humboldtlafco.org> Mon, Jun 17, 2024 at 12:48 PM
To: Ed Voice <evoice@mchsi.com>
Cc: Krystle Heaney <krystleh@humboldtlafco.org>, cody@redwaycsd.org

Hi Ed,

I looked in both electronic and paper files that LAFCo has for Redway CSD and don’t see any correspondence or other records
related to water service to the Meadows Business Park other than the attached request to the Redway CSD from Wallan and
Johnson, dated December 4, 1997. Since the Meadows Business Park had already been annexed to Redway CSD in 1993, no
additional LAFCo approvals would have been required for the District to accept the established private water system and begin
providing service. Regarding the storage tank, there is no requirement that service infrastructure be included within an agency
boundary. For instance, the Ferndale wastewater treatment plant is located entirely outside of the city limits. LAFCo is interested in
the actual delivery of services to a specific property, and LAFCo approval is required before new or extended services outside
agency boundaries are provided. Furthermore, new or extended services established before January 1, 2001, are specifically
exempt and are not within the purview of the Commission (e.g., CAL FIRE Eel River Conservation Camp and YMCA Camp are both
historic connections that predate the requirement for LAFCo approval).

Hope this helps. Let me know if you have any follow-up questions.

Colette Santsche
Humboldt LAFCo
707.445.7508

humboldtlafco.org

From: Ed Voice <evoice@mchsi.com>

Sent: Sunday, June 9, 2024 1:43 PM

To: Colette Metz <colettem@humboldtlafco.org>

Cc: krystleh <krystleh@humboldtlafco.org>

Subject: Re: RCSD Meadows Business Park Water Use Agreement

Hi again Colette,

My 2nd question to the attached agreement, it gives RCSD the whole water system used by the Meadows Business Park, which includes the 100,000
gallon concrete water storage tank that is outside the RCSD Jurisdictional Boundary and SOI? Do you know why that 100,000 gallon water storage
tank was never annexed, as stated in the agreement and since RCSD is using that 100,000 gallon water storage tank with RCSD water and outside
the current district boundary and SOI??

Thank you,

Ed Voice

From: "Ed Voice" <evoice@mchsi.com>

To: "Colette Metz" <colettem@humboldtlafco.org>

Cc: "krystleh” <krystleh@humboldtlafco.org>

Sent: Saturday, June 8, 2024 11:17:54 PM

Subject: RCSD Meadows Business Park Water Use Agreement



Hi Colette,

In the attachment, is an agreement between the owners of the Meadows Business Park and Redway Community Services District (RCSD), turning
over and relinquishing all of its private water system in the Meadows Business Park for $1.00 to RCSD. At what point did Humboldt LAFCo ever
document, in writing, that RCSD took over providing water to the Meadows Business Park, since the annexation in 1993, which only included sewer?

Thank you,
Ed Voice

ﬂ Wallan & Johnson water request.pdf
1093K



	Blank page.pdf
	2025.03.19 RBM Minutes.pdf
	Operations Report April.pdf
	April Production report.pdf
	Blank page.pdf
	Mar 2025 Safety Report.pdf
	1 Dashboard Financial Summary.pdf
	Blank page.pdf
	2 BALANCE SHEET.pdf
	Blank page.pdf
	3 P&L.pdf
	Blank page.pdf
	4 CHECKING ACCOUNT ACTIVITY.pdf
	5 Bank Reconcilliation.pdf
	Blank page.pdf
	6 SAVINGS ACCOUNTS.pdf
	Blank page.pdf
	7 PAYMENTS FROM CUSTOMERS.pdf
	Blank page.pdf
	8 AP AGING.pdf
	Blank page.pdf
	8A AP AGING.pdf
	8A AP AGING.pdf
	Blank page.pdf
	9 PAYROLL DETAILS.pdf
	Blank page.pdf
	10 Past Due Status.pdf
	Blank page.pdf
	Office Mgr  Memo April 2025-1.pdf
	Cody Cox GM Report April.pdf
	Water Ordinance #7 revisions 03.13.25 review b4 publishing.pdf
	Blank page.pdf
	Water Ordinance Appendix B Current Charges 2018-01-01.pdf
	doc01098720250410130855.pdf
	Cody Cox GM Report April.pdf
	Blank page.pdf
	RREDC 3-25 Audit.pdf
	Garberville Complete Streets - Support from Redway CSD.pdf
	Garberville Vets Building - Support from Redway CSD.pdf
	Blank page.pdf
	Somach Simmons and Dunn retainer return letter.pdf
	ORDINANCE 26.pdf
	Blank page.pdf
	Office Mgr  Memo April 2025-2.pdf
	Office Mgr  Memo April 2025-2.pdf
	updating place of use J Short 4-18-25.pdf
	updating place of use J Short 4-18-25.pdf



